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ABOUT US
E R

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina
Miracle” or the “Company”) is a global leader in the intimate
wear manufacturing industry. Founded in Hong Kong in 1998,
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
has developed itself into the industry’s number one bra
manufacturing company globally. Through an innovative design
manufacturer (“IDM”) business model, Regina Miracle offers
its leading global brands a diversified range of intimate wear
and functional sports products, including bras, sports bras, bra
pads, panties, shapewear, functional sports/casual footwear,
and functional sports apparel. The Group’s production base
is located in Shenzhen and has strategically expanded its
manufacturing capacities in Vietnam since 2016.
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The board of directors (the “"Board”) of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (“Fiscal 2018"), together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2017 (“Fiscal
2017").

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

Revenue N

Gross profit EH

Profit attributable to owners of VIN/NEIE 2SN
the Company 155 A

Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%)

Net profit margin (%) FERIZE (%)

Earnings per share — basic and BREN-EXR
diluted e

Dividend per share BREE
— Interim dividend — HA AR A
— Proposed final dividend —EE R E

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HBHE

BB (L) BR ARG ([#B R Ik &
AANEZS (BB ) MAEH AL AR
HEWB AR (FEAEE])EHE2018F3A4
3TELIEFE(20188E ) N2 FELE © EF
2017 EEI (20178 | LB ©

TEMRENEMBL RO

8]

Year ended 31 March

HBE3A31BLLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change

BT T BT B

5,868,048 4,676,937 25.5%
1,247,049 915,825 36.2%
240,188 97,635 146.0%
21.3% 19.6% 1.7ppfEA D2
4.1% 2.1% 2.0pplE&E D

HK cents HK cents

A B

19.6 8.0

6.3 25

2.5 -

3.8 2.5
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EREE

On behalf of the Board of the Company and the Group, | hereby
present to all our shareholders the annual report of the Group for
Fiscal 2018.

EMBRACING OPPORTUNITIES THROUGH
TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION, DELIVERING
EFFECTIVE PRODUCTION EXPANSION IN
VIETNAM

Looking at the previous year, comfort and athleisure trends
have continued to sweep across the global apparel industry. At
the same time, the ubiquity of the Internet has brought about
profound transformations in the global retail sector. Greater
information transparency is empowering consumers to hold
growing expectations for products with value proposition.
Nonetheless, such changes are accompanied by opportunities.
We believe that innovation is unquestionably essential for us to
keep abreast of the changing times and the key to Regina Miracle
in successfully withstanding different challenges and remaining
resilient during the past two decades.

YY Hung Chairman
W

RANEREARREFTERAKE - M2
PIRIREAREE20180 VR FEERS -

BRI OME MEREX
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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During the year, we further enhanced our innovative seamless
bonding and molding technologies by way of introduction of
a new generation of seamless knitting machines as well as
an exclusive co-development of new molding equipment with
our strategic supplier, which gives birth to our ground-breaking
proprietary injection molding technology for pads developments.
These enhancements also bring higher added value to our brand
partners. In addition to technological innovations, we have
introduced an automated production model to more effectively
boost our production efficiency, which is beneficial to the Group’s
long-term, healthy development.

Leveraging its technological breakthroughs and extensive
experience in the industry of intimate wear and functional
sportswear, Regina Miracle was not only engaged in close
collaborations with its long-term brand partners, but attained
abundant achievements in exploring new brand partners. During
the year, we gained a number of world-renowned casual wear
and sports brands as new partners, resulting in a more balanced
customer mix for the Group.

To fulfill the high demand for our innovative products among the
existing and new brand partners, the management has seized
the early opportunity to expand its production layout in Vietnam.
We are delighted to report that our first Vietnamese facility,
which has been running for two years, has started to contribute
profit to the Group and has effectively alleviated the mounting
cost pressure from domestic facilities in China. In fact, over the
past two decades, the Group has smoothly weathered through
many economic cycles and market changes. Despite the recent
uncertainty of the global trade landscape, the management is
convinced that the proactive expansion of our production capacity
in Vietnam can lay a more solid foundation for the Group's long-
term development. The expanding customer base as well as
strong order demand have further affirmed that our decision and
perseverance are correct.

To share the fruit of our achievements with shareholders, the
Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK3.8 cents per
share for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2018. Together with the
interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share, total dividend for the
financial year amounted to HK6.3 cents, in line with the Group's
policy of paying no less than 30% of its net profit as dividends
each year.

FA - BFEBIIAF —REEEH - AR
HERRHEERERAFRE D EERE -
AR B BEHT 1 SRR M SR 28 AR R Rl
E—SRAPHEBEGENRETE U
REEEERHSRESMHINE - bR T &M
BIFT - BAIRSEA B L EERN - EME
BREREERE - AAARKERERE
R -

BRI R MR F AR RN EIEES R
RIOTENEELR  #PRMERRYMME
BHAEER  MBFAERREAERH
R HRERS FRERSZERBRR
MBI RE S ES MR A ERH - EAKE
BEFASEBIE -

RimRBR A ML MR S R AP Al
ERNRYIER  BEEDRE LB
FATRE - RMIER L2 EMFHBM EHEKRE
BRI AANKENBEELER - ABET &R
NEERKNTE LRNESD - TEELERE
—t+F  ARBCEBZ ELEBH TS
B - BHRE— D IIMAR o BT HIRER
BH5REBHETE  BEEBIREEERE
BREBEAERESASENRRERRETE
REMRE  MAEERHZFES KARD
METEF R - E—HHETRANRE LB
FrIERE

ARBRRESZTHE  ETSCHRAEERE
201853 A31 B I M B EIR T R EARR B
GR35 - R HIRR B A% 2.5
R ERER B A63EI - WERAEES
ERBEN D RLANB0% Ve BB -

8 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ B (GER)ER DT



MARKING 20 YEARS OF HISTORY: BUILDING
ON OUR TRACK RECORD AND BREAKING
NEW GROUND

Looking at the future, the management is cautiously optimistic
about the prospects of the global apparel market. Although the
market is overshadowed by the potential outbreak of a trade war
between China and the US, we see opportunities for accelerated
demands for additional capacity in Vietnam by our US brand
partners. This also reaffirms that the strategy to expand our
production base in Vietnam is a right one, which is conducive
to the long-term development of Regina Miracle. Due to the
farsighted deployment by the management, our production
layout has been gradually maturing in Vietnam. Furthermore, the
tremendous result in developing brand partners in the past year
has solidified the foundation for our business growth over the
next five-to-ten years.

With that in mind, the Group will continue to execute the five-year
development plan (Fiscal 2016 to 2021) prepared upon its listing in
Fiscal 2016. More efforts will be made to enhance the production
capacity and efficiency in its Vietnamese facilities, to tap into
favourable local tax rates, more competitive labour cost and
robust labour market as well as strategic geographical location.
This will enable the Group to continuously improve its profit while
seeking business growth. As the third Vietnamese facility of the
Group officially commenced operation in April 2018, we will stay
committed to bolstering the efficiency and production capability
of our first three facilities in Vietnam, to both meet our partners’
growing demand of orders from Vietnam and increase cost
efficiency. Phase 1 of our fourth Vietnamese facility is expected
to complete construction in the fourth quarter of 2018 and targets
to start recruitment and operation in the first quarter of 2019.

During the year under review, we acquired a parcel of land within
Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park (“VSIP"”) in Hai Phong City to
build our fifth facility. The fifth facility is planned to encompass the
following capabilities/productions:

- Footwear production: We aspire to establish a sustainable
business model for our footwear production in light of the
mounting cost pressures from operating a footwear facility
in Shenzhen. We have decided to gradually relocate our
footwear production from Shenzhen to Vietnam, taking
into account Vietnam's advantages in cost, labour supply,
construction of advanced environmentally friendly production
facilities and policies. The relocation will represent a full
transfer of the annual footwear production capacity of
approximately 2 million pairs from Shenzhen to Vietnam.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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- In-house screen printing capabilities

- Production floors to support our innovative seamless knitting
production capability

Phase 1 of the fifth facility covers a gross floor area of
approximately 106,000 sg.m and is now under construction. It
is expected to officially commence production in 2019. We are
convinced that with clear positioning and continuously optimising
allocation of production capacity, our Shenzhen and Vietnamese
production bases will be able to properly perform their respective
functions, to meet the various demands from our brand partners.

In respect of product innovation, we will focus on developing
more versatile products with superior comfort, functionality and
value proposition. In order to achieve this, we spend dedicated
efforts on raw materials development. According to the
management’s market insights and perception, the incorporation
of new materials in the making of apparel products has become
one of the most important strategies for product development in
the sector. Therefore, apart from carrying out joint research and
development of innovative patented materials in collaboration
with our existing suppliers, we will continue to break through
the traditional framework and explore innovative raw materials in
areas beyond our own sector.

In respect of product portfolio, while maintaining the competitive
edge of our core business, more emphasis will be placed on
balancing the development across different product categories. In
addition, we will leverage our experience and apply technologies
that span different industries and product categories to our
functional sports products business (including sports footwear
and apparel products), a segment brimming with growth potential,
thereby promoting business diversification and growth.

To optimise our resources and allocate our expanding production
capacity more properly, we will continue to review the profitability
of our existing product mix, be more selective in terms of our
brand partner portfolio and establish win-win relations with timely
and reasonable adjustment, to ensure that our resources are
allocated more effectively to deliver maximum margin.
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The year 2018 marks the 20th anniversary of the Group’s
inception, a milestone of great significance to us. Over the past
two decades, we have weathered various market changes and
overcome a multitude of difficulties to arrive where we are today
as a leading intimate wear company. We are also fortunate in
gradually becoming the preferred partner with major brands.
Keenly aware that innovation is the foundation for the success of
Regina Miracle, we will continue to apply our successful formula
and pursue excellence by engaging in innovation across all aspects
of our business, build on our past achievements and deliver an
even better performance in the future.

Sustainability

While expanding its business, Regina Miracle also advocates the
concept of sustainability. We are convinced that talents are the
pillars for the sustainable development of the Group. It is the
contributions from each and every colleague that enable Regina
Miracle to deliver its current achievements. With that in mind,
we value our talent and offer proper training to our colleagues as
appropriate, hoping to grow together with them.

What is also worth noting is that Regina Miracle has maintained
close communication with the investors since its listing in
2015, in a bid to improve transparency. During the year, the
Group captured three major awards from the fourth Hong Kong
Investor Relations Awards, in recognition of Regina Miracle's
efforts to advance its investor relations and maintain corporate
transparency. We also take this opportunity to thank the investor
community for its recognition of and support to the Group.

To conclude, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the entire Board, the management team,
business partners and all the colleagues for their contributions to
and hard work for the development of the Group.

YY Hung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back at last year, despite unpredictable changes in the
world political landscape, there was a steadily improving global
economy and a recovery trend in the consumer demand for
apparel products. As for Regina Miracle and the industry as a
whole, challenges and opportunities arose side by side last year.
On the one hand, the entire apparel market embraced fresh
opportunities under the climbing consumer confidence index.
On the other hand, consumers have been pursuing comfortable
and natural-style clothing in recent years, coupled with the rising
popularity of sports and casual wear. All of these trends have
brought new business opportunities for Regina Miracle and its
brand partners.

Regina Miracle, known as a constant innovator, has seized the
trends and captured the opportunities. Leveraging its superior
technology and abundant knowledge of the intimate wear and
functional sportswear industry, the Group has not only continued
to research and develop more innovative products for its long-
term brand partners, but managed to establish close collaborative
ties with a number of new brand partners. This represents
another major advancement in balancing the customer mix in the
long run.

Brand partners favour Regina Miracle for its renowned innovation
capability and an edge in speed. The expansion of its production
facilities in Vietnam enables the Group to meet the requirement
of its brand partners for short delivery time. In respect of speed,
Regina Miracle’s merit is reflected in both the production and
product development cycle. Faced with fast-changing fashion
trends, Regina Miracle, with its strong capability in innovative
design and manufacturing (IDM), has emerged as one of the
few partners that is able to cope with the quick pace of clients,
constantly bring forth fresh products and lead the fashion trends.

In addition, in the constant pursuit of technological breakthroughs,
the Group has enhanced its innovative seamless bonding and
molding technologies by introducing a new generation of seamless
knitting machines and injection molding machines during the year.
This allows the Group to continuously develop innovative products
that can meet consumer demand. While engaging in technological
innovation, the Group has also introduced automation into its
production model that effectively boosts production efficiency and
benefits healthy long-term development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the other hand, the Internet’s prevalence has rendered the
whole market more transparent. Consumers tend to emphasize
the value proposition of products, which has in effect presented
opportunities for Regina Miracle. In tandem with raising
operational efficiency, the Group was active in researching the
integration of innovative concepts into products, in a bid to raise
their performance and bring higher value to consumers. Such
technological and product innovations have also been welcomed
by existing and new partners alike.

Given the frequent and increasingly complex orders from brand
partners, the management responded to this demand by actively
expanding its production layout in Vietnam. Running smoothly
for two years, the Vietnamese production line has started to
contribute profit to the Group and effectively alleviated the
mounting cost pressure from domestic facilities in China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group sustained its development momentum.
For the year ended 31 March 2018, it recorded a total revenue
of HK$5,868.0 million, representing a 25.5% increase over
Fiscal 2017 (Fiscal 2017: HK$4,676.9 million). In the meantime,
gross profit grew by 36.2% to HK$1,247.0 million (Fiscal 2017:
HK$915.8 million), with gross profit margin lifted to 21.3% (Fiscal
2017: 19.6%). Net profit also rose by 146.0% to HK$240.2 million
(Fiscal 2017: HK$97.6 million), with a net profit margin of 4.1%
(Fiscal 2017: 2.1%).

To share the fruit of the Group’s achievements with shareholders,
the Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK3.8 cents
per share for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2018. Together with
the interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share, total dividend for
the financial year amounted to HK6.3 cents (Fiscal 2017: HK2.5
cents), in line with the Group's policy of paying no less than 30%
of its net profit as dividends for a fiscal year. The proposed final
dividend is subject to approval by shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 27 August
2018. If approved by the shareholders, the proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on or about Friday, 14 September 2018 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Wednesday, 5 September 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERWWR DM

Bras and intimate wear

Bras and intimate wear remain the major source of revenue to
the Group. During the year, the segment contributed HK$4,728.6
million (Fiscal 2017: HK$3,729.8 million) to the Group's revenue,
representing a year-on-year increase of 26.8% and representing
80.6% of its overall revenue. Gross profit from the segment
amounted to HK$1,019.5 million, with a gross profit margin of
21.6% (Fiscal 2017: HK$726.4 million and 19.5%, respectively).

In recent years, the general public has attached growing
importance to health and fitness, which has resulted in increasing
demand for sports products. Driven by this market trend, the
Group has continued to record a satisfactory revenue growth from
sports bras, with a year-on-year increase in sales of such products
exceeding 20% during the year. Given the growing prevalence
of wireless bras, there has also been a greater emphasis on the
comfort and functionality of sports underwear. The Group has
experienced an increase in the orders for such products from
several major brand partners.

On the other hand, underwear products made with innovative
seamless bonding are in vogue. Through technological innovation
and breakthroughs, the Group has continued to develop innovative
products with its long-term brand partners, secure more orders,
and establish close partnerships with new international brands of
casual wear and sports, thus diversifying the Group's customer
mix.

Bra pads and other molded products

As the Group invests greater resources in more profitable finished
goods, a large portion of its self-produced bra pads are mainly
supplied for in-house manufacturing of finished bras. Hence,
the Group has maintained stable revenue from the business of
bra pads and other molded products, which grew by 2.3% to
HK$524.7 million during the year (Fiscal 2017: HK$512.7 million)
and accounting for 8.9% of its total revenue. Gross profit and
gross profit margin from the segment amounted to HK$111.5
million and 21.2%, respectively (Fiscal 2017: HK$107.0 million and
20.9%, respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Functional sports products

Leveraging its cross-industry and cross-category innovation
capability, the Group remained active in developing the business
of functional sports products during the year. As a result, the
segment recorded a year-on-year revenue growth of 41.5%
to HK$614.8 million (Fiscal 2017: HK$434.4 million), which
represented 10.5% of the total revenue of the Group. Gross profit
from the segment amounted to HK$116.1 million, with a gross
profit margin of 18.9% (Fiscal 2017: HK$82.5 million and 19.0%,
respectively).

During the year, Regina Miracle has achieved several technological
breakthroughs. The Group has been recognised by a number of
major sports brand partners for its high-end molding and seamless
bonding technologies, effective incorporation of innovative
high-tech raw materials and the application of such advanced
technologies to sportswear products. These innovative uses of
technologies and applications have helped double the volume of
orders for the Group's sportswear products during the year. In
spite of its relatively small share of revenue, there exists a huge
potential for the category to grow. The Group is also continuing
to research and develop more relevant products with sports
brand partners, to propel the growth of the sportswear business.
As construction is completed for its third facility in Vietnam, the
Group gains more production capacity to cope with its apparel
orders.

In respect of footwear products, the Group has made good
progress as well. Apart from having stable orders with our major
sports brand partners during the review period, the Group has
secured an American footwear brand partner who advocates
comfort and eco-friendliness. This marks another step forward
for the Group, as it has established close collaboration with the
partner on the research, development and production of casual
footwear products during the year. Boasting great potential, the
collaboration proves again that the strong product development
and design capability is the key to the Group's constant expansion
of its business and winning new partners.

Production capacity

Upon its listing in Fiscal 2016, the Group prepared a five-year
development plan (Fiscal 2016 to 2021). This plan, together with
the expansion of production capacity at full force in Vietnam, has
offered a boost to its long-term, sustainable business growth.
Currently, the Group has seen a maturing layout of its production
capacity in Vietnam, and the management is pleased to witness
its Vietnamese facilities attain higher cost efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group's Vietnamese facilities are all located at Vietnam
Singapore Industrial Park (“VSIP") in Hai Phong City. During
the year, our first Vietnamese facility, mainly producing bras
and intimate wear products, is close to reaching full production
capacity. The facility has a planned annual production capacity of
around 46 million pieces and has been consistently improving its
production efficiency. With its production started in May 2017,
the second facility is mainly engaged in producing bra pads, which
are primarily supplied for in-house manufacturing of bras and
intimate wear products in Vietnam. The volume of production was
sufficient to support the Group's internal demand for bra pads
during the year. The third Vietnamese facility mainly produces
bras, intimate wear and functional sportswear products. Planned
with an annual production capacity of approximately 30 million
pieces, this facility officially commenced operation in April 2018,
and targets to recruit 8,000 staff members by the third quarter of
2018.

As of 31 March 2018, the three Vietnamese facilities have a total
of approximately 21,500 staff members. Among approximately
14,000 staff members of the first facility, 64% are skilled
workers with over 1 year of working experience. Their efficiency
has already reached over 85% of their Shenzhen counterparts.
The second and third facilities have also quickly improved their
production efficiency. The Group has continued to increase
employment at its Vietnamese facilities. New recruits are offered
proper training to comprehensively raise the efficiency and
production capability at these facilities. By doing so, the Group can
meet the increasing order demands from its partners to Vietnam,
while seeking to further tap into the advantageous cost efficiency
of that country.

The fourth facility in Vietnam will mainly produce bras, intimate
wear and functional sportswear products. Given that its
construction works have proceeded smoothly during the year,
the facility is expected to complete construction and commence
interior decoration works in the fourth quarter of 2018, and targets
to start recruitment and operation in the first quarter of 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the Group has purchased another land parcel
in VSIP to build the fifth facility. Covering a gross floor area
of approximately 106,000 sq.m., the facility will encompass
capabilities of the following productions:

- Relocation of footwear production from Shenzhen to
Vietnam: During the review period, the Group is pleased
to have added a new casual brand partner for its footwear
business which presents potentials for future growth.
As such, the Group is eager to establish a sustainable
business model for our footwear production in light of the
mounting cost pressures from operating a footwear facility
in Shenzhen. Given Vietnam’s edge in cost, labour supply,
and construction of advanced environmentally-friendly
production facilities and policies, the management considers
the country as an ideal location for building footwear
production facilities and has decided to gradually transfer
its footwear production from Shenzhen to Vietnam. The
relocation will represent a full transfer of the approximately
2 million pairs of annual shoe production capacity from
Shenzhen to Vietnam.

- In-house screen printing capabilities.

- Production floors to support our new seamless knitting
production capability: Demand is keen for innovative
seamless bonding and knitted sportswear in the global
consumer market. As such, the Group has introduced
seamless knitting capability during the review period to bring
higher value to our brand partners.

The phase 1 of the facility is now undergoing construction and is
expected to commence production in 2019.

The Group's facility in Shenzhen continues to assume the crucial
responsibility of research and development, as well as supporting
the Group’s production needs. It is actively developing premium
products that are high in technology and short in delivery time,
while harnessing other regional advantages to fully cooperate
with brand partners in executing their business development
strategy of developing the Chinese market. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group's Shenzhen facility has approximately 15,000 staff
members.

The Group will continue to optimise the allocation of production
capacity of its Shenzhen and Vietnamese facilities, taking into
account a comprehensive host of factors that include cost
competitiveness, policy, technical requirements and brand
partners’ sales strategies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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THE GROUP’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily from direct sales of our products.
Our total revenue increased by 25.5% from HK$4,676.9 million in
Fiscal 2017 to HK$5,868.0 million in Fiscal 2018. A comparison of
the Group's revenue for Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017 by product
categories is as follows:

REENEERE

N
BMIOBAZZRREMERNEZEHEE -
HAIE U A LEZE 20178 F R B H4,676.98
BT N25.6% E20188 F A 155,868.08
BT o ANEE20180 F K201 7 FiREm A
BB DB ALLE AT

For the year ended 31 March
BZ23A3MALEE

2018

201845
% of
Revenue
L ON:
Aol

HK$'000

BETT

2017

20175
% of
Revenue
NG
Aot

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BET T

Bras and intimate wear HE &AL & Ak 4,728,567 80.6 3,729,811 79.7 998,756 26.8

Bra pads and other foit R A MR
molded products Em 524,670 8.9 512,746 11.0 11,924 2.3
Functional sports products Mg EEEE D 614,811 10.5 434,380 9.3 180,431 4156
5,868,048 100.0 4,676,937 100.0 1,191,111 255

Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate wear
increased by HK$998.8 million, or approximately 26.8%, from
HK$3,729.8 million in Fiscal 2017 to HK$4,728.6 million in Fiscal
2018. The increase was primarily due to the increase in sales
volume of our bras driven by an increased demand from our
customers.

Revenue generated from sales of bra pads and other molded
products remained relatively stable and amounted to HK$524.7
million in Fiscal 2018, representing an increase of approximately
HK$11.9 million, or approximately 2.3%, as compared to Fiscal
2017.

Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products
increased by HK$180.4 million, or approximately 41.5%, from
HK$434.4 million in Fiscal 2017 to HK$614.8 million in Fiscal 2018.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in sales volume
of our functional sportswear and sports footwear driven by an
increased demand from our customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEEREE

Cost of sales SHE KA

Cost of sales primarily consists of cost of raw materials, employee HERAETEZRERMBKA  BEE28E4E
benefit expense for personnel directly involved in our production EFSEIMESENAS £ERBINE
activities, depreciation of our production equipment and others. N EA o

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3R3MBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
% of % of
HK$'000  Revenue HK$'000 Revenue HK$'000
EAHY {EAR
BT T BAl BT Bntt BT
Costs of raw materials [RMBIB AR 2,165,994 369 1,780,160 38.1 385,834 217
Employee benefit expenses  EEEHFX 1,867,199 318 1,541,445 33.0 325,754 211
Depreciation e 199,823 34 135,577 29 64,246 47.4
Others Hity 387,983 6.6 303,930 6.4 84,053 27.7
4,620,999 787 3,761,112 80.4 859,887 22.9

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue decreased from HER AW ALEE 5 LBR20178 F 8
80.4% in Fiscal 2017 to 78.7% in Fiscal 2018. This was primarily 80.4% T X E20180 F878.7% Lt J1F E
attributable to our continued efficiency improvement of the HRBEREXERFERS SRR EAR
Vietnam factory, resulting in a reduction of cost of materials and EERFFAZMRALENE LT -
employee benefit expenses as a percentage of our total revenue.

Cost of sales increased from HK$3,761.1 million in Fiscal 2017 SHEXAR201 78 ROEHE3,761. 1 B BTG
to HK$4,621.0 million in Fiscal 2018 primarily due to increases in MNZE2018H FHE4,621.06887L ° TEMH
costs of raw materials and employee benefit expenses as a result TR A B S48 10 B2 U A8 N B (R B 18
of increase in revenue. FsZ I8N ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

EMNRERNR

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ANALFE

2018

20185
Gross Gross Profit
Profit margin
ES EiES
HK$'000 %
BETT Btk

2017

20174
Gross  Gross Profit
Profit margin

Change
£H  EAE %

HK$'000 %
BT B

HK$'000
BT

Bras and intimate wear T KB & T 1,019,464 21.6 726,396 19.5 293,068 40.3

Bra pads and other B REMER
molded products Em 111,483 21.2 106,956 20.9 4,527 4.2
Functional sports products MetESEER 116,102 18.9 82,473 19.0 33,629 40.8
1,247,049 213 915,825 19.6 331,224 36.2

Our overall gross profit increased from HK$915.8 million in Fiscal
2017 to HK$1,247.0 million in Fiscal 2018. The gross profit margin
in Fiscal 2018 increased by 1.7 percentage points to 21.3%, as
compared to 19.6% in Fiscal 2017. Such increase was mainly
driven by our continued efficiency improvement of the Vietnam
factory.

The gross profit margin of bras and intimate wear increased from
19.5% in Fiscal 2017 to 21.6% in Fiscal 2018, primarily due to our
continued efficiency improvement of the Vietnam factory. While
the gross profit margin of bra pads and other molded products
slightly increased from 20.9% in Fiscal 2017 to 21.2% in Fiscal
2018, the gross profit margin of functional sports products have
remained relatively stable at 18.9% and 19.0% in Fiscal 2018 and
Fiscal 2017 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and other gains, net

Our other income and other gains consist primarily of government
grants. The decrease in other income by HK$3.3 million from
HK$25.1 million in Fiscal 2017, to HK$21.8 million in Fiscal 2018,
was primarily attributable to the decrease of government grants
subsidies, which depend on the government grant policies and
criteria during different time periods.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses primarily consist of freight and
transportation expenses, employee benefit expenses for our sales
personnel, traveling expenses, declaration charges, marketing and
promotion expenses and others. For Fiscal 2017 and Fiscal 2018,
the Group's distribution and selling expenses have remained
relatively stable in terms of percentage of total revenue, and
represented approximately 2.6% and 2.7% of its total revenue
respectively.

Distribution and selling expenses increased by 30.6% from
HK$121.7 million in Fiscal 2017 to HK$159.0 million in Fiscal 2018.
The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in freight
and transportation expenses as a result of an increase in sales of
the Group.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses for our administrative personnel,
depreciation and amortization, other taxes and surcharges,
building management fee, insurance, operating lease rental of land
and buildings, office and administrative expenses, bank charges,
exchange loss or gain and others. General and administrative
expenses as a percentage of total revenue have remained
relatively stable at 9.9% and 10.0% in Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017
respectively.

General and administrative expenses increased by 23.8% from
HK$467.3 million in Fiscal 2017 to HK$578.6 million in Fiscal 2018.
The increase was primarily attributable to the Group’s expansion
in Vietnam, resulting in an increase in employee benefit expenses,
depreciation and amortization, and office and administrative
expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of employee benefit
expenses for our research and development personnel, raw
materials and consumables used and others. For Fiscal 2018 and
Fiscal 2017, the Group's research and development costs have
remained relatively stable in terms of percentage of total revenue,
and represented approximately 3.3% and 3.4% of its total
revenue respectively.

Research and development costs increased by 22.2% from
HK$160.3 million in Fiscal 2017 to HK$195.9 million in Fiscal 2018,
primarily due to an increase in employee benefit expenses of
research and development personnel as a result of our strategic
focus on research and development.

Finance Income
Finance income represents interest income on bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest expense on borrowings, net of
interest expenses capitalised. For Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017, the
Group's finance costs represented approximately 0.8% and 0.7%
of its total revenue respectively.

The 51.8% increase in finance costs from HK$32.8 million in
Fiscal 2017 to HK$49.8 million in Fiscal 2018 was primarily
attributable to increase in borrowings, as a result of increase in
revenue and Vietnam factories expansion in Fiscal 2018.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense represents our total current and deferred
tax expenses under the relevant Hong Kong and PRC income tax
rules and regulations.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits in Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is
25% in Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the
PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises engaged in
research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% of
the research and development expenses so incurred in a period as
tax deductible expenses in determining its tax assessable profits
for that period (“Super Deduction”). Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
has applied such Super Deduction in Fiscal 2018 (Fiscal 2017: Nil).

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% in Fiscal 2018
and Fiscal 2017. In accordance with the applicable tax regulations,
a subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen
consecutive years, commencing from the first year of making
revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full exemption
from corporate income tax for the first four years from the earlier
of (i) the year when profit is generated for the first time or (i) the
fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction in corporate
income tax for the next nine years.

The Group's income tax expense decreased from HK$62.5 million
in Fiscal 2017 to HK$45.9 million in Fiscal 2018. Excluding the
positive effect of claim of Super Deduction amounted HK$11.5
million, the Group’s effective tax rate decreased from 39.0% in
Fiscal 2017 to 20.0% in Fiscal 2018, mainly attributed to profits
generated by the Vietnam subsidiaries are exempted from
corporate income tax.

Net profit

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, our net
profit for the year increased by 146.0% from HK$97.6 million
in Fiscal 2017 to HK$240.2 million in Fiscal 2018. Our net profit
margin increased from 2.1% in Fiscal 2017 to 4.1% in Fiscal 2018.

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's current ratios (calculated as
current assets over current liabilities) were 1.0 times and 1.1
times as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 respectively. Net
debt (represented by bank borrowings less the cash and cash
equivalents) was HK$1,700.2 million (31 March 2017: 1,071.4
million). The increase of net debt was mainly due to capital
expenditure for our production facilities in Vietnam. Gearing ratio
as at 31 March 2018 was 59.3% (31 March 2017: 40.9%), which
was calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RS

Net cash generated from operating activities was HK$466.2
million in Fiscal 2018 (Fiscal 2017: HK$183.8 million). The
increase was mainly attributed to increase in cash generated from
operations in Fiscal 2018.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to HK$979.7
million in Fiscal 2018 as compared to HK$960.5 million in Fiscal
2017. The Group invested approximately HK$948.4 million in
new property, plant and equipment mainly in connection with our
production facilities in Vietnam.

During Fiscal 2018, net cash generated from financing activities
amounted to HK$539.2 million, as compared to HK$249.4 million
in Fiscal 2017. The positive cash inflow from financing activities
was mainly due to proceeds from borrowings.

Working capital management

Inventory turnover days FERASH
Receivables turnover days FEWHIE A8 B 21
Payables turnover days JEA FRIA E BB

Decrease in inventory turnover days for Fiscal 2018 by 8 days was
primarily due to improved inventory control of the Group.

Both receivables and payables turnover days remained relatively
stable and were at healthy levels of 47 days and 30 days
respectively during Fiscal 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital expenditures

For Fiscal 2018, total addition to property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets
amounted to approximately HK$1,140.0 million (Fiscal 2017:
HK$910.2 million), and was mainly attributable additions of
production lines for our second Hai Phong facility and construction
of our third Hai Phong facility to cope with the Group's overall
business expansion.

Pledged assets
As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018, the Group did not have
assets pledged for bank borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

We mainly operate in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Most of
our operating expenses are denominated in Renminbi, while most
of our sales are denominated and settled in U.S. dollar. As the HK
dollar is pegged to U.S. dollar, our foreign exchange exposure in
respect of the HK dollar is considered minimal. Our management
will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange exposure and
will take prudent measures to minimize the currency translation
risk.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and future plans for major
investment

Save for the investment in the construction of the production
facilities in Vietnam, during Fiscal 2018, the Group did not
conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In
addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2015 (the
“Prospectus”), and the framework construction agreements
disclosed in the announcements dated 24 July 2017 and 24
April 2018 respectively, the Group has no specific plan for
major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERWWR DM

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed a total of approximately
36,993 full-time staff (31 March 2017: 33,955). The total staff
cost of the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances,
provident funds and share incentive schemes) amounted to
HK$2,383.9 million, representing 40.6% of the total revenue of
the Group.

We believe our success depends heavily upon our employees’
provision of consistent, quality and reliable services. In order to
attract, retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and quality
of our employees, we place a strong emphasis on training our
employees. We provide on-site training periodically and across
operational functions, including introductory training for new
employees, technical training, professional and management
training, team-building and communications training.

We enter into individual employment contracts with our
employees to cover matters such as wages, employee benefits,
safety and sanitary conditions in the workplace, and grounds for
termination. We have designed an evaluation system to assess
the performance of our employees. This system forms the basis
of our determinations of whether an employee should receive
salary raises, bonuses or promotions. Most of our technical
personnel are trained and promoted internally, leading to greater
employee stability and loyalty.

Events after the balance sheet date
The Group has no significant events after the reporting period and
up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Going forward, despite the global political uncertainty this year and
particularly in the shadow of a looming China-US trade war, quite
a few of our US brand partners have quickened the pace to move
production orders to Vietnam, which is conducive to the growth
of Regina Miracle with its vigorous expansion of Vietnamese
production bases. Regina Miracle has a maturing production
layout in Vietnam, as the management continues to expand its
presence in the country which has become one of the most
important competitive advantages for the Group. Leveraging its
solid foundation built over two decades and strong IDM capability,
Regina Miracle is well prepared to embrace opportunities from a
huge market with more brand partners. During the previous year,
the Group was successful in developing brand partners, which will
contribute to a solid foundation for business growth over the next
five-to-ten years.

In respect of the layout of production capacity, the Group
is expected to continuously benefit from the favourable tax
concession scheme and geographical advantage of Vietnam,
based on its preferential tax rates, more competitive labour cost,
robust labour market and strategic geographical location. With that
in mind, the management will continue to improve its production
capacity layout in Vietnam, as well as optimise the production
capacity allocation of its facilities in both Shenzhen and Vietnam.

On the other hand, the management fully understands that
“innovation” is the key to Regina Miracle in leading industry
trends. Hence, the Group continues to spare no effort to innovate
products, craftsmanship, production and management on a
comprehensive scale, to develop more innovative products that
cater for consumers’ pursuit of comfort, high functionality and
high cost efficiency. In this way, its business can grow sustainably
in the long run.

In respect of product innovation, Regina Miracle has attracted
many world-famous brand partners due to its diverse product
portfolio and strong design capability. However, to optimise
the Group's resources and allocate our expanding production
capacity more properly, the management will continue to review
the profitability of the existing product mix, be more selective in
terms of its brand partner portfolio and establish win-win relations
with timely and reasonable adjustments, to ensure that resources
are allocated more effectively to deliver maximum margin. For
the future, the Group remains committed to innovation and
emphasizes the balanced development among different product
categories, while solidifying its competitive edge in its core
business. The Group will continue to develop more profitable
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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innovative products, including brand-new bras and intimate
wear. Technologies and experience is to be drawn from different
sectors and production lines to work on the business of functional
sports products, a segment brimming with growth potential,
thereby driving the diversification and sustained growth of the
Group’s business.

Confronted with the recent trend of recovering raw material
prices, the Group is also proactive in achieving innovation
breakthroughs in raw materials and craftsmanship, to maintain
satisfactory cost efficiency. Aside from that, the Group seeks
to further expand its line-up of high-end seamless products by
introducing a new generation of seamless knitting machines and
innovative seamless craftsmanship, in a bid to elevate product
profitability. Furthermore, the Group has introduced patented
injection molding equipment and applied new craftsmanship
to upgrading the molding technology. This has enhanced the
business of bras and intimate wear products, and facilitated the
expansion of new business and product lines. The Group also
strives to introduce automation equipment to lay the foundation
for long-term, healthy development.

To raise operational efficiency and optimise cost structure, the
Group will strengthen production and management innovation.
Internally, the Group will continue to promote the lean production
model, including optimising material specifications. A host of
information technology platforms will also be applied, such as
the SAP system, the FastReact production control system, the
RFID system and a high-efficiency production planning system.
Externally, the Group will maintain the long-term partnerships with
its existing suppliers, to jointly research and develop innovative
patented materials. On the other hand, innovative raw materials
will be explored across different sectors, to keep its products
competitive.

Regina Miracle, with its outstanding strength in IDM, has led
market trends for two decades and thereby has become a close
partner with multiple top global brands. In the years to come, the
Group resolves to work towards the objectives set out in its five-
year plan, improve its production capacity layout in China and
Vietnam, and steer its business to an even more fruitful future.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND

COMPANY SECRETARY
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (¥ ) (also known as YY Hung (#t/5725)),
aged b5, is the founder of the Group and has been a Director of
the Company since its incorporation on 21 September 2010. He
is also the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall development strategies and business
plans and overseeing the operation of the Group. With over 18
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry,
Mr. Hung has been the key driver of our business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management
of our operations and business. Mr. Hung is also a director of
each of the BVI, PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hung is currently the executive vice president of Shenzhen
Underwear Association (FIITTRKITERHE) since 2012,
the president of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association (RIITTHXAFIEZEZE) since January 2015 and
council member of South China Athletic Association (FIEREE2).
Mr. Hung received the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong

2007 from Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Hung is the uncle of Ms. Sze Shui Ling, senior management
and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior
management of the Company, is a cousin of Mrs. Hung.

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (#k38&), aged 42, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. Mr. Yiu
joined the Group as a financial controller on 17 June 2002 and
was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in 2005.
Mr. Yiu is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management, internal control, legal and compliance matters of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu has over 19 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yiu worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong in the tax department
from August 1998 to June 2002 and held the position of senior
consultant from July 2000 to June 2002. Mr. Yiu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a first class honors
degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in November 1998.
He is a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yiu is a
cousin of Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior management of the Company.
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Mr. LIU Zhengiang (2I&58), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and has
been the chief research and development and design officer of
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd ("RMIA
Shenzhen”) since April 2008. He is primarily responsible for
product design, research and development management of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Liu joined the previous bra processing facilities
in February 1999 and held the positions as manager of the
research and development department from February 1999
to September 2003 and chief research and development and
design officer from September 2003 to April 2008. From August
1998 to February 1999, Mr. Liu served as a supervisor of quality
assurance department at Shun Cheong Factory for shoulder pads
manufacturing. He has over 18 years of experience in intimate
wear design and research and development management and
contributed in a number of utility model patents and invention
patents on intimate wear design. Mr. Liu graduated from Wuxi
College of Light Industry (58 T X&) (later renamed as
Jiangnan University ((TFAXE)) majoring in textile design in June
1998 and a degree of executive master of business administration
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (KT RE2F5%) in
September 2013.

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (BRE¥), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group on 22 June 2015 and 30 November 2015
respectively, and has been the general manager of RMIA
Shenzhen since April 2008. He is primarily responsible for
production management of the Group. He is also a director of
both RMIA Shenzhen and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd
("RM Shenzhen”). Mr. Chen joined the previous bra processing
facilities in October 2000 and held the following positions:
production supervisor from October 2000 to June 2001,
production manager from June 2001 to September 2003, senior
production manager from September 2003 to June 2006 and
general manager from June 2006 to April 2008. He has over 16
years of experience in intimate wear manufacture management.
Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in shipbuilding engineering
from East China Shipbuilding Institute (£ A T2 267) (later
renamed as Jiangsu University of Science and Technology (/T
ERRHERER)) in July 1999 and a degree of executive master of
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (£, 2 Fk) in September 2013.
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Ms. SZE Shui Ling (##%), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. She
has been the sales and marketing director of Regina Miracle
International Limited since 24 June 1999 and Regina Miracle
International (Group) Limited since 18 September 2006. She
is responsible for the sales and marketing affairs of the Group.
Ms. Sze has over 19 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of intimate wear. She is also a director of a number
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Sze holds a certificate in
tourism management program in Camosun College in Canada in
December 1996. Ms. Sze is the niece of Mr. Hung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. OR Ching Fai (#;5#), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee.
Dr. Or is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business development of the Group.

Dr. Or received a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics
and psychology from the University of Hong Kong in July 1972
before joining The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as a management trainee. Dr. Or worked in a variety of
positions in personnel, securities, retail and corporate banking
divisions. Dr. Or was appointed as general manager and group
general manager in 2000 and became an executive director in
2005. Dr. Or was then appointed as vice-chairman and chief
executive of Hang Seng Bank Limited (B4 $R1TEBRAF), a
banking company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), in 2005 and retired in
May 2009.

Dr. Or holds the following positions in companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Company and its Principal Business

REAREETEEK

Stock Exchange
BER S

Position

B

Television Broadcasts Limited (B1REEBRRE A 7)),

a television broadcast company

TREEARAR - A HMTREEAR

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(PEI TR R1TAR B BR A F)), a banking company
PR TREsRITIRD BIRAR] - A—MIRITAF]

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

(AXEHREEEBR AT, ajewellery company
AREHREEEBRAF - A—EHRERF
China Strategic Holdings Limited (F R &EEHR A F)),
an investment and metal trading company

TREBERLR  A-HRENEZEEER

Esprit Holdings Limited (BHREIRIRIZEZ AR A 7)), a fashion

Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

BB AT

Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

BB AT

Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

BB ST

Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

BB AT

Hong Kong Stock

Independent non-
executive director

BUIFATES

Independent non-
executive director

BUIFATES

Independent non-
executive director

BIUIFNITES
Chairman and non-
executive director Nt

TEFRIFITE R

Executive chairman and

and living products company Exchange executive director Note 2
BREENERARAT - AN EERRAT EBHR AT HITERRPITE S

Note 1. Dr. Or stepped down from his position as chief executive officer of
China Strategic Holdings Limited on 18 January 2018. He was re-
designated from an executive director to a non-executive director of the
company on 1 April 2018.

Note 2. Dr. Or was re-designated from chairman and independent non-executive
director to executive chairman and executive director of Esprit Holdings
Limited on 1 April 2018.

Dr. Or has been the vice-chairman and independent non-executive
director of G-Resources Group Limited, a gold and sliver mining
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since July
2009 and retired on 30 June 2017. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (132
EHIH B AT, a telecommunications, retail, infrastructure and
energy company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (EZ=fiz=A R A 7)), an aviation
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from February
2000 to May 2009 respectively. Dr. Or was the deputy chairman
and non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited,
an entertainment company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange, since August 2015 and retired on 31 December 2017.
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Dr. Or is a vice patron of the board of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. He was also the chairman of the Hong Kong
Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was vice chairman
of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and
2005. He was also the chairman of the Financial Services Advisory
Committee and a member of the Services Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He
was a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, vice president and a
council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member
of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, the chairman
of Executive and Campaign Committee of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, the deputy council chairman of the Council of City
University of Hong Kong, a council member of the University of
Hong Kong, an adviser of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong and a member of the Planning Committee of the 5th East
Asian Games.

Dr. Or was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Honorary University Fellow
from the University of Hong Kong in 2009. He was conferred an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong
Kong and an Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng Management
College in November 2014 and May 2017 respectively. Dr. Oris a
Justice of the Peace.

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie (FgE 1), aged 62, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 11 September 2015 and is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
development of our Group. She is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mrs. To has extensive
experience in the garments trading industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mrs. To was employed by Mast Industries (Far East)
Limited, the sourcing arm of LBrands, as the president from
January 2007 to May 2013 and the executive vice president from
September 1996 to December 2006. From April 1995 to August
1996, she served as a director of Li & Fung (Trading) Ltd., a
Hong Kong based global sourcing company. From January 1991
to February 1995, Mrs. To was the executive vice-president of
Bonaventure Textiles Limited, a garment manufacturing company.
From June 1979 to December 1990, Mrs. To held various
positions from executive trainee to assistant managing director of
Swire and MacLaine Limited, the trading division of John Swire &
Sons Limited. Mrs. To obtained a bachelor degree of arts from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1979.
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Ms. TAM Laiman (EEEX), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the business development of
our Group. She is also a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Tam has extensive management experience
in the consumer products marketing, distribution and retailing
industry. Ms. Tam currently holds position either as a manager
or an executive director of the following six group companies in
Swire Pacific Limited: SRM Holdings, Inc., a holding company of
brands investment; United Sheen Limited, a holding company
of brands investment; Columbia Sportswear Commercial
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (FHfmtL R EBREEE (L8) BRAR), a
sales and distribution company of branded outdoor and sports
clothing and footwear; SCCH Limited, a holding company of
brands investment; Swire Brands Limited, a holding company of
consumer brands investment, and Swire Industrial Limited, an
investment holding company in cold storage, waste management,
environmental services, painting and sugar businesses, and
distribution and sales of motor vehicles in PRC and Hong
Kong. She is primarily responsible for the companies’ overall
development and operation.

From January 1990 to July 2013, Ms. Tam served the positions
as managing director, director and general manager of Swire
Resources Limited, a marketing, distribution and retail company of
branded clothing and footwear product, where she was primarily
responsible for the company’s overall development and operation.
From October 1987 to December 1989, Ms. Tam was the general
manager in charge of the overall operation of Reebok Hong
Kong Ltd., a sports brand company of clothing and footwear.
From December 1983 to May 1987, Ms. Tam worked at Plough
Consumer Products (Asia) Ltd., a consumer products marketing
and distribution company, as the regional marketing manager
responsible for the Southeast Asia market. From May 1978 to
November 1983, Ms. Tam worked at the group companies of
Fung Ping Fan Group, a diversified company involving in consumer
brands distribution and real estate businesses.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor degree in administration from
University of Ottawa in May 1976. Ms. Tam has been an
executive committee member of Benji's Centre (EE R EH
I») and the vice chairman of the supervisory board of Macao
International Brand Enterprise Commercial Association (J8 P9 B[R
MR E) since 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Guoxian (ZEE &), aged 53, has been the general
manager of technology development of RMIA Shenzhen since
April 2008. He is responsible for technology, research and
development and machinery improvement of the Group, and
contributed in several utility model patents and invention patents
on intimate wear design, including one-piece bra. Mr. Huang is
also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen and a Director of RM
Shenzhen. He joined the previous bra processing facilities in
February 1999 and held the positions as manager of the research
and development department from February 1999 to March 2003
and chief technology officer from March 2003 to April 2008. From
June 1988 to February 1999, Mr. Huang worked as supervisor
of the research and development department at Shun Cheong
Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. Mr. Huang has over 18
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry.
Mr. Huang obtained a high school diploma from Fuging Jiangdou
Huagiao Middle School (1g/& /T ZEFEF E2) in July 1982.

Mr. YIU Ka So (#kin#t), aged 44, has been the general manager
of operation of the Group since he joined the Group on 3 March
2004. He is primarily responsible for operations management
of the Group. Mr. Yiu is also the vice chairman of RMIA
Shenzhen, a director of RM Shenzhen, the legal representative
and general director of Regina Miracle International (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd and of Regina Miracle International Hai Duong Co.,
Ltd and the general manager of Regina Miracle International
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. Mr. Yiu has over 11 years of experience in
enterprise and operations management. Mr. Yiu served at United
Photovoltaics Group Limited (formerly known as Goldpoly New
Energy Holdings Limited), a solar company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, as an executive director from October
2010 to December 2013. Mr. Yiu obtained a bachelor degree in
engineering and a master degree of science in civil engineering,
both from the University of Hong Kong, in December 1997 and
November 2001, respectively. Mr. Yiu is a cousin of Mr. Yiu Kar
Chun Antony and Mrs. Hung.
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Ms. LEUNG, Mai Ling Connie ($3%%), aged 52, has been the
general manager of business division of the Group since she
joined the Group on 3 September 2003. She is responsible for
sales management of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 24 years of
experience in the clothing industry, of which over 13 years in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Leung worked at PLH Fashion Group, a trading company,
as a divisional manager primarily responsible for merchandising
and management from November 2002 to September 2003.
From 1995 to 2002, Ms. Leung worked at Mast Industries (Far
East) Limited, a garments and accessories trading company, as
a merchandising manager and regional merchandising manager,
where she was primarily responsible for the regional market
management. From October 1993 to June 1995, she served as a
sourcing manager in charge of material sourcing, purchasing and
development in Lion-Redcliffe & Company Limited, an embroidery
manufacturer. In addition, Ms. Leung served as an assistant
merchandiser overseeing sample development, production and
shipment in Texunion Garment Co., Ltd., a garment manufacturer,
from July 1985 to June 1986.

Ms. Leung obtained a diploma in clothing in Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council in July 1985, a national diploma in clothing in
Hong Kong Business and Technical Education Council in March
1986, a diploma in clothing design and production management
from the Clothing and Footwear Institute in 1993. Ms. Leung
completed the modular post-graduate diplomas in textile and
clothing and clothing studies in October 1995 and November
1996, respectively, and obtained a master of arts degree in
clothing studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 1999.

Mr. LIANG Changming (2 #f), aged 38, has been the sample
development deputy general manager of shoe division of RMIA
Shenzhen since February 2012. He is responsible for research
and development of shoe products of the Group. He was also
the senior manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen from April 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Liang
joined the previous bra processing facilities in June 2003 and held
the positions in the research and development department as
supervisor from June 2003 to May 2006 and manager from May
2006 to April 2008. Mr. Liang has over 14 years of experience in
intimate wear manufacturing industry, specializing in bra pads,
bras and sports bras. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor degree in
textile examination and commerce from Donghua University (82
AE) in July 2003.
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Mr. HO Soon Hin ({a])[E &), aged 55, has been the deputy general
manager of production management of the Group since he joined
the Group on 16 October 2002 and is responsible for production
management and quality control of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 15
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry.

Mr. ZHANG Wenbo (3R 1#), aged 38, has been the deputy
general manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen since December 2017. He is responsible
for coordinating and promoting intimate wear and product
development of the Group. He was also the senior manager of the
research and development department of RMIA Shenzhen from
April 2008 to February 2012 and the sample development deputy
general manager of the intimate wear division of RMIA Shenzhen
from February 2012 to December 2016. He was the sample
development deputy general manager of the sportswear division
of RMIA Shenzhen from December 2016 to November 2017. Mr.
Zhang joined the previous bra processing facilities in September
2002 and held the positions in the research and development
department as supervisor from September 2002 to May 2004 and
manager from May 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Zhang has over 14
years of experience in the research and development of intimate
wear products. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in thermal
engineering from Jiamusi University ((ERETAZ) in June 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAW Kwan Chuen (£#§%), aged 39, joined the Group on
15 December 2011 as our group financial controller and was
appointed as company secretary of the Company on 22 June
2015. He is primarily responsible for financial reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Law
has approximately 17 years of experience in auditing, financial
reporting and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Law worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2004 to
December 2011 with the last position as manager. From July 2001
to October 2004, he worked at Moore Stephens as an auditor.
Mr. Law obtained a bachelor degree of business administration
majoring in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (F/#&H XX KE) in November 2001. He has been an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since February 2004 and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since September
2004. Mr. Law has also been a Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA")
charter holder of the CFA Institute since September 2006, a
fellow member of ACCA since July 2009 and a fellow member of
HKICPA since September 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to
124 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of the
Company a final dividend of HK3.8 cents per share for the year
ended 31 March 2018. Subject to the approval of the proposed
final dividend by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 27
August 2018, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or about
Friday, 14 September 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 21 August
2018 to Monday, 27 August 2018, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company's Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Monday, 20 August 2018. The annual general
meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, 27 August
2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for
the final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 3 September 2018 to Wednesday, 5
September 2018, both days inclusive. To qualify for the final
dividend, shareholders should ensure that all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 31 August 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 30
of this annual report respectively. Discussions on the Group's
relationships with its key stakeholders are also set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 11 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group's
Financial Information Summary on page 196 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five years ended 31 March 2018
are set on page 196 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,726.1 million (2017: HK$1,740.0 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2018 amounted to HK$1.1 million (2017: HK$0.9 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme on 11 September 2015 (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme took effect on 8 October 2015
(the listing date of the Company), and no option has been granted
up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Who may participate

Subject to the terms of Share Option Scheme, the Board
(including any committee or delegate of the Board appointed
by the Board to perform any of its functions pursuant to
the rules of the Share Option Scheme) may, at its absolute
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of shares of the Company (“Shares”) as the Board
may determine to an employee (whether full time or part-
time) or a director of a member of the Group (the “Eligible
Person”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any options granted under any other share
option scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the listing date of the
Company unless the Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible
Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be open for acceptance for such period (not exceeding 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board
may determine and notify to the Eligible Persons concerned
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the duration of the Share Option Scheme.
An offer of options not accepted within this period shall
lapse. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of an option and such payment shall not be
refundable and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of
the exercise price.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of offer
of the option; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Time for Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by the Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.

Duration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the listing date of
the Company, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto which are at that time or become thereafter capable
of exercise under the rules of the Share Option Scheme, or
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2018 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 68.1%
of the Group's total sales for the year (of which sales to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 30.5%).
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 41.8% of the Group's total purchases for the year
(of which purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 16.0%).

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or
any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Zhengiang

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. SZE Shui Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. OR Ching Fai

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie

Ms. TAM Laiman

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue
Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman will retire as Directors in accordance
with Article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles of Association”) and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of the Directors of the Company, the senior
management and company secretary of the Group are set out on
pages 31 to 39 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 11 September 2015 and the Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The principal particulars of these service
contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a term of 3 years
commencing from 11 September 2015 and (b) are subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term
of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Our
employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
anytime during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited (“Le Ying"”, together
with its subsidiaries collectively, the “Le Ying Group”) is
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), a controlling shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a new agreement with Le Ying
on 9 May 2018 to regulate the sales of intimate wear and
sport wear products of the Company to Le Ying Group (the
“New Le Ying Sales Agreement”) in place of the previous
agreement entered on 11 September 2015. Pursuant to the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement, price of the sales of intimate
wear and sport wear products by the Company to Le Ying
Group shall be determined on an arm’s length basis with
reference to (1) the cost of production and the expected
gross profit margin, (2) the average selling price of the
products of comparable nature and scale and accepted by an
independent third party in the twelve-month period prior to
the relevant transaction, (3) where there is no such average
selling price available, any most recent available sale price
of products of comparable nature and scale offered by the
Group and accepted by an independent third party, the latest
available market data, and (4) the prevailing market price for
the sale of products of comparable nature and scale, which
should be in any event no less favorable to the Group than is
available to independent third parties.
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The New Le Ying Sales Agreement became effective on 9
May 2018 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a term on
31 March 2021 or (ii) the date on which Le Ying ceases to
be the connected person of the Company, whichever comes
earlier. The parties to the New Le Ying Sales Agreement
may negotiate to extend the agreement for a further term
of three years within two months before the expiry of the
three-year term of the agreement unless the agreement
is terminated due to Le Ying ceasing to be the connected
person of the Company.

During the year, the annual cap for revenue from sales to
Le Ying for Fiscal 2018 as permitted by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange was HK$75.0 million, the actual transaction
amount for Fiscal 2018 with Le Ying was HK$19.9 million
and the annual cap has been kept.

The transactions contemplated under the New Le Ying Sales
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Shun Cheong”) is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a controlling
shareholder and an executive Director of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 24 March 2017, Shun Cheong entered into a property
leasing agreement (the “Property Leasing Agreement”)
with Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(B&MLEAK (RY) ARAF) (“RMIA Shenzhen”),
a company incorporated under the laws of the People's
Republic of China and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which Shun Cheong agreed
to lease RMIA Shenzhen the Building located at Redstar
Community, Gongming Subdistrict Office of Shenzhen
Guangming District, Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China
(the “Premises”) for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Agreement, the rent was determined on
an arm'’s length basis with reference to (i) the market rent
of the Premises according to a fair rent letter issued by an
independent property valuer (the “Valuer"”); and (i) various
conditions of the Premises, including but not limited to
the location of the Premises as well as the management
services associated with the Premises. The Valuer assessed
the market rent of the Premises, based on the prevailing
market conditions and the rental level of similar properties in
the vicinity.
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The Property Leasing Agreement became effective on 1
April 2017 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period
of three years or (i) RMIA Shenzhen may terminate the
agreement before the expiry of its term by giving a six
months’ notice to Shun Cheong. RMIA Shenzhen may by
giving Shun Cheong a three months’ notice before the
expiry of the agreement, request for the renewal of the
lease.

The maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by RMIA
Shenzhen to Shun Cheong under the Property Leasing Agreement
for each of the years ending 31 March 2020 is RMB15.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$17.8 million).

The transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

MEREHHCR2017F4A184E
WMo R—EBRENAB=FEMHK
(i) RMIA Shenzhen A 7 175 5 HA BR &
A1 R A {E & 3 7N @ A AR L 1
% ° RMIA Shenzhen ] 7 17 52 & jm Al
ERAFESBL=@MARM  BRE
o

B E202063A31 B IE&FEE - RMIA
ShenzhenR EMER E R ER FEE2MEH
BEEAEAANREISIBETEERLS

b —

#178BHEBTT) °
MERERZE TRETHR S REBEETEH

BRSEBNER AL ANBEESRS A
PR B R 8 BT R BT RE0 -

FEREXZNFEEMN

H

B EMITE RO BN LB ERERS Y
BRZERS

.
FZE3

ik
oy

a) RAKENBE-REBBEPRIL

(o)  W—MRREHFOEEERETL - &

© REEEZFXHNWHH  RAF
B RAA R RERNSE IR -

RIE EHEAIE14A561% - AR RIXEEE
BEEEE  URBEEBZFZZEEAZE3000
S5 EAZ S BB B A B IS A R AN AR 7
B WRRESSHASBMANER 5
FE7405% B AR RIS ERER 5 H
IZERAD 15k E XTI ERE R PTE
TR - ZBMERFERERINEELE
ER#ERBELREERBE LAY -

FERE2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 49



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
47 to 49, have compiled with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did
the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EEREETBRAERARDF
SAEMARE EZE R R - EE
RO REEIZNERR AR

R2018F3A31H  EZRARAIHZEEITR
ABRAAR REBEEE(FERES K
EIEPIEXVER) BB RIEEF R EEH S
2GRN A AR ETFEFENERMA
ARE ETARRIMI SR 10ATH LT BT AES
EITHEFRHHIRETAESITHAE AR
REBWZFMORG - BRI R EEE
IR AR - FEIBAT ¢

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (%)

(RN T

BABESHE

EEnE EaME REEE (Bok)

Mr. Hung Yau Lit Beneficial owner; 891,000,000 72.78%
(also known as YY Hung) Interest in controlled corporation (long position)
HENERE (X B 2R ) e A EmfEB A ZESEAEER (5 E)
(Note)
(B3E)

Note: Amongst these 891,000,000 shares, 708,000,000 shares are beneficially
owned by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung is also the beneficial
owner of 183,000,000 shares.

Bi5E : 7E 1t£ 891,000,000 A% A% 5 & + 708,000,000 A%
f% 5 B8 Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited ( FR 288 8 ( X &0 28 ) %i%ﬁ%
B)EHHA - RIBFFRPERD - k4
148 A Regent Marvel Investment Holdmgs
Limited PR A BB h E A R - HAELETA
183,000,000l R ARV E B A ©
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EEERE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, according to the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors of the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

BRREE,EHE

EEMEE

201843 A31H *E%EM%&HH%MIJ”’
BIEARRAFHEENERLM  RESE
IEREEATA - TﬁlJAiEﬁiﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%?
REREITHABBRIN RAR BN 285
B HEEESAEMAREESREE
1EBIZEXVELSE2 3D EEL HEE ¢

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

Number of in the Company
Shares (%)

R NG g

BABED

ROBE (BZL)

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited  Beneficial owner 708,000,000 (L) 57.83%
BB A (Note 1)
(BaET)
Ms. Choy King Ngor Interest of spouse 891,000,000 (L) 72.78%
IRt [ (Note 2)
(MH5E2)
Cartica Corporate Governance Fund, Beneficial Owner 73,461,280 (L) 6.00%
LP; Cartica Capital Partners Master, EnEEA
LP; Cartica Investors,
LP; Cartica Investors I,
LP (managed by Cartica Management,
LLC)
(i Cartica Management, LLCE %)
L - Long Position L—f&
S — Short Position S—KAE
Notes: Bf3E
1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited is beneficially and wholly 1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the BRI (XBRHR)EEERREERE °
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent REEH L EE GG - 2EERR B Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited. Marvel Investment Holdings LimitedFT#48 &)

2. Ms. Choy King Ngor is the wife of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are interested
by Mr. Hung under Part XV of the SFO.

in AR -

2. BRBATRRBE(XERHE) RENE
T REBEESFEHEGOIEXVER - FRERR
HEL BRSO A -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors
were not aware that there is any other party (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who, as at the date of this
annual report, had an interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there has been
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued
shares up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 54 to 68 of this annual report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE
SHEET DATE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant events affecting the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries after the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018 requiring
disclosure in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

B ECETIBEEE SN 0 A2018F3A31H © &
EWTMBETMEMAL(LIERRAFES
FEEEITHA B)RAFE IR E BN AR R KD
KABRIRR D R B AR IR 7B H A B R AIEEXV
EE2 K3 IEVE AR AR A1 TR
AR 0 RARIEES MBS G0 53361548
EARRRAFEFENELMAEERAERS R

e o
NREFERETE

G EYNGE 3 COPNC LD S o0
2 EEAREAHLE - ARARETRE

THEB25% M ARKEE - & LMARAAR
T

TEER

%

ARRFRANEBELEERTRERKFR
HIEBAE68 A M R E ARE | —&

FERRHERSEE

BrARFHRATHEEESI - 72018F3 A31H A
Hi% o BER TR ERQ R SREEAN
BRRMBERATRIEENEMEAEE -

D

HZE2018F3 A31 B It FEMNGA M EHRE
KREFKBEFMEFAEZ  EHRA
ANREERITHBRRBF RS LRE - W HF
GERBRBEERETER - BRERE X
BERTAI BB AR R BB AZEAD A RS
RERAERITHREBEFAG LRE -

RREFE
FTIEREEHITE
R (X&)

A 201856 H28H

FERE2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 B3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
(the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Group’'s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2018.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business
growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has reviewed the Company's corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that save as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
applicable, the recommended best practices of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code"”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2018.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Hung
Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) as both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals.
The Board currently comprises five executive Directors
(including Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries being made with all Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2018.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, led by the Chairman, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), determines and monitors the overall strategy
and policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates the
performance of the Group, and supervises the management of
the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of
the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company's financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs. In addition, the Board has also
established four Board committees, namely the audit committee,
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee and
the executive committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Composition

The Board currently has eight Directors comprising five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"). The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang

Mr. Chen Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie

Ms. Tam Laiman
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The members of the Board represent a wide background and rich
industry experience with appropriate professional qualifications.
Please refer to the section headed "Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” of this annual report for
the profiles of the Directors. Save as disclosed in the section
headed "Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary”, the Directors have no other financial, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are served by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and have not been segregated as required under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the view that
such arrangement provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership to the Company and allowed for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

Independence of INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board had three
INEDs, representing more than one-third of the Board, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the three INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the INEDs are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independence judgements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing on 11 September 2015. Each of the INEDs
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 11 September 2015.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Members after his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam
Laiman will retire as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the
Articles of Association and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election. Their biographical details will be set out in the
circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders with the notice of
annual general meeting.
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Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis, and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by the business needs. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the Board convened 4 board meetings and one
annual general meeting (the “2017 AGM") to approve the final
and interim results announcements and financial reports, and to
discuss the overall strategy and monitor financial and operation
performance of the Company.

Attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings and
the 2017 AGM during the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in
the following table:

g3
EEOTHREERMETRETEE RN
HZE2018F3A31ALFE - EE2AMANT
REEGGZEUR—RREBEFAE (2017
EFRFBERS ) UL ERBRPEES
NERVBERE - W mEERERERAK
NEIMI R EERSE -

TR EEREENEE20185F3HA31H
HFRBFEFEERR2017FRRBFX

BIER

Number of

Board

meetings

attended

HEEEE

Name of Director SENE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Hung Yau Lit Paidiia 4/4

(also known as YY Hung) (XBHZE)

(Chairman and Chief Executive (TEFEESHTE)
Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony kERR A 4/4
(Chief Financial Officer) (BEHBE)
Mr. Liu Zhengiang BIEmEE 4/4
Mr. Chen Zhiping BREFEE 4/4
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEZEER)
Ms. Sze Shui Ling iR Lt 3/4
Independent BUHHTEE
non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai fEEE 4/4
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie oKzt 4/4
Ms. Tam Laiman EEN LT 4/4

Attendance

Attendance inthe Attendance

rate 2017 AGM rate
2AHFE2017F

HEE RREFAS HE=R

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

75 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
7

100 Yes 100
7

100 Yes 100
7
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) stipulating the composition of the Board,
reviewing the policies and measures on the Group's corporate
governance. Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Board's composition, the nomination committee of the Company is
satisfied that the requirement set out in the Board Diversity Policy
has been met.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development so as to equip themselves with the
latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal
and regulatory requirements, industry knowledge and managerial
skills in relation to the operation of the Group's business.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against liabilities
arising out of legal action on corporate activities. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, no claim had been made against the
Directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. These include: to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and to
review the Company's compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and executive committee, each of which has the defined written
terms of reference that will be reviewed and updated, where
necessary. Copies of minutes of all meetings are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Or
Ching Fai, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman.
The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Or Ching Fai who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

The audit committee is established to, without limitation, assist
the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the Group’s financial and accounting policies, to review the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the audit committee members met two times with the
Group's senior management and the external auditors to discuss
and review, among other things, the following matters:

° the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2017 and the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2018 to ensure full, complete and accurate disclosure in the
aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the accounting
standards and other legal requirement for presenting the
same to the Board for approval,

° the terms and remuneration for the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors to perform the
agreed-upon procedures on the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2017 and the audit of annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2018;

° the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services; and

o the overall effectiveness of the Company's internal control
and risk management systems.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Dr. Or Ching Fai s et
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (RS E
Ms. Tam Laiman BRIt
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REIR ARG

TRESERKEHEZESSHER -

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HE =R
2/2 100
2/2 100
2/2 100
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee comprises three members, namely
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (the chairman of the committee),
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) and Ms. Tam Laiman.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include (but not limited to) making recommendations and
proposals to the Board in respect of remuneration policies and
structure for Directors and senior management’'s remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration
committee held one meeting, in which it reviewed the existing
remuneration policies by reference with the market research
and gave recommendation of the remuneration packages and
performance-based bonus for executive Directors and senior
management to the Board for approval.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Ms. Tam Laiman

B EKmz L

il b

R (XA et

EREREE

FMEES

FEEem=aKBAEK DR AEEK
Wt (ZEGXRFE)  HHE(XEHRIEE)
FTENBBXLL

FHZEENEIZRAEEBE(ETRR)AE
ENRREEEFMOFHBR R RBRE
FERMUERERANES

MREZE2018F3A3NALEE  HFHEES
BIT—REH  RELESBHBAEEY
WEHHRE  THREEFSHENTE
EREREEENTHEBRERRRAEEN
TEARMER -

TREHSERKEHEZESSHERN

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HE =R
11 100
11 100
11 100

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the
code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
other members of the senior management by bands for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management

ERHFBEHINGRE M EIRERM 32 ©
BEoh - R EE AT RIS ANMECB.AE
HZE2018F3A31H EFEHMERERE
B BIZERE DN FEFTMEINAT ¢

Number of
senior management

by bands SREEERSRE D EB EREERE A
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 75#1,000,001 702 % 1,500,0007T 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 75#1,500,001 702 %#2,000,0007T 3
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 75#2,000,001 702 %#2,500,0007T 1
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing
Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as
YY Hung) is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
(but not limited to) reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on structure, size composition and diversity of the
Board, to oversee the identification and assessment of potential
board candidates, to provide oversight and direction in respect
of the succession planning for Directors and to determine the
composition of Board committees.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the nomination committee held one meeting which dealt
with the following matters:

° review of the Board composition and structure;

° review of independence of INEDs; and

° review of re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (RS E
Ms. Tam Laiman BEN Tt

R (R ABMIEZR) et

REZES

REZBEM=RKEEK 2RI RHHE
(XEHRR)2E  BEKZLTREEX
Tt o HHBE(REBHRBR) EERREEER
EEK
REZBENIEZRERFBE(ETRM)BE
BEEGHRE  ARRRRZ T LA
EEgRHEBEE ZBVENTRERE
EEREA  REFNEIFIRRES
KIS ARETERLZEGMAMK -

REZE2018F3A31MHIEFENEEARE
BE RREEEHRT—RERUEENT
E i

o  BIETYMMEMKER

o  BFEBMIEMITEREMNBIE K&
o ERRIEEEALEERE-

TRESERKEHEZEGSHER -

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HE =R
A 100
A 100
A 100

Executive Committee

The Board has set up the executive committee on 30 November
2015. The executive committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Board shall be the
chairman of the committee.

The primary responsibilities of the executive committee include,
but not limited to, advising and assisting the Board in formulating
policies, monitoring the performance of management in carrying
out and implementing the policies laid down by the Board for the
Group, and handling and dealing with the bank-related transactions
and matters.

HITEE®

BEEEMN2015F11 AB0BEKIHITEES -
WITLZECHARAREBNITESMAR - M
EEeXRAUAZZESMNER -

HITZEENIERASBE(ETRR) L
FRRAERSRHEEALETHEY B
EEBENATRETHEEEALERRE
RIBERMRIR - DA BEIE MR SRITIARI R
HREH
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages PricewaterhouseCoopers as external
auditor. PricewaterhouseCoopers is responsible for auditing
and forming an independent opinion on the Group's annual
consolidated financial statements.

The audit committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a planning report from the external
auditor confirming its independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of the external auditor to consider
the scope of its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and retention of the external auditor.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
external auditor of the Company, are set out below:

Friz AR %

Services rendered

Audit services
Non-audit services

BRI
BRI

ST T

SRR BEM

ARRIREERBKEEEEBARINE
TZEEN - BEBKEGTMELMARES
REENFREEWHERE LU IR EE L
ER -

BERZBeENRERINSZBE BT
REBME  URBZBENERIE - 2B &
SERERIMSRBENE B EREL BT
HEEBMENRBIRE - WEINSZBEAR
REBTEH  UEREWRERE - AKiSH
HAriR e IEEZ IR () EiE B E
% - BZZ BTN ZEE N R ER
BEEEAEFSRIES

1 B4R 5 B

HZE2018F3A31HILEFE © LA FSNE
ZEAM R ok B R RSB 5 AT IR LA AR T
B TER B AR T

Fees paid/payable
Bft EAER

HK$'000
BT T

2,700
735
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports, other price sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and to report to
regulators as well as to disclose information required pursuant
to statutory requirements. When the Directors become aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and
prominently set out and discussed in detail in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities and opinion of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018 is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 116
to 122 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Control

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for
establishing and overseeing the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems has been properly conducted. The main features
of this system, which continues to operate, were described in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has already reviewed its risk management
framework and processes and has implemented relevant
measures resulting from this exercise that aim to enhance
its framework and processes. In particular, the Company has
developed, approved and implemented a risk management
system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The terms of reference of the audit
committee have included its responsibility for an effective system
of internal control and risk management.

B EREFZ
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WRERMER  HIRAEHRE1162122
BRBIZEAN®RE -

o B T B I P R B A

R B B R N EREE AR

REERESRARNR YN ZREARE
= EFeRARERULEBAARRR
EERABEERGNEE - LHERZER
AR B IR R N EBEEAE R AT o It R AT
SEEE  HEX BN ALEERREN

ARE DR R EIRIERNIEFIL B
MR EEARCEIE R AR FF © B AIE - &
RAEHIE - fEREE-EBERATHRE
REEBRAIERMHHNRAREERSR -
BERZEBeNBERED HBPEHEERA
EERERERRGNBE

064 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # ¥ fREIRGZ) AR A



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

Risk Governance Structure R ERRE
The Company's governance structure for is risk management RARRBRERRROERREHINMNT

system is shown below. Each party has well defined and detailed EHEAEPREFANABREE -
roles and responsibilities.

Board of Directors
EEW

Oversight Body
EEEHE

Audit Committee
BEZEEEY

Internal Audit Department
MEDE AT AP

Executive C
HTE

Risk Management
Steering Committee
[\ B B IR 17 98 /N AR

(]
(2]
c
[
“—
[
(a]
Y
(=]
(]
=
-
°
c
]
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Risk Assessment Methodology

The Company’'s methodology for its risk assessment comprises
of four core stages (i.e. risk identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting). These processes are performed at least once a
year to address changes in the Company’s business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls such as financial, operational and compliance controls.
In addition, the Board has appointed an international accountancy
firm to review the internal control systems of the Company on an
on-going basis. The review covered the expenditure, production
management and fixed assets management of certain key
subsidiaries of the Company.

Our Responsibility

Our Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while management is responsible to design and
implement an internal controls system to manage risks. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls system.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied and confident with the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems currently put in place for the
Company.

Communication of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Company and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Company to make the
appropriate decisions and responses to mitigate or address
any risk event, relevant information on the incident needs to
be communicated by and to the right functions and individuals,
completely and accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, a framework has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS g RAER
The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures ARAREERLANFERBERANERF - FAE
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their BT S S E HI5 15 R N T E R
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with BARNRBREDE - RIBABEIEMAIAR
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant AARHBERELRETF  BREZH(HPa
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy, AT

among others, the following rights:

1. Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put

forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
with two months after the deposit of such requisition at the
Company'’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower A, Regent
Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association once a valid requisition is received.

2. Propose a person for election as a Director:
As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as director”
under the section headed “Shareholders rights” of the
Company’s website at www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

3. Put forth enquiries to the Company:
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company's Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower
A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing and constructive
relationship with the shareholders, the Company has compiled
a shareholders communication policy and established various
channels of communication with the shareholders, such as
publication of interim reports and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in
a timely manner. The shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the Company’s annual general meetings where the Chairman and
members of different Board committees are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and exchange views with them.

Financial and other information in relation to the Group
has been published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’'s website at
www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kwan Chuen who is the company secretary of the
Company, reports directly to the Board and is responsible for,
inter alia, providing updated and timely information to all Directors
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Law has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has also dedicated great effort towards protecting the
environment and supporting society. For details, please refer to
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report under the “Corporate Social Responsibility” subsection.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has not made any changes to its Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group is pleased to issue its second environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") report (the “Report”), with
an aim to disclose the Group's institutional development and
performance in respect of fulfilling environmental and social
responsibilities for Fiscal 2018. On the basis of the ESG
report for Fiscal 2017, the Report has added the disclosure
of environmental performance data, in line with the updated
regulatory requirements as well as the expectation from
stakeholders and the public for greater publicity of ESG
information.

Scope of Reporting

The Report covers the manufacturing business of the
Group's Shenzhen and Vietnamese factories from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018, with some content dating back to
previous years.

Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared strictly according to the
requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide") set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The Group assessed the materiality
of its ESG subjects under such principles of preparing ESG
reports, and determined the Report's disclosure priorities
and the Group's management objectives for sustainable
development in relation to the areas of concern to its
stakeholders.

Source of Information

The information disclosed in the Report comes from the
Group's official documents, statistical reports and relevant
public information.
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CORPORATE ESG GOVERNANCE

ESG Philosophy

As an advocate and practitioner of the sustainable
development philosophy, the Group actively manages
the environmental and social impact of its manufacturing
and operational activities while expanding its business,
seeking to deliver economic, environmental and social
benefits in a continuous and synergetic manner. The Group
pursues streamlined and creative production, and impose
strict control over product quality to develop high-quality
products; its operation remains in compliance with laws and
regulations, with business ethics well observed; staff care
is delivered genuinely, with their lawful rights and interests
safeguarded; and attention is paid to manage supply chains
in a sustainable fashion, as the Group takes an active part in
its communities’ development and construction in a bid to
create long-term value for stakeholder groups and join hands
with them to realize sustainable development.

ESG Management Structure

A robust ESG management structure provides the basis
for practicing the philosophy of sustainable development.
Such a structure has already been established at the Group,
which spans from the Board to functional departments
with clear responsibilities for each level, to ensure that the
environmental and social responsibilities of the company are
integrated into its management decision-making and daily
operation.
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The Board of the Group, responsible for ESG affairs, raises TEEEFGHRE HEREBA
guidance and suggestions on ESG management by timely B BAKSRRT EANSE BB
reviewing and assessing the Group's strategies. As the HESGERRLIEEER - 7 REHR
central department on ESG affairs, the department for EHBIERESCEB MM ELFT  BE
sustainable development coordinates and oversees all the Wi BEEESEPIESGREERR - I
departments in fulfilling ESG responsibilities, and organizes BB HEEFEESGHRE - BRI
the preparation of the annual ESG report. Respective EREBR#MITEFM  AEZERELREKE
functional departments, as the actual executors, are MEEE - WinBhRHEFEESGIHRE
responsible for implementing the Group's relevant policies HIFTAL o

and providing materials for the annual ESG report.

“
ESG Leadership
The Board of Directors
BE HERERAEEER
BExg
7
-

ESG Coordination
Department for Sustainable Development
B - HBREARERET

ATREHE R R AR

"
’H
ESG Execution
Respective Functional Departments
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION AND
ESG MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

Stakeholder communication and engagement is an integral
part of sustainable corporate development. The Group
leverages a normalized communication mechanism to timely
inform the stakeholders of its operation, actively learns to
and responds to their appeal and suggestions, and regularly
review its environmental and social impact, all in an effort
to safeguard and cement the friendly relations of mutual
help and trust with stakeholders and jointly attain the goal of

sustainable development.

The Group has the following stakeholder communication

mechanism in place:

Stakeholder

@A
Staff

8T

Customers

P

Shareholders and
investors

R EE

Engagement Channel
SHRE

Staff training

Staff activities

Staff complaint channel
8T

BTEE

BTHFRE

Regular customer assessment
Daily communication
Customer satisfaction survey

B P E#RHE
AEEBER
EFMEERE

Annual shareholder meetings
Annual reports and announcements
Group website
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Expectation and Appeal

B BEZR R

Human rights and labor rights
Health and safety

Equality and career development
AREHEA B

fERET 2

FERBEER

Product quality and R&D

Customer information protection
Environmental and social
responsibilities in relation to supply
chains

EmE = i

BFESRE
HEGEREETEET

Continuous profitability

Standard corporate governance
Corporate transparency and reputation
FHERTREN

REBEEER
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Stakeholder

ERA
Government and
regulatory authority

B BB B R

Suppliers and partners

HERRAER

Industrial associations

(NES 34

Local communities

Bt

Engagement Channel

SHRE

Daily communication and reporting
Timely tax payment in full amount
Supervision and inspection
H#®EmERR

T b5 R RN

ZREE MRS

Admission review
Regular assessment
Exchanges and visits
EANEZ

TEHIRHA

RimE &R

Engagement in industrial exchanges
Developing industrial standards
Engagement in industrial exhibitions
DEITEZN

BREITERE

DEITERE

In-kind donation

Engagement in public welfare
activities

Involvement in environmental
protection

MENRE)

EX YN D)

#EFIRR

Expectation and Appeal
B BZR R

Policy execution

Tax payment according to law
Operation compliance
BERHTT

HOERNTR

EREE

Fair competition

More mutual trust and benefit
Sharing cooperation opportunities
NEFF

it S E A

HEAEHME

Greater industrial integration
Business integrity and ethics
Greater industrial development
TR

[EEL AL EL

HEETTRER

Care for disadvantaged groups
Greater social development

Protection of ecological environment

RS E e
HEH SRR
REEREIRIR
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ESG Materiality Assessment 2. ESGEEEEMIIM4

The Group has followed the substantive principles of AEEBREESCREBENTE ER
preparing ESG reports, and conscientiously assessed the 8l - REHRAMFHESGHREEE
materiality of the ESG subjects for this fiscal year. The MRFE T - KBEASBERERER
content of such subjects has been reviewed and analyzed o REFXFESGHEANFHLER &7
comprehensively, taking into account the status-quo of ARBBERR - TEDEERRA
the Group's development and with reference to the ESG 2EBEMIL DT AREEBESGH B
subject assessment results for previous years, macro-policy A W EHENEZ T -

direction and industrial trends, which led to the sequence of
the subjects based on their materiality.

Macro context of
corporate development
TEEREBESR

Matrix analysis

ST

Corporate strategies and
operational emphases
NGIE S
Sequence of
ESG subjects

ESG Reporting Guide ESG subjects based on

ESGHREiE3)| ESG##RE materiality
ESG#RE

B2

Substantive subjects among
industry peers
RITEE =RE Management

discussion

L L T e P T = e e P
*

ERER

Stakeholder analysis
s ADH
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3. Assessment Results of Subject Materiality
The Group comprehensively analyzed the environmental and
social impact of its business development, and assessed
the materiality of ESG subjects by taking into account
the matters of concern to stakeholders. Accordingly, a
materiality matrix concerning the ESG subjects for Fiscal
2018 is worked out and stated as follows:

ESG Materiality Assessment Matrix for Fiscal 2018

HEESGEEHET

s19pjoyaxeIS By} 0} Ajeusiely

o Business Development
CHEREE ¢ BEE * KER
Very Important Less

Important Important

7 Preventing child and forced labor 15
PIEET REEAAE

8 Management of energy consumption and carbon emission 16
BRI E R Less

J Water resources and sewage treatment '”]Bma”t 17
KERRLTER RER

10 Energy saving, emissions reduction and green operation 18

Important ERRE R EAR B iE
BZ " Protection of intellectual property rights

HHERRE

12 Anti-corruption and compliance management
RERESHER

13 Staff remuneration packages and benefits
B THMSBRET

14 Supplier admission and assessment

G IN R

BEERMAEER
AEBEEADTEBERORRML
BERE  HAaRmABIEE R
ESGHEMEREE » UK20188
ESGrEEE MBI T

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

RERRTEHE

Community investment
HERE

Waste disposal
BEEMERE

Environmental and labor management performance of
suppliers

HERRGES TEERR
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In respect of the sequence of subject materiality, results
suggest that the subjects of top concern to stakeholders
include labor rights, product quality and R&D, customer
satisfaction, as well as staff health and training. During
Fiscal 2018, the Group imposed strict control over product
quality, strengthened craftsmanship innovation, and
protected the lawful rights of its staff. Based on compliance
with the environmental regulations of the place of operation,
more proactive environmental measures have been adopted
such as energy efficiency benchmarking and environmental
system certification, to reduce the environmental impact of
operation.

The Group will apply the results of its materiality
assessment to reviewing the areas of ESG work that
require improvement and providing more comprehensive
and targeted response in the Report, so as to improve the
quality of the report.

GROWING ALONG WITH THE STAFF

The Group strictly complies with the employment-related
laws and regulations of the place of its business operations
as well as international labor provisions, adheres to
the human resources management principle of “talent
selection, cultivation, employment and retainment”, and
has established a robust system for human resources
management. All these efforts aim to provide the staff with
a fair, transparent and pleasant working environment and
establish harmonious employment relations.

Employment Management

Regarding talents as its most valuable assets, the Group
proactively attracts and retains outstanding personnel from
different fields to meet its development demand. To do
that, the Group strives to provide its staff with competitive
remuneration and benefits on the market, ensure equal
opportunity for employment, respect staff diversity and
safeguard their lawful rights and interests. During Fiscal
2018, the Group complied with employment-related laws
and regulations in strict terms, with no occurrence of
violation during the reporting period.

FEHE
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Talent introduction and retainment

Well aware that the core competitiveness of a company
is propped up by an outstanding work force, the Group
has been introducing excellent personnel through campus
recruitment, intermediaries, websites and internal
referral continuously. The Group also offers exceptional
remuneration packages and develop a positive and
harmonious culture to maintain the stability of its work
force.

The Group’s Shenzhen factory has established long-term
partnerships with a number of domestic universities and
colleges that train relevant talents, in a bid to provide its
team with fresh personnel continuously. On 9 October
2017, the Shenzhen factory officially launched its 2018
campus recruitment program “Youth and Motivation”, with
information sessions held in multiple universities such as
Xi'an Polytechnic University and Wuhan Textile University
where students were introduced to the Group's culture
and philosophy. By doing so, the Group seeks to recruit
outstanding fresh graduates as a strong reserve force to
serve for the Group's future development.

Picture: Information Session at Xi'an Polytechnic University
T ARIRASZRETHE

Apart from that, a long-term incentive scheme is in place
at the Group’'s Shenzhen factory, where workers are
encouraged to introduce exceptional talents to the Group
and are rewarded for recommending talents. Should the
recommended individual pass the technical assessment
and interview, get employed and work for a certain period
of time, the staff member that recommended the individual
would be rewarded. The scheme is designed to motivate
members of the staff to mobilize their social networks to
bring a continuous stream of talents to the company.

1)
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REBEBRABFNETHMOBRT L
ENROBFEN - ZFR - AEER
BRBRERE - ATHN - BIES
U AEHENETASEBBAT -
AEETEEREBENTHEE
BEEE  MEHEECETRA
AMEEAT BRRIREN

AEEFRY TR E 2 KB A H AR
BV TRBGIERE  HEAREKEH
AFTEM& - 201710898 » J®IIT
MIE R EN2018E ETBE#E) 1 IR
EREER  EEZIRAS  ®HE
G AEEZIREREASARREE
#HT BRARZ2MEELAEENX
{LHEBS  BEEFNEESS A
AEERKZBERBERENIE

Picture: Issuing Employment Invitations to Excellent Students
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In addition, the Group has set up the “Long-term Service
Award"”, with certificates and bonus issued to those who
have worked for the Group for 10 years, 15 years, 20 years
and 25 years, as a gesture to thank and motivate every such
staff member for his/her loyalty and contribution. On 29
January 2018, the Group announced a list of award-winning
staff for 2018, including 228 winners of the “10-year Service
Award"”, 172 winners of the “15-year Service Award”, 19
winners of the “20-year Service Award” and 8 winners of
the “25-year Service Award”.

As of 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 36,993
employees. With fast business development, the Group
witnesses a steady year-on-year increase in the number of
employees.

Number of Staff of the Group
AEEETAH

40,000
35,000
0,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000

™ Fiscal 2016 .
201681

™ Fiscal 2017
201781
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Staff Information for Fiscal 2018

Percentage (%)

By gender
=R

By age
RER

By rank
REAR

By employment type
RIERER

By region
it =

Total number of staff
BTHBAH

201881 F B T &I
Number of Staff
BT AZ(A)

Male
Es 13,240
Female
Loq 23,753
= 30 years old
30BREIA T 21,540
31 to 40 years old
31-405% 11,913
41 to b0 years old
41-505% 3,407
= 50 years old
50853 A £ 133
General staff
T@ET 32,732
Middle management
hEER 4,080
Senior management
SEEE 181
Formal
EX 34,128
Intern
BE 2,865
Mainland
R A 15,317
Hong Kong
B 339
Vietnam
W 21,337
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Given the characteristics of the Group’s business, female
staff accounted for a considerable proportion. The Group
stresses on providing a good platform for the professional
growth of its female staff. For both middle and senior
management positions, over 50% are assumed by women.

Distribution of Middle

by Gender

BEEERMAA

The Group has a standard management procedure for staff
departure. The Group timely arranges interviews with staff
who have an inclination to leave. The interview is designed
to learn about the staff’s work and living conditions, motives
for departure, as well as the possibility and conditions
for retainment, so as to help the staff address difficulties
and retain outstanding personnel. Each week, the general
manager's office of every business department would
conduct a staff departure review, in which the department
head reports on staff departure analysis to timely identify
room for improvement and retain talents for the Group.

Performance Appraisal and Promotion

The Group has the Performance Appraisal Management
System in place, to comprehensively assess the work
performance of staff in the principle of objectivity and
fairness and based on an established set of performance
targets. The Group stresses on performance-related
communication. Following performance appraisal,
department heads would arrange a performance-related
interview to timely learn about the staff's difficulties at
work and assist them to improve work approaches and
performance.

The Group strives to build a platform for staff members to
realize their ambition and put their talent to use. To meet
the diverse development demands among the staff, the
Group has designed promotion paths in three dimensions
(management, professional and technical).

I%

ion of Senior M.

5 HERERES
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Positi by Gender
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In addition, the Group provides its staff with opportunities to
compete for internal positions. Such competitive recruitment
takes place in the principle of being “fair, just and
transparent”, where the skill and quality of staff members
are comprehensively assessed during qualification check,
written test, practical operation, and comprehensive quality
appraisal. The procedures aim to facilitate the selection of
outstanding talents, widen and optimize the professional
development channels for staff members, and improve the
effective allocation of talents for the Group’s work force.

Remuneration and Benefits

In addition, The Group improves its remuneration incentive
system continuously. On top of basic salary, merit pay
and year-end bonus are issued to recognize the staff's
diligence and contribution and encourage them to improve
work performance. In addition, the Group would adjust
remuneration as appropriate with reference to such
external factors as the price level at the place of operations
and average industrial remuneration, to ensure that staff
members are remunerated at a competitive market level,
teams are consolidated and outstanding talents can be
recruited.

The Group provides social insurance and public provident
fund contribution to its staff pursuant to the laws and
regulations of the place of operations, where staff are
guaranteed with statutory holidays. In the meantime, a
people-oriented care mechanism is in place, under which
the Group prepares gifts for its staff during such holidays
as the Mid-Autumn Festival, in addition to a range of staff
activities and tours to generate a greater sense of belonging
to the company among its staff.

Meanwhile, the Group seeks to ensure the quality of life of
its staff after work. Staff are offered convenient services
in their life, covering clothing, food, accommodation and
transportation.

Picture: Staff Activity at the Shenzhen Factory
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Picture: Staff Canteen at the Vietnamese Factory
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Caring for the Staff in Daily Life

Regina Miracle Summer Camp

During the summer break of Fiscal 2018, the Shenzhen
factory organized a one-month summer camp for a total of
168 children of its staff. The summer camp offered such
specialty courses as Chinese, math, English, arts, handcraft
and Latin dance, enabling children to bring full play to their
ability to think as well as creativity, learn and make friends
in a happy atmosphere. This also saved the staff from any
trouble at home.
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Picture: A Group Photo of the Staff's Children at the Summer Picture: Summer Camp Graduation Ceremony

Camp
B: 2RESEEITRAY

Children’s Education Allowance

To ensure better education and development prospect for
the children of staff who work with us for a long time, the
Shenzhen factory provides education allowance to fund the
education of such children. For those who have worked
for 10 years and above for the Group (regardless of their
position), an annual allowance of RMB2,500 to 15,000
can be granted to each of their children who attend senior
secondary school or higher education.

A total of 1,908 children of our staff have been supported
by the education allowance since its inception in 2006,
which has reached an accumulated amount of over RMB6.5
million.

Motorcycle Training Courses

The Vietnamese factory works with the local drivers’ training
center based on staff demand, to help nearly 1,000 staff
members to learn driving a motorcycle by sending them
to weekly training sessions. Apart from that, to boost staff
exchange and interaction, the Vietnamese factory hosted
its first Regina Miracle football match in June 2017, which
received active response from the staff there.
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Staff Training

Staff knowledge, skill and creativity are the source of
success for a company. With that in mind, the Group
attaches great importance to developing its work force,
with a diverse and omni-bearing mechanism of training and
education in place to nurture such professionals that fit
into the Group’s business development. The mechanism
aims to fully tap into the staff’'s potential and help them in
their professional development. In Fiscal 2018, the Group's
Shenzhen and Vietnamese factory areas trained a total of
70,701 individuals, providing them with a total of 101,670
hours of training.

The Group has devised the Vitality Nurturing Scheme, a
training scheme targeting fresh graduates. During the one-
year training period, such graduates will receive guidance
from the HR department, business departments (for
intensive training), cross-business department practice by
rotation and one-on-one tutoring, so that they can quickly
integrate into the Group and acquire the skills for work.
The HR department of the Group would keep optimizing its
training model for new colleagues, to cater to the demand
for talents in line with corporate development.

To improve the staff's integrated working skills, the Group's
Shenzhen factory offers a variety of training courses,
encouraging all the factory staff to enroll. Meanwhile,
external lecturers are engaged to offer monthly on-the-
job academic education for all staff members, to help
them improve their level of education and pave the way
for professional development. To enhance the training of
reserve talents, relevant courses are provided for the staff to
improve management and communication capabilities and
prepare for management posts.
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Picture: Staff in Training
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The Group's Shenzhen factory started to develop its internal
lecturers in April 2011. In Fiscal 2018, to select and train
internal lecturers in a more professional and targeted
manner, the Group has proactively launched its internal
lecturer selection and training program, RM Excellent
Course Development & Top Lecturer Training Camp,
engaging experienced key staff to work as lecturers. The
Group offered four lecturer training classes in Fiscal 2018,
while successfully developing high-quality lecturer training
courses. Step by step, an internal training system has been
established that centers on an outstanding lecturer team
and systematic training courses, laying the foundation for
sustainable development of training.
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Picture: RM Training Camp for Developing Excellent Courses Picture: A Group Photo of the Competition for Top Lecturer
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Case Study: “Regina Miracle - Innovation Drive”,
Innovation Study Trips to Guangzhou and Shenzhen
Jointly designed by the Group and professional
training firms, “Regina Miracle — Innovation Drive”
is a representative training program for the Group's
management that offers innovation study trips to Shenzhen
and Guangzhou. This year, the program comprised two
phases, which took place in April and September 2017
respectively. Over 200 members of the Group’s senior
management were selected to engage in cross-industry
innovation benchmarking on the basis of previous in-depth
interviews and surveys, covering manufacturing upgrade,
lean production, team management and corporate culture.
In addition, the study trips incorporated case studies and
experience sharing from industry experts, internal discussion
and exchange among participants, as well as conclusion and
reflection to solve and transform problems by implementing
and utilizing experience. Meanwhile, through the execution
and promotion of the training program, the company's
improvement effectiveness is served as the assessing
criteria of the program, with personal and program
benchmarks established and promoted across the company,
to further enhance execution and corporate culture by way
of continuous improvement among all the staff.
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Occupational Health and Safety

Highly attentive to production safety and staff health, the
Group continues to work on safety-related institutional
development and daily management, seeking to strictly
control safety risks. In Fiscal 2018, Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (B&EZIRAKCFY) BR
‘A7@]) and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (2 2 R1K
GEIN AR AT, both being the subsidiaries of the Group,
passed the certification of OHSAS18001 Safety Operation
Management System.

Safety Operation Management System

With a well-established safety management structure in
place, the Group is active in carrying out the responsibility
system for production safety targets and has signed a
letter of production safety responsibility with each business
department. Led by the management of the Group, the
security department, the production department and the
security center have joined hands to form an integrated
safety inspection team, responsible for the supervision and
inspection of daily production safety. Every workshop has a
part-time security commissioner to promote, supervise and
guide the workshop in relation to production safety.

The Group has prepared the “Work Plan on Production
Safety” with clear safety targets to regulate the
management of production safety. Multiple training
sessions are provided on safety knowledge each month, to
beef up the safety awareness and self-protection capability
among the staff. The integrated inspection team carried out
integrated safety inspections every half month, with timely
supervision and follow-ups on the rectification of safety
hazards. Safety management meetings are convened every
six months, to timely report and summarize the work on
safety management and to determine safety management
priorities for the next period.
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Fire Drills and Emergency Management

In order to effectively prevent the risk of fire and safety
accidents, the Group has formulated a contingency plan
for fire accidents and natural disasters, which specifies
the duties and procedures of each department. Each year,
the Group conducts regular emergency drills against fire
safety, lift accidents and work-related injuries to strengthen
the staff's response capabilities. The safety center of the
Group's Shenzhen factory has established a volunteer
fire brigade equipped with two professional fire engines,
coupled with regular fire drills.

For Fiscal 2018, the Group held a number of fire drills for
all staff, who effectively improved their fire escape and
response capabilities through the drills on fire evacuation
and fire fighting as well as the explanation on how to use
and store firefighting equipment.

Picture: Drill with Firefighting Equipment
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Picture: Drill on Emergency Escape
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Physical and Mental Health of the Staff

To preserve the staff's occupational health, the sustainable
development department conducts annual testing on
occupational hazards, noise, dust and chemicals and
announces its results to the public, as part of the efforts
to comply with the national production safety standard for
the manufacturing sector. The department also distributes
labor protection gears to the staff and carries out weekly
inspections on whether the staff wear such protection
gears. In addition, staff are offered health checks at the
time of induction, transfer and departure, to actively prevent
occupational diseases.

The Group provides a special leisure and recreation area for
its staff to enjoy leisure time, do physical exercise, enrich
life in spare time and relieve work pressure. Meanwhile,
Regina Miracle Library offers a wide range of books, creating
the condition for staff members to learn and improve
themselves.

Picture: Table-tennis Tables
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Picture: Regina Miracle Library
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Picture: Fitness Equipment
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Picture: Staff Health Check at Vietnamese Factory
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Case: Regina 100K Award Competition — “Happy We-Cool
Run for All” (22 &) £ 5 FEi)

A contest named “Happy We-Cool Run” took place at the
Group's Shenzhen factory from 22 January to 4 March
2018. During the contest, members of the staff used
WeChat to record the number of footsteps they walked
or ran every day. Those who reached a threshold could
claim corresponding awards, to encourage them to actively
engage in sports activities and to meet life and work
challenges with better physical and mental state.

On 16 September 2017, the Group officially launched the
Employee Assistance Program (EAP). Under the EAP, the
Group has established the “Window of the Heart” studio
within the factory area, where staff members are offered
professional counseling and training by an EAP taskforce
formed by their colleagues who have national psychologist
qualification. The program is designed to help the staff
address mental issues arising from work pressure and tense
interpersonal relationship, and be happier.

Below are the data concerning the Group’s occupational
health-related performance in Fiscal 2018:

Occupational Safety and Health Data
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Number of staff with work-related injuries
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Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries
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Number of work-related fatalities
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After the occurrence of a work-related injury, the Group
would actively respond to the incident in strict accordance
with the “Procedure for Handling Work-related Injuries” to
ensure proper rescue and treatment for the staff concerned;
such work-related injuries would be identified and verified
subsequently, to ensure the salary, benefits and time of
recovery for the injured staff. By doing so, the Group is
committed to protecting the legal rights of the injured staff.
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Protection of Labor Rights

The Group strictly complies with national and local
employment laws and regulations, and carries out standard
and well-regulated human resources management to
effectively protect the staff’ rights.

lllegal employment of child labor is expressly prohibited
under the Group’'s recruitment system. During the
recruitment process, the human resources department shall
check the age on the identification card to ensure that the
candidate has reached the statutory working age. An archive
shall be built for keeping the personnel information and age
record for all the staff, with regular review of identification
proofs of the existing staff to early detect false identification.

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
of the place of business operations and forbids any form of
forced labor. The Group shall not force its staff to stay in the
company by way of indebtedness and detaining documents.
Nor shall it limit the staff's freedom of movement. Their
human rights and labor rights are protected with concrete
efforts. The Group also strictly manages overtime work to
ensure reasonable rest hours for the staff, advocating an
emphasis on work-life balance among staff members to
maintain a healthy, positive attitude and good spirit.

Diversity and Equal Engagement

The Group strives to cultivate a corporate culture of
equality and diversity and to create a harmonious and
fair work atmosphere. We protect our staff from unequal
treatment due to gender, age, nationality, race, religion,
family and health, and forbid any form of discrimination.
The Group highly regards the staff's opinions. Various staff
communication channels are in place, such as interview
with the human resources manager, tea parties with senior
management and BBS forum, to encourage staff members
to raise suggestions or opinions and help them to address
problems in work and life. Meanwhile, we continue to
improve the democratic management system to protect the
staff’s right to know, participate and monitor.
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The Group pays special attention to the female staff's
rights. Female staff in pregnancy or lactation are provided
with statutory leave for maternity check-ups, pregnancy
leave and lactation leave in compliance with law, with no
arrangement for work that might harm the mother-and-child
health to protect their safety during pregnancy. The Group's
factory area has a breastfeeding room furnished with sofas,
baby tables, washrooms, baby supplies and parental books
for free use by such staff. Each individual sofa is equipped
with curtains to offer a private breastfeeding space for each
mother and the room for exchanging parenting experience.
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Picture: Various Facilities at Breastfeeding Rooms
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The Group works on enhancing democratic management
of the company to enable the staff to work in a decent
manner and fully engage them with a positive attitude.
In particular, a staff representative congress has been
established at the Group’s Shenzhen factory, where a total
of four workers’ democratic meetings were held. The staff
representative congress held its election in December 2017,
with 20 staff representatives emerging from open election.
Their information was published across the factory. The
organization serves to reflect the opinions of staff members
and acts as an effective communication platform for them.

Picture: Private Breastfeeding Rooms for Mothers
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JOINT SUCCESS WITH BUSINESS
PARTNERS

Committed to its mission of “creating first-class products,
delivering industry value and fulfilling social responsibility”,
the Group sticks to its philosophy of creating value for
customers through strict control over product quality and
safety, close cooperation with suppliers and customers, as
well as research and development of innovative products
that cater to market demand, all in a bid to achieve joint
success with business partners.

Supplier Management

The Group's suppliers principally provide such production
materials as sponges, fabrics and supplementary materials.
To ensure product quality and safety, the Group has a strict
supplier admission and assessment mechanism in place,
coupled with a hierarchical management and renewal
system for qualified suppliers. By enforcing clear and fair
procedures and standards, the Group seeks to deepen its
strategic cooperation with suppliers continuously, while
effectively controlling the potential risks in supply chains and
optimizing supply chain management.
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Supplier Admission Assessment

The Group has formulated and implemented its procurement
and supplier admission system and work guidelines, under
which potential suppliers shall undergo comprehensive
admission assessment in relation to operational qualification
and conditions, product quality and price, innovation
capability and integrated management. On top of that,
the new development department would test the sample
products from such suppliers to ensure that they meet
the Group's requirements on production quality. The
documentation of such sample products would also be
checked, such as the quality inspection report, the Oeko-
tex Standard 100 Certificate'’ and the Restrict Substance
Agreement?, to make sure that the products comply with the
qualification standards of the place of business operations,
customers and the Group. Those who pass the assessment
will become qualified suppliers.

Continuous Supervision of Suppliers

The procurement department organizes the departments of
development, experiment and quality management to assess
the suppliers on a monthly and quarterly basis. Suppliers
are scored in terms of quality, price, delivery punctuality and
service performance, which will form a supplier assessment
report. Based on the score, the Group classifies its suppliers
into five grades (from A to E), ranging from excellent
suppliers to unqualified ones. Excellent suppliers will receive
more orders from the Group, whereas average performers
will be placed under guidance and supervision and the
unqualified ones will be eliminated.

1 Prepared by Oeko-Tex Association, Oeko-Tex Standard 100
prescribes the limit on the amount of hazardous substances in
yarns, fibers and various textiles. All product materials shall meet
the standard limit before being granted the Oeko-Tex Standard
100 Certificate. So far, Oeko-Tex Standard 100 has been the most
widely used eco-label for textile products.

2 Restrict Substance refers to the substances listed on the Restricted
Substances List by American Apparel & Footwear Association
(AAFA). The list includes the chemicals and other substances
contained in products that are restricted by governments of various
countries by law or regulation, including formaldehyde, insecticide,
heavy metals, flame retardants, etc.
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Joint Development with Suppliers

The Group actively maintains friendly partnership with its
suppliers, communicating with them regularly through
mutual visits and phone calls to enhance such collaborative
relations. The Group is also active in sharing industry
information, such as product trends, with its suppliers to
jointly seek materials in line with market demand and deliver
mutual benefit and common success.

Creating Values for Customers

The Group understands that customer satisfaction provides
the foundation for a company to establish its foothold.
With that in mind, the Group engages itself in the product
development process for customers, with collaborative
experiment and innovation to raise the efficiency of the
process from R&D to product launch. Strict control is also
imposed on product quality, to improve customer service
continuously and satisfy the diverse product demands from
customers.

Product Quality Control

The Group attaches great importance to product quality
control and business integrity, striving to build a high-
standard quality control system that covers the entire
production process. The Group has formulated and
implemented examination procedures and guidelines such
as the "Product Examination Management Procedure”
and the "Product Examination Guidelines"”, offered more
training to its staff and executed multiple rounds of product
examination, as part of its strict control over product quality.
The Group is active in applying for international quality
management system certification. Its subsidiary Regina
Miracle (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. has obtained the certification of
ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System for its design
and manufacturing processes of intimate wear mold cups
and the textile parts for electronic products.
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The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
on product quality as well as national safety and quality
standards, with materials and finished products subject
to comprehensive quality inspection. Besides, the quality
department conducts routine inspection on production
lines according to relevant standards, to identify defective
products and offer timely supervision for improvement.
As for the manufacturing of new products, the quality
department strictly executes examination procedures to
ensure that the quality and specifications of new products
are in line with design and manufacturing standards.

Should any product issue arise, relevant departments
would immediately trace the information of supply and
production according to the product barcode, and report to
the management. The management will then form a special
team and suspend the production of similar products. The
team will conduct testing, formulate improvement plans,
coordinate with investigation, and finalize the scope for
recalling defective products. Afterwards, a recall will be
instructed on such products, with efforts to ensure that
the issue is handled properly and customers’ rights and the
Group’s reputation are protected.

3 China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
(CNAS) is the recognized national agency approved and authorized
by the Certification and Accreditation Administration of the People’s
Republic of China (ARZERAEEEIRZEL EE) pursuant to the
Regulations of the People’'s Republic of China on Certification and
Accreditation ( (P FEARLFEZERAEDI) ), responsible
for accrediting certification agencies, laboratories and inspection
agencies.
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Excellent Production and Innovation

During Fiscal 2018, the Group was rolling out the
Manufacturing Excellence (ME) model vigorously, with
an aim to greatly boost efficiency through craftsmanship
and technical innovation. The Group has established a
department especially for ME, which is responsible for
planning, coordinating and promoting innovative measures
to raise efficiency.

Under the ME manufacturing model, the Group has
taken various innovative measures to raise manufacturing
efficiency, and has developed a multi-skilled technical
reserve workforce through its multi-skilled training
program. Apart from that, the Group has carried out training
programs at benchmark workshops before rolling out such
programs across the factory. All these programs have
helped production departments to attain higher efficiency
and production capacity, stable quality, lower cost and fast
delivery.

The CEO voiced his support to the ME program,
"] encourage the engagement of all the staff and the
cooperation of different departments to roll out a better ME
program and enable human-machine coordination as well as
semi-automatic/fully automatic manufacturing in the future.
This, in particular, will include real-time manufacturing data
and big data analysis, which constitutes the vital project for
bolstering our factories’ core competitiveness in the years to
come. ME is the industry trend, we should be open-minded
and united to deliver excellent manufacturing in real terms.”
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The Group finds it highly important to satisfy the diverse
demand of its customers. Given the position of IDM
(Innovative Design Manufacturer), the Group is actively
involved in the product R&D for customers. The existing
R&D process is as follows:
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The Group strives to act as the bridge between material
suppliers and customers for mutual success. Based on
market research and customers’ requirements, the Group
guides the suppliers to develop new materials that cater
to consumer demand. On the other hand, customers are
offered the industry information on raw material to help
them choose such material that meets the requirement of
product functionality and appearance and create value for
them.
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The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations relating to intellectual property rights in the
PRC and Vietnam. It has the “Knowledge Management
Procedure” in place, and stresses on nurturing and
protecting intellectual property rights. The Group strictly
limits the transmission of internal information and
documents, provides the staff with regular training on
intellectual property rights, and encourages and assists
them to develop intellectual property rights, so as to create
a positive environment for intellectual property rights.

Customer Service and Satisfaction

The Group values the business partnership with its
customers, strictly honors its commitment to them, and
ensures the provision of quality products and services.
The Group strictly fulfills the environmental and social
responsibilities as required by customers, puts the
philosophy of environmental protection and compliance
operation to practice, and works to jointly develop a
sustainable industry chain.

The Group actively cooperates with customers for factory
inspection, through which operational loopholes are
examined continuously to improve management and build
a sustainable supply chain. During Fiscal 2018, the Group
received 21 factory inspections from its customers, involving
various aspects such as product quality, social responsibility
and anti-terrorism review. The Group managed to pass all
these inspections.

In addition, the Group has formulated and implemented its
regulations on customer service and complaint management.
Various channels, such as phone call and email, are adopted
to timely collect and analyze customer suggestions or advice
and give feedback accordingly. All customer complaints
received are recorded, with statistical analysis carried out
each month, problems summarized timely and rectification
plans prepared and executed, all in a bid to meet customer
demand and raise customer satisfaction.
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Protection of Customer Information

The Group pays particular attention to protecting its
customers’ research results and brands, striving to maintain
good business reputation and prevent customers from
losses. In order to prevent leaking the R&D results of its
customers, the Group has set restrictions on access to
important R&D workshops and prohibited its staff from
carrying mobile phones to or taking pictures in such
workshops. Action would be taken to timely destroy the
material that contains customer information and excessive
production materials printed with the customers’ brands.
Confidentiality agreements are also entered into with the
staff, coupled with regular dissemination of knowledge on
customer information security and protection. Such efforts
aim to raise the awareness and vigilance of protection
among the staff and serve as concrete action to protect
customer information.

Industry Exchanges

The Group takes an active part in industry exchange
activities. In Fiscal 2018, the Group organized a total of
three sessions to learn from excellent enterprises. During
such sessions, participants visited industry peers to learn
their advanced experience and discuss the direction of
industry development, in an attempt to bolster innovation
capability and the Group’s core competitiveness. For many
times, the Group joined in a number of large-scale industry
exhibitions, such as the Industrial Automation Show and
China International Sewing Machinery & Accessories Show
(CISMA), to introduce advanced equipment and material for
improving the production efficiency and product quality of
the Group.

Picture: Industrial Automation Show 2017
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HARMONIOUS COEXISTENCE WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT

In strict compliance with environmental laws and regulations
in the place of business operations, the Group operates
its business and makes decisions in an environmentally
responsible manner, manages and mitigates the negative
impact of its business on the environment. It supports and
responds to the government’'s environmental protection
initiatives, and continues to improve its environmental
protection performance in response to such expectation
from stakeholders, including industrial technology innovators
and investors as well as customers.

Environmental Management System Certification
The Group has the EHS (Environment, Health and Safety)
system in place. The Group's subsidiaries, Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and Regina Miracle
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., have obtained the 1SO14001
environmental management system certification, and
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
has also passed the ISO50001 certification for energy
management systems. The Group strives to standardize
its internal environmental management system through
system certification, review and improve on deficiencies and
inadequacy, and preserve the natural environment in the
place of its operations.
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Picture: Certificate of ISO14001 Environmental Management
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Energy and Carbon Emission Management

The Group strictly manages energy use and carbon
emission from its operation, seeking to mitigate the adverse
environmental impact of its operations through energy-
saving and emissions reduction measures. We improve
the efficiency of electricity consumption during production
activities, by undertaking energy-saving renovation for the
manufacturing equipment, fans and air-conditioners in the
factory area.

The Group actively introduces advanced energy-saving
technologies. Energy-saving renovation is completed for
forming machines, sewing machines, air-conditioners, fans
and lightening systems. Our step-by-step energy saving
and emissions reduction have led to lower production
costs and less greenhouse gas emissions, achieving both
environmental and economic efficiency.

Water Resources and Sewage Treatment

The Group pays special attention to the protection of water
resources, proactively introduces water-saving equipment,
with sensor faucets installed. Water supply equipment
is under greater maintenance and management to avoid
all forms of water leakage. Water saving concept is also
promoted, to reduce water consumption during the Group's
operation.

The Group strictly implements the “Sewage Management
Policy”. Targeted efforts have been made for the sewage
generated from cleaning molds and equipment, to ensure
that such water is treated accordance to regulations and
discharged after meeting the standard. During its silk
printing process, the Group’s Shenzhen factory generates
sewage, which is treated by sewage recycling and treatment
equipment. After treatment, the water quality meets the
requirements of GB18920-2002 standard for urban sewage
reuse and gets reused for the production process, thus
achieving the purpose of water recycling and reuse.
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Waste Management

We intensively implement the “Waste Management
Measures”, dispose of wastes in the principle of reduction,
reuse and recycling, to mitigate the environmental impact
of production and operation. As an apparel processing
business, the Group mainly generates such wastes as the
non-hazardous wastes from production, offices and living
quarters, and a small amount of hazardous wastes.

° Hazardous wastes: Hazardous wastes, such as oily
sewage, undergo categorized collection and are sent
for harmless treatment by professional hazardous-
waste treatment firms, to prevent the environmental
pollution caused by inappropriate disposal.

o Non-hazardous wastes: The Group approaches
non-hazardous wastes, such as domestic wastes
and production wastes, with categorized collection.
Recyclable wastes are recycled and reused by
qualified resource recycling companies, whereas non-
recyclable wastes are stacked in a centralized manner
and handed over to municipal sanitation services for
clearing, transportation and disposal.

Green Production and Publicity of Environmental
Protection

As part of our continuous efforts to implement green office
initiatives, we improve the perception of our staff members
towards the philosophy of being green and encourage them
to put forward creative ideas on environmental protection,
so that they can reduce the consumption of energy, paper
and plastics and embrace a green and environmentally
friendly way of life and work.

During the construction of its Vietnamese factories, the
Group proactively invested resources in the application and
certification of international green building standards, with
an aim to effectively reduce the adverse impact on the
environment and residents. So far, the Group has obtained
the LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design)
certification for some buildings of its Vietnamese factories,
and plans to apply for more green-building certification in the
years to come.
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Initiatives Relating to Green Office 1)
Staff perception of and participation in environmental
protection is critical to meeting the targets of energy saving

and emissions reduction.

As a staunch advocate of green office, the Group starts from
the actual condition and small matters, to cultivate a good
corporate atmosphere for energy saving and consumption
reduction.

o Green stickers are attached to printers and switches
and in washrooms, to remind the staff of turning off
the power and close the taps;

° Staff members are encouraged to set the temperature
of air-conditioners at 25 degrees, and set printers and
computers on sleep mode while not in use;

° Paperless office is greatly promoted, with double-sided
printing on default and staff members encouraged to
cut unnecessary photocopying;

° Office supplies should be regularly maintained and
repaired, and staff members are encouraged to use
vacant old office desks, chairs and machinery; and

° Slogans are posted in staff canteens to remind the
staff members of reducing food waste.
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Picture: “Power Saving"” Sticker Picture: The “Clear Your Plate” Slogan in the Canteen
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Environmental Interaction and Staff Engagement

In Fiscal 2018, the Group’'s Shenzhen factory launched
an activity named “Starting with Me to Save Energy and
Consume Less”, requiring all departments to submit
proposals on energy saving and consumption reduction.
Such proposals mainly revolve around saving water,
electricity, food, paper and material, to help the company
to reduce unnecessary wastage and consumption. The
activity was supported by the vast majority of staff, with
more than 100 proposals collected. From them, feasible
ones were selected and implemented. After more than
half a year, certain proposals have seen their effect.
The Group organized an evaluation team and carried out
integrated evaluation according to criteria such as feasibility,
conservation efficiency and creativity. The top-20 proposals
were selected and awarded.

2)
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Environmental Management for the Viethamese

Factory

The Group’'s Vietnamese factory, highly concerned
with environmental protection in its early design stage,
actively introduced environmental-friendly and energy-
saving equipment and facilities. Under the “Continuous
Improvement” philosophy advocated by the environmental
management system, the sustainable development
department has formulated policies and objectives in
relation to environmental management, with regular analysis
and evaluation on environmental management, quantitative
assessment on environmental management performance
and timely space identification and optimization, to
gradually improve environmental management. At the same
time, in order to cultivate the environmental protection
awareness among staff members, the Vietnamese factory
pays great attention to environmental protection publicity
and education, and encourages all the staff to engage in
environmental protection.

The Group is well aware that tackling environmental
problems, such as climate change, requires collaboration of
global communities and active participation from the public.
With that in mind, the Vietnamese factory participated in
the 2018 "Earth Hour”, when it turned off unnecessary
lighting and power-consuming products for one hour starting
from 20:30 on 24 March. The participation has shown
their support to tackling climate change, while using action
to effectively send the message of energy saving and
environmental protection to stakeholder groups such as
staff and communities.
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Energy-saving LED Lights in
the Production Workshop
L EEHMLEDHREEA

Using the VSD Technology of
i itioners to Reduce Power

Key Environmental Performance Data for Fiscal 2018
According to the disclosure requirements of the ESG
Reporting Guide, the Group has further improved its work on
data collection and statistical analysis in Fiscal 2018, based
on the existing data. Efforts have been made to have a clear
picture of the responsibility structure on environmental data
collection for the Shenzhen and Vietnamese factories, with
key performance indicators illustrated and data reporting
templates prepared for the convenience of data collectors
to understand and fill in information. This ensures the
accuracy and consistency of data reporting, to meet the
expectations and requirements of stakeholders in relation to
the disclosure of corporate environmental information.

Key Environmental Performance Indicator

REREERES

Sulphur dioxide Kilogram
= | 5} TR
Nitrogen oxides Kilogram
AREY) Fr
Particles Kilogram
SERY) F

Energy-saving LED Lights
in the Office
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Promotional Poster of
Earth Hour in the Factory
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Key Environmental Performance Indicator

Emission/Consumption

BRERRERER

B ERE

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonne CO2e 764.02

BEREYER(EE—) WE— S IR E =

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonne CO2e 114,459.57

BEREYER(EE ) WE— S IR E =

Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonne CO2e 115,223.59
(Scopes 1 and 2)

BERBABEN(EE—+EE ) WE— S biRE =

Hazardous wastes Tonne 51.7

BEREEY) A

Production wastes Tonne 9,880.18

HEERER 7

Office wastes Tonne 3.85

PRI A

Liguefied Petroleum Gas Kilogram 167,022.30

BALEHE T

Petrol Liter 85,290.71

i 7t

Diesel Liter 11,139.94

s 7t

Electricity consumption
HEs

Kilowatt hour

FRE

165,285,899.00

Direct energy consumption GJ 11,443.40
B H5E

Indirect energy consumption GJ 595,029.24
e RERE H5E

Total energy consumption GJ 606,472.64
HERERE HE

Energy consumption intensity GJ/income (HK$'000) 0.10
BEFERE =E/ WA CEETIT)

Water consumption m3 1,582,594.00
5P/ K
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Key Environmental Performance Indicator

Emission/Consumption

RIZHABERIER ¥ ERE
Water reuse m3 864.00
fEIRAKE ST K
Water consumption intensity m3/income (HK$'000) 0.27
FK&E LK WA BT IT)
Packaging materials Tonne 45,611.10
BEME A

lllustrations on environmental data: RIREIREA -

1)

2)

3)

The environmental data span from 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2018, covering the office and production areas
of the Group’s Shenzhen and Vietnamese factories.
The Group will expand the scope of its environmental
data collection year on year, to strengthen the
management on environmental performance.

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) mainly come
from the consumption of fuel, diesel and liquefied
petroleum gas by business vehicles; and greenhouse
gas emissions (Scope 2) are from power consumption,
with data sourcing from relevant payment bills and
administrative statistical accounts. In respect of
greenhouse-gas emission factors, domestic electricity
grids refer to the “2015 China Regional Power Grid
Baseline Emission Factors” ({20157 B & 12 & A8 H %
ZBERUAEF)) issued by the National Development and
Reform Commission, whereas Vietnamese electricity
grids refer to the “2016 CO, Emissions from Fuel
Combustion” issued by the International Energy
Agency.

In 2017, the Group’s energy consumption comprises
of business vehicle fuel, diesel, liquefied petroleum
gas and purchased electricity, with data sourcing from
relevant payment bills and administrative statistical
accounts. Energy consumption coefficient refers to the
conversion factor provided by the International Energy
Agency and the national “GB2589-2008T General
Principles for Calculation of Total Production Energy
Consumption”.

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # iR (IZR)ERA A
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2)
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VII. OPERATION COMPLIANCE AND ANTI-

CORRUPTION

The Group strictly complies with anti-corruption laws and
regulations in the place of its business operations, while
adopting the principle of prevention and supervision to
keep internal and external corruption at bay. The Group has
established the “Anti-corruption Management Procedure”
and the discipline inspection team as its principal authority
in charge of operation compliance and anti-corruption, to
supervise and inspect the compliance of the Group’s staff.
The publicity and education of clean conduct have been
strengthened on staff members, to boost their alertness to
corruption incidents. These efforts aim to cultivate a good
ethos of clean operation throughout the Group, to ensure its
compliance and stable operation.

The Group has formulated the “Staff Complaint and
Reporting Procedure”, under which internal and external
reporting and supervision can be made through such
channels as mailbox, email and telephone. Upon reception
of such reporting, the discipline inspection team shall
provide registration, launch an investigation and submit the
investigation results to the management by writing within
30 days. If the alleged personnel are found with misconduct
upon investigation, the management will impose on the
personnel with public notification, demotion and termination
of labor contract. The staff members that breach the law
would be handed over to public security authorities.

The Group has entered into anti-corruption agreements
with key staff members and suppliers, to forbid illegal
competitive behaviors such as commercial bribery during
the course of business, create a fair and credible business
environment and maintain commercial ethics. In Fiscal 2018,
there was no concluded corruption litigation against the
Group or launched by its staff members.
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VIIl. COMMON PROSPERITY WITH AN

110

COMMUNITIES

The Group, well aware of its social responsibility as a
corporate citizen, is concerned about disadvantaged
groups and enthusiastic about environmental protection
and charitable causes. It works for building harmonious
communities as an objective, seeking to propel the
sustainable development of local communities while
securing business value.

Supporting Environmental Protection Activities 1.
The Group, a strong supporter of environment protection

and a passionate participant in environment protection
activities, calls on its staff members and communities to pay
attention to the protection of natural environment.

4 March 2018 marked the third consecutive year for the
Group as a sponsor and participant in “Run for Survival”,
a charity run organized by Ocean Park Conservation
Foundation Hong Kong. This year's “Run for Survival”,
themed “Marine Conservation”, presents a 10-km timed
obstacle race and a 3-km fun race. The competition
illustrated the threat of human activities to marine animals
in interesting ways such as setting up multiple obstacles
on the track and opening game booths, to help people
understand the significance of marine conservation. The
donations from the event will be used for supporting the
wildlife ecological conservation of Ocean Park Conservation
Foundation Hong Kong.

Picture: Scenes of 2018 “Run for Survival”
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Supporting Poverty Alleviation and Education

As a long-term supporter of poverty alleviation and
education for the local region, the Group provides subsidies
to outstanding poor students to help them finish education,
as a gesture to contribute to the development of local
communities.

In June 2017, the Group joined in the donation activity

f “Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day"” for the third
consecutive year. In October 2017, the Group’s Shenzhen
factory joined hands with Yulv Community Foundation (&
ZEHEESE) to visit the sick, unemployed and needy
households, senior citizens and other people in need there.
The factory also donated books to Yulv Elementary School
(Ef/&).0n 13 December 2017, Shenzhen Guangming
New District Charity Association (Y¢BR¥TI& &&= €) organized
an education funding activity in the name of Guangming
New District and Tianlin County, during which the Group
provided funding to support a total of 4 students as part
of precise poverty alleviation to support poor students and
help Tianlin County shed poverty. On 26 December 2017,
Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity Association
launched the 2017 Shuguang Education Funding Activity,
during which the Group provided funding to support a total
of 9 students (4 from senior high school, 4 from junior high
school and 1 from primary school).

Vietnamese Factory Engaged in Local
Community Development

Supporting Post-typhoon Reconstruction in Vietnam

The Group's Vietnamese factory offered great support
to post-typhoon reconstruction in Vietnamese provinces,
arranging the staff to help victims of the affected areas
return to normal life at an early date.
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2017108  AEERIIREEFE
grREAce —RAEPHLEERET
EREEF - EARREHT WAL
B/NEEEEE - 20175127138 -
KEPAFREASSEBRRT LATE -
AMGESHEBERES  NEEE
EEARBE  BEERBEREZT B
THEMBEERE - 20175128268 -
KPR EEEIEFFE2017F 1B
HIBITE)  AEEXEBHIBEAL
(BH4% ~ HFhag  NEIR) -

BREIRSRENTHEER

EXHEBEAXEERE
AEEBREIBMANIFEEREN
MeRERTIE  AHRESTEHT IO
R RFHMELTELE -

Picture: Staff of Our Vietnamese Factory Supporting Post-Typhoon Reconstruction of Local Communities
CHEIRE IR HEmtEETERSEER
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2) Caring for Disadvantaged Children 2) HEFZZE
On 4 October 2017, our Vietnam factory arranged the staff 2017610H4H - MEIRAME TR
to bring Mid-Autumn Festival gifts to a training school for BT TS R A A 24 B A 52 B B X
the disabled and an orphanage in Hai Phong City. FRIKERIEY)

Picture: Staff of Our Vietnamese Factory Visiting Children in Orphanage and Giving Festival Gifts
CMEIRE THEEM R REW X HER

3) Workers’ Month 3) ZEEzA
In June 2017, around 2,000 staff members of the Vietnam 201746 8 « HE TE42,000% 8
factory participated in the “Building Communities Together TRETIHARSHE — ZEHE >
— Workers" Month” activity, which included events such as A5E8 - HehpiEkETE - et
charity walk, blood donation and garden party. - BjesEs .

Picture: Staff Members of Our Vietnamese Factory in “Building Communities Together — Workers” Month" Activity

CHETHMET28E KERRH G - 48E 2R 5D
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AWARDS WON BY THE GROUP
IN FISCAL 2018

Investor Relations Awards

During the fourth contest of Investor Relations Awards, the
Group was conferred the awards of “Best IR Company”, "“Best
Investor Meeting” and “Best IRO". Hong Kong Investor Relations
Awards, an event hosted by the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association, is designed to commend the companies listed on
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and their management staff with
outstanding performance in investor relations. In 2018, a total of
184 listed companies received nomination to participate in the
Investor Relations Awards. Over 600 qualified voters cast their
votes, to grant awards on 48 companies in total. The awards are
a solid confirmation of the exceptional performance of the Group
and its management in investor relations, and reflect its good
transparency and corporate governance.

* i
- _r-r ‘
N | X
ol Riralhy. s

R EREREE

2018 F AR E B SR E R I

REEBBEKRE
FOEREEBRERRNEF L - NEBKD
REREREEBERAR]  [REREEY
ZINBREREEEERSE |E - HERE
EREREREAREEH I BER
BERKEEFEITARREENEERER
SHETARIRARERERKE ° 20184 » &
[EREEBERNELFIMR LT RARER
RESLE  ELBE00ZUAERIEEAR
=ik HBASRARELE  BERHSBTS
AEEREEERIREEBRAANIHRE
B MERETARSERIMEAEHMEE
AR

Pictures: Trophies for the “Best IR Company”, “Best Investor Meeting” and “Best IRO” Awards
I REREBEBERR]  [REREEEZ IR HEREERESE | SRER
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SE201 8 FREEMEDRTIRIAT

The Group also won the following awards during Fiscal 2018:

Number Award Awarded By Recipient Date of Award
ik #15 BREN BRAR B A
1 Chinese Enterprise with Good ~ China Entry & Export Inspection Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel July 2017
Quality and Integrity and Quarantine Association (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(FEESHELR (R AR RBRERS)
PEEEHERE REEAGRRRERS BRAVEAKCRIDERAR 201707
2 Excellent Enterprise for Safety  Yutang Production Safety, Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) November 2017
Production and Management Supervision and Management Co., Ltd.
(Z2AEEREAME) Office, Guangming New District
ZEEEERESLEWS KPFEERERREEEEER BYRARCRI)BRAR 2017-11
NS
3 National Outstanding Foreign-  China Association of Enterprises ~ Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel 2018
invested Enterprise for with Foreign Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Promoting Harmonious Labor ~ (FESNERECE£HE)
Relations (Year 2016-2017) and Shenzhen Association
(ZEERINEREDEME of Enterprises with Foreign
BEERE Investment
(2016-2017% %)) (RINERELEHS)
PEBAIEREPEMRES RESERECERE BRAVEAXCRINERAR 2018
BRI MINNERECENE
(201620175 )
4 2017 Top-50 Corporate Tax Shenzhen Guangming New Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel 2018
Payer in Shenzhen District Office, SAT (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Guangming New District (RYTHBEFRERHBER),
(RITTRAHE20175E and Local Taxation Bureau of
B0 ) Shenzhen Guangming
New District
(RYITHATRIAHBER)
R B E2017FE R BHERFGRBER BRADERARCRINER AR 2018
05 5 AT HAFREATER
5 2017 Top-10 Import and Export ~ Management Committee of Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel January 2018
Enterprise in Shenzhen Shenzhen Guangming (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Guangming New District New District
(R ERFR 20175 (RITAAHRERRZER)
EHOTRME)
AT HAFR2017EE ATAAFRERRZES BRAVEAKCRIDERAR 201801
EHntatE
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Number Award

i

#

2017 Top-10 Enterprise for
Annual Economic Growth
Contribution to Shenzhen
Guangming New District
(RY[THEAHE201 75 R
EEERERTRAE)

AT 2017FE T
BREFTELE

2017 Top-10 Corporate Tax
Payer in Shenzhen
Guangming New District
(RYIFRBAHNE2017FE
B TREE)

AT BRI 2017F B B
TEbE

Finalist Award at the Inaugural
BDO ESG Awards (2017)
EJEBDORE  HEREAARE

(2017F) \E %

2017 Compassionate Company
(Unit) by Shenzhen
Guangming New
District Charity
(KBHEEEG2017FRE
BOME(ER))

HPFREEG2017EE
BOME(BM)

Company (Unit) of the Most
Compassion by the Second
Council (Year 2015-2017) of
Shenzhen Guangming
New District Charity
RNEREEE_EREY
(201520175 ) RAB L%
(Efi1))

KR RRESE _EEFE
(20152017 F ) RAE L OE
(1)

"Caring Company" for
Employees, Communities and
the Environment (2016-2018)

[BRAREEIET - HE  R%
(2016-2018%F B 5

Awarded By
BN

Management Committee of
Shenzhen Guangming New
District

RTARHREEZEE

Management Committee of
Shenzhen Guangming New
District

RTARHREEZEE
BDO Limited

BRUERFGHNEBH
BRAR

Shenzhen Guangming New District

Charity

RITARFEEES

Shenzhen Guangming New
District Charity

RTARFEEES

The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

B eREHe

Recipient

ERAH

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

EREYRAK(RINERLR

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

ERBYRAK(RINERLR

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited
HL PR BIR (ER) BB A

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

EREYRAK(RINERLR

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

EREYRAK(RINERLR

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

BB (ER)BRAT]

Date of Award

b 4=k
January 2018

201801

January 2018

201801

January 2018

201801

March 2018

2018-03

March 2018

2018-03

March 2018

201803
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o
pwc

To the Shareholders of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 195, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2018;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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FEYRER(ZER)BRITRR
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FTHRE
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o  A2018FE3A3NHMGABEERRER
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s EE=E
)53

s KA
R

% B I FERERS R

AL FEOSA REREER

Z AL FENEE B ER

MHHmRME - BREREK
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit is
related to the provision for inventories.

BYRHERE

ERBw

RPNWER

BMRE  ZEREVBBREREBREESS
AR A BMAHCEBMIEREERNDEEM
FEHMRET BHEEMR2018F3A31HH
AR REEEZZALLFENGEAH
BERBMFERESRE  WEBREA(AR]
TP VB B8 45 T 2 B o

RREE

BAERETESHAGROH(EBET
ZERDEITER - RIEZFEATRENR
FEAEARS RBEN R E A PR IwRA
ERE IRy P IEE— SRt -

HAIRE - RPIMTERNBREREETE N
EEABRFINETE R RHEER -

Byt
RIS A RMAA(EESTTENESR
SSADCAT @R SFRD - HABZR &&
C WEEITTAIFEMBEREREE -

FRENSE

RRETFEERERMNERHE - BR
HAHMGAVBREANBEARREENS
B FERHERERMEFBEBERAMBR
REBABRBETRIEN - HATSYE
LEREHEFOER - RAEFTHHEH
MRRESFRATERERRM -
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BYRHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BARETEE

Provision for inventories

FERE

Refer to note 17 “Inventories” and note 4(a) “Critical
accounting estimates and judgements” to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2018, the Group held inventories of
HK$826,961,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$2,648,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management assesses the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories at each period end based
on their consideration of obsolescence and the net
realisable value of inventories. The determination of
estimated selling price less cost to sell requires the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including
consideration of condition of products, latest selling
price, expectation of future sales orders and market
trends and customer demands.

LA RS RAM 17 7% | RM A E B aEHE
SR BB ] -

MR2018F3A31H ' EEEFAEANTEABE
826,961,000t * PRE& sk i5 157 & # & & 751 2,648,000
TG ° FEZRAA K A2 IR ERE NREE NGRS MR
RN o

EEEERHGFEREREREAZHEFENZE NS
HIERHREITHFENBEFEETIHE - HERAEE
BIHERATR ZEREARAE MG - BEEERMR -
RITHIEE  RRHEETENTEY - mEBBREFFR
HERE -

RANBFTNAEERFARETER

Our key procedures in relation to management's
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventory included:

- Understanding the key control procedures
performed by management in estimating the
net realisable value of the inventories and
conducting periodic reviews on inventory
obsolescence;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the net realisable
value of selected inventory items, by comparing
the carrying amount of the inventory items
against their selling price subsequent to the
year end or closest to year end;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing profile of individual inventory items
by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices; and

- Testing, on a sample basis, long aged inventory
for subsequent sales or usage after year
end and reperforming the calculation for the
provision.

Bl E R BHRENF H TR REEHERITRRR
R

- BEREEEMGIFENIERFEREHNERETE
RERERRANRERZERERF

—  RAMES R LBRATR G B B REERARE
Kk TR F RSO B - SRR SR E T
LIFEEITAR

—  FARMESARERERBEENNERAONFER
FEIR B MRiH)ERENE -

- EABESAHERBEENFENFRRESHRE
FUEITRIR - WEMETEHEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BYRHERE

FERETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RRETER

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance, significant management judgement and
estimates involved in determining the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories.

RMNBFNMEERFARETSR

In addition, we discussed with management
regarding the latest sales pattern in relation to price
and quantity for potential orders, and other factors,
including the market trends and customer demands.

We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventory was
supported by the available audit evidence.

BAFIRU BB RN EHREANEEREIFHETE
BiEE S RERNEE A ANMEE -

BEAh - BMEEIE B AT HE R TR NEA
BIB{ET R EN REE U R MRS - BETBEER
EEES -

BMERERELRESBHFERBOIHEAFTNE

SHREESE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

HtfE 8

BERREFAHHEMERAR - HMEEE
BEBANMBERER  ETEEEAMBER
R EBPIZBERE -

BMESEAMBHRENBERL TREEME
B BT EZFEMESEREMTR

Y EEE #Eam ©
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ERRRBEAMBWMRIEMAEEBIZ
T TROBEAFEEABBREUTFE
BERBRRAOBER

ERBEMTHITHOITE - REMRBAEM
EREEEARERRL  RAFTEREZLSE
B HENE  BIVRBEEMRSE -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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BYRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ek

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #,£20184E3 A31H IF /&

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Revenue A 5 5,868,048 4,676,937
Cost of sales SHERA 7 (4,620,999) (3,761,112)
Gross profit EF 1,247,049 915,825
Other income and other gains, net HA U A R H fih Y 25 558 6 21,760 25,070
Distribution and selling expenses DR IHER X 7 (158,977) (121,742)
General and administrative expenses —MR R ITE X 7 (578,594) (467,298)
Research and development costs s M FE R AR 7 (195,920) (160,297)
335,318 191,558

Finance income B 9 625 1,447
Finance costs BATE R AN 9 (49,839) (32,822)
Finance costs, net ISP AN 558 (49,214) (31,375)
Profit before income tax BRET BB ADER 286,104 160,183
Income tax expense FriSEif sz 1M (45,916) (62,548)

Profit for the year attributable to EREQITEEA

owners of the Company FEARSER 240,188 97,635
Earnings per share for profit RAREE AEMN
attributable to owners of the RN SRER
Company (expressed in HK cents (R BWLES])
per share)
— Basic and diluted —EARNEE 12 19.6 8.0
The above consolidated income statement should be read in AR W as 7% FE B BE M B 5T — O BORE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEREKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z201843A31H [t F[E

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Profit for the year FRREF 240,188 97,635

Other comprehensive income/(loss): H#t2EUKA ~(EE) :
Items that have been reclassified or BB 53 AR
may be subsequently reclassified to BAREFSER

profit or loss EmEE
Currency translation differences EEmE 69,763 (76,428)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHHESREE 16

financial assets N THERE 767 491
Reclassification adjustment upon HEHHEESHE

disposal of available-for-sale financial BERNENDE

assets Az (16) -

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEEA

for the year, net of tax (E518) (B HKkHiE) 70,514 (75,937)
Total comprehensive income KATEE AEM
attributable to owners of the 2EWBALEE
Company 310,702 21,698
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LiteRE 2 a7 e B P P 5 — OFBERE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARR

As at 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R K& 13 3,414,878 2,589,643
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 1+ 3h Ko 1 Hb {5 FA#E 14 301,554 244,683
Intangible assets BB E 15 44,752 45,082
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 16 66,631 56,796
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 19 17,167 84,761
3,844,982 3,020,965
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 826,961 810,340
Trade and bills receivables B SRR R eI =% 18 848,787 672,760
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BAREREA 19
receivables JEUG FhE 47,299 31,518
Tax recoverable AU [ IE 6,056 2,074
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEED 20 450,125 412,280
2,179,228 1,928,972
Total assets EE#E 6,024,210 4,949,937
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AEN
of the Company xR
Share capital A% 21 95,247 95,247
Reserves i 22 2,774,335 2,524,845
Total equity RESHAT 2,869,582 2,620,092

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in Ltz s BEBERBEBEHIMT—HRIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARER

As at 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Borrowings B3k 23 985,854 606,404
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMBHAaR 24 5,690 5,851
991,544 612,255
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade payables B G REMERR 25 408,884 356,098
Accruals and other payables FEEHE R R H i ER I 26 555,920 436,854
Borrowings B 23 1,164,500 877,289
Current income tax liabilities BNEARTISHi B E 33,780 47,349
2,163,084 1,717,590
_Total liabilites ~~~~~~~~~~ #f®®| 00000 3 3,154,628 2,329,845
Total equity and liabilities EnRkBEEE 6,024,210 4,949,937
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in s B EAERBEBENIE—HT6E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 195 were F1232 195 MR & M IMKAE 1201846
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2018 and were A28AEESESHETRERESE -
signed on its behalf.

Hung Yau Lit Antony Yiu
R =R
Chairman Director
TE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #,£20184E3 A31H IF /&

Attributable to owners
of the Company

A THEE AEMS

Share capital Reserves Total

;& it ot

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ST T TSI T IT BEET T

As at 1 April 2016 A2016%F481H 95,247 2,571,705 2,666,952

Total comprehensive income FHEURA LTS - 21,698 21,698
Transaction with owners BEHEBEARXS

Dividends f% 8 - (68,558) (68,558)

Total transaction with owners BEEEAXRZHE - (68,558) (68,558)

As at 31 March 2017 M2017%3H31H 95,247 2,524,845 2,620,092

Total comprehensive income ZHENALTE - 310,702 310,702
Transaction with owners BEEEARS

Dividends (Note 27) &% 2 (FfaE27) - (61,212) (61,212)

Total transaction with owners HEESARS B - (61,212) (61,212)

As at 31 March 2018 20183 H31H 95,247 2,774,335 2,869,582

The consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read bRE e B B R /B BT —OrB9E -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z201843A31H [t F[E

Cash flows from operating activities

RETDFERTRE

2018
20184

HK$'000
BT T

2017
20174
HK$'000
T IT

Cash generated from operations CEEBBRSE 28(a) 529,784 260,983
Profits tax paid BINFIBRL (63,630) (77,199)
Net cash inflow from operating KEEBFBIRSRA

activities FE 466,154 183,784
Cash flows from investing activities R&EIEFMEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BER

equipment B (948,414) (806,473)
Prepayments for purchase of property, B3 - BEMEE

plant and equipment and intangible A NERE ERNTERN

assets ] (10,422) (17,449)
Purchase of leasehold land and EEAES ML

land use rights = A (75,293) (107,273)
Return of deposits/(prepayments) BE THFRENZS

for purchase of land use rights iRE(FBREUR) 54,835 (12,194)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (6,873) (7,408)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - R K&EE

plant and equipment FriS5KIR 28(b) 1,605 1,164
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHIESH

financial assets BE (9,434) (7,679)
Proceeds from disposals of leasehold ~ HEBRE TS

land FRIA 13,255 -
Proceeds from disposals of available-  HERHEBELFEE

for-sale financial assets FriS kIR 380 -
Payments for settlement of derivative  #EHTE 4RI T A

financial instruments INE:A = (13,784)
Settlement from controlling shareholder 12 % A% 5k 5t € B {E

in relation to the indemnification il = 9,104
Interest received BUFIE 625 1,447
Net cash outflow from investing BE TSRS R

activities SRR (979,736) (960,545)

LB PA B RE — D BIRE -

The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #,£20184E3 A31H IF /&

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Cash flows from financing activities &S IEFMEESRE

Proceeds from borrowings ERNTIES SO 1,130,568 734,159
Repayments of borrowings EEER (463,907) (367,830)
Interest paid BEAFLE (66,218) (48,322)
Dividend paid EIIRE (61,212) (68,558)
Net cash inflow from financing BMEEEEIRESRA

activities FEE 539,231 249,449

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BRERBLZEY

cash equivalents #hn, G ) B 25,649 (627,312)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#I8& KRG EEY
of the year 412,280 947,000
Currency translation differences EERE R 12,196 (7,408)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRBENIRSEEY
of the year 20 450,125 412,280
The consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in REIReMER AN —GBIE -

conjunction with accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2.1

130

GENERAL INFORMATION

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 September 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of bras, intimate wear, bra pads, other molded
products and functional sports products.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollar ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
when assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1

—REH

BB (ER)BRAA(TAR
A1) R2010F9A21 AIRIEFA =SS
RNEVE(2010F BRI R) EHR=HE
MR REREERAE - XAA
5 fff 9% == 52 &9 Mo 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

RARRREERAR - MENBA
AIENELEREEME  BHHR
K~ W EEMIEEERMINEILE
BIREM °

BaBEREN
B(EEDIIR -

EXETBERBE
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REZSVHEREMANE RS
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2.1
(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1
April 2017. The adoption of these amendments to standards
does not have any significant impact on the results or
financial position of the Group.

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Statement of Cash Flows

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Income Taxes

Disclosures of Interest in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

New standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been published and are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 or later periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRS1 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BB BRELERE 15 R
BEAGFERIFE 285 (18] AN)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

Payment Transactions

BB R EERIE 25
CEEIEN)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

BRI ELER B4R

({&5T) REERFBAFIRB AL
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BB ELERIER

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BB ELERIER
({&5T)

SRITA

BB AMENRAENTE

FEERE2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

2014F 22016 F AR FE Rk

2.1
(a)

(b)

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
AR BERHNRZ S0 EREE
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
R ERE MRS ERFEIRSm T ART BB

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

e RBRRME

BEXEHBERBEE W)

mBLEEE ()
KREFERABIFTETERI R AZ ST E R
AT #RIE B AEEMR2017F4818
7 B RIEH T BUEE B IRRN o 7
MZEEAEIT AT SHREENZE
BRI ER TR ERTE -

BAERTER REngx
EVEACCHIES)

BAERTER FRiSH
F125R(ERTA)

BAMBREREN NEMEED
FIRUEFTA)  HSEE

E B8 14 R £ HIFETER ~ 55T
AR2FE

AT #TRT 22BN R RIS BT AR B 4R 5 I
JERN2018F4 A1 Bk 2 B RtGH 25t
HAR s i 12 BRI sa I B AR - HEARNER
AR PR ERAR

Effective
for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RZ AR 2 EBRA
WEHIELEXN

1 April 2018

2018%F4H1H
1 April 2018
2018%F4H1H
1 April 2018
2018%F4H1H
1 April 2018
2018%F4H1H

1 April 2019
20194 A°1H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EBEASHEEREE#@)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations that (b) EBf{E e KEKBIFTETER ~ 155T
have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued) AR2FEE)

Effective
for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
A=A
WETTHBREXN
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined
HKAS 28 (Amendments) and its Associate or Joint Venture
BBV BEEEE105% REEMEHBEPERESEPEHNEEDERIRA FEE
CCHENE -]

F285(ERTA)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 April 2018
BRI EENE155% BERAEKHA 20184 H1H
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 April 2018
ERPBREENFE155% HEBMERELENE1RES 201854 1R
(BRTA)
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 April 2019
BB R EERF 1657 HE 2019F4 A1H
HK(IFRIC) Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1 April 2018
Consideration
R (REMBRERBEES) INERXZNIENRE 201854 1R
RREE225%
HK(IFRIC) Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 April 2019
TR (RAEMBRERBEEE) BRMSHEENTEEL 20195F4 A1 H
BEE235E
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 April 2021
BB REERF175 REBRAH 20214 A1H
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 April 2019
EREHERE28REFTA)  REERRREELENRE 201954 A1H
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property 1 April 2018
BB TR0 (EFTA) EHRERREME 201854 1R
HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 1 April 2019
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23
(Amendments)
BRI REERFI5 - 20155 2201 7F BHHFEHE 2019F4 A1H

BAMBREERFE115 -
BAGRTEAE125E K
BB e ERIE235 (BFTA)
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2.1
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities
and is expecting the following impact from the adoption of
the new standard on 1 April 2018.

The financial assets held by the Group include unlisted
insurance policy investments currently classified as
available-for-sale ("AFS") for which a fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") election is available.
Hence there will be no change to the accounting for these
assets.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new guidance to
affect the classification and measurement of these financial
assets. However, gains or losses realized on the sale of
financial assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to
profit or loss on sale, but instead reclassified below the line
from the FVOCI to retained earnings.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have
been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the
case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortized cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. The Group considers
that there will be no material adverse change in the credit
risks in respect of the Group’s future financial assets and
the adoption of the new expected credit losses model under
HKFRS 9 will not have significant impact on its financial
performance and position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2.1
(b)

134

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group's
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

It is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
April 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard using
the modified retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that comparatives
will not be restated.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition
of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts and the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a
customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group's financial statements and
currently does not anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Date of adoption by the Group

It is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
April 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard using
the modified retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that comparatives
will not be restated.
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2.1
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the statement of
financial position, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
Group's operating leases. As at 31 March 2018, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$263,577,000 (Note 29(b)).

However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because
of the change in the definition of the lease term and the
different treatment of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options. It is therefore not yet
possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on adoption
of the new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
April 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards and interpretations that are not
yet effective and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

136

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transactions
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

2.3

24
(i)

(ii)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’'s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States Dollar ("US$"). The financial
statements are presented in HK$ which is the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

24
(iii)

25

138

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy), that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

5% or over the unexpired
period of the lease

5% or over the unexpired
period of the lease

7% to 10%

20% to 33%

Building
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Office furniture and fixtures

20% to 33%
20%

Computer equipment
Motor vehicles
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2.6

2.7

2.8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings and
the costs of plant and machinery, installation testing and
other direct costs. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for the intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.5 above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost represents upfront prepayments made
for the rights to use the land over the lease term of 41 to
45 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Intangible assets

Computer Software

Acquired computer software license is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
The computer software acquired is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. These costs are amortised over estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

140

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(1) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date, in which
case they are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, short term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on the trade-date being the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When securities classified as
available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

142

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.

For insurance policy investments, if any such evidence
exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of insurance policy investments classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less cost to sell.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturity of three months
or less and bank overdrafts.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

(i)

144

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.21
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

146

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

(ii)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of goods

Sale of goods are recognised when a Group's entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Government grants

2.25

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements.

When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

2.27 Dividend distribution

148

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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(a)

(ii)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance. Risk management is regularly carried out by
the senior management of the Company under policies
approved by the executive directors of the Company.

Price risk

Majority of the raw materials used by the Group are
polyester, polyamide and spandex and are subject to market
price risk. The Group has not used any hedging activities to
hedge its exposure to market price risk.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Group has no
debt securities and investment funds.

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits, which earn low interest income. The Group's
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure
to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
borrowings with floating interest rates. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates.
The Group has not hedged its cash flow interest rate risk.
Details of the Group’s borrowings have been disclosed in
Note 23.

As at 31 March 2018, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$14,095,000 (2017: HK$8,143,000), resulting from the
changes in borrowing costs of net borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam. Most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, Renminbi
("RMB") and US$. Most of its sales proceeds are received
in US$, and most of the purchases are conducted in US$.
Since HK$ is pegged with US$, management is of the
opinion that the foreign exchange risk arising from US$ is
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

(a)
(iii)

(iv)

150

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has limited Euro (“EUR")
denominated trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings and trade and other payables. The
foreign exchange exposure in respect of EUR is considered
as minimal.

As at 31 March 2018, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against HK$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 would have been
approximately HK$257,000 (2017: HK$167,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB denominated trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
payables held by the Group's entities in Hong Kong.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and
bills receivables, other receivables and deposits and cash
and bank balances. Credit risk is managed on a group
basis. Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to theses credit risks on an on-going basis. The
carrying amounts of theses balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

As at 31 March 2018, majority of the bank deposits of the
Group are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Vietnam, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these financial institutions.
The Group has no policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institutions.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 41% (2017: 33%) of its trade and bills receivables
were from the five largest customers (2017: five), which are
mainly reputable corporations. Considering the track record
of regular repayment of trade receivables and based on the
Group's experience with respect to the collection of trade
and bills receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by these customers is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with
appropriate credit history. The Group has not determined
any credit limit for customers, however, the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group's historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables and deposits and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and management is of the opinion
that no provision for uncollectible receivables is necessary
and the credit risk to the Group is insignificant. The major
trade debtors have no history of default.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from its operations and
bank borrowings. The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and have sufficient available
funding through committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors believe that the
Group has maintained sufficient general banking facilities
for financing capital commitment in the near future and for
working capital purposes.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$450,125,000 (2017: HK$412,280,000)
and trade and bills receivables of HK$848,787,000 (2017:
HK$672,760,000), respectively, that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The tables below analyse the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The analysis shows the cash outflow based on agreed

scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements, while
interest payments are computed using contractual rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

3

(a)
v)

Within

HK$’000
BT IT

As at 31 March 2018 A2018%F3H31H

BRERER @)

MBREREERE)
mBELmE(E)

Between
2 and

5 years
—ZFEHF
HK$°000
BEET T

Between
1 and

2 years
—EWE
HK$°000
BT T

Total
et
HK$°000
BT T

Trade payables B S ERERR 408,884 - - 408,884
Accruals and other payables  fExHE B & E b fEN 7008 357,022 = = 357,022
Borrowings B 1,164,500 521,848 464,006 2,150,354
Bank interest payables FERHERTTHRE 33,751 21,394 8,317 63,462
1,964,157 543,242 472,323 2,979,722
As at 31 March 2017 A2017%3831H
Trade payables = AN N 356,098 - - 356,098
Accruals and other payables fEztE 3 & E fth fES I8 273,297 - - 273,297
Borrowings =B 877,289 352,983 253,421 1,483,693
Bank interest payables FERHRTTFI B 17,782 11,357 3,540 32,679
1,524,466 364,340 256,961 2,145,767
Fair value estimation (b) AFEME

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, and the Group’s current financial liabilities,
including trade payables, accruals and other payables and
borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities. Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at
fair values. For the non-current portion of the borrowings,
as the borrowings bear floating rates, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values. The nominal value less
estimated credit adjustments for financial assets and
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed
to approximate their fair values.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

Fair value estimation (Continued) (b)
The following table presents the Group’'s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value:

e RBRRME

BREREREm

DFEMEE (5
TRENNAEERAFEAENEE
kEfE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—& -~k 1 E=/ et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BTz BE¥Ta BT
As at 31 March 2018 7A2018F3H31H
Assets EE
Available-for-sale financial AtHESREE
assets - - 66,631 66,631
As at 31 March 2017 R201753H31H
Assets EE
Available-for-sale financial AtEESRmEE
assets - - 56,796 56,796

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between
level 1, level 2 and level 3.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange or
dealer, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

The fair value of unlisted insurance policy investments that
is not traded in an active market is determined by reference
to the expected return from the insurance policy investment
which in turn is mainly derived from the account value of the
insurance policy.
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B R AERTS - AEBEFBERH
BEMAMBSHREABRITEAE - &
ETRINAE MR -

FoRE2HMITA
WIHRNERTSEENITESRIA
B A FENBGERMNEE LS
ERMEENA RG] BEmS
g RELCBEBFEMEET -0
TARFEAENE2HMERHAEBER
AR ZTRAGIAE M -

F=R=2MITA
WIRNERTIE LR FHIELTIRE
BEHNAFEDZEZRERENTE
HERMEBET  MEEFREZHRER
BREREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBREEw®
(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) AFEMFTE)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TXRE25EZE20184%F K&201743 A31
instruments for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. BItFEE=HRTEEF -
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
As at 1 April R4H1H 56,796 48,626
Additions NE 9,434 7,679
Disposal HeE (350) -
Reclassification adjustment upon HERENOIERAE
disposal (16) -
Fair value gain recognised to other P E M 2 T U A FERR B
comprehensive income N ERE 767 491
As at 31 March M3A31H 66,631 56,796
Total gains or losses for the year FRATFEET ABEN
included in profit or loss for assets FRU sk EEERE

held at the end of the year - _

Changes in fair value gains or losses FRAFABENERATE
for the year included in profit or loss Wi B R )
at the end of the year - _

(c) Capital risk management (c) EXERER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEBEBEEANBERRARELRER
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it HESENRE N HMEEAKRER
can continue to provide returns for shareholder and benefits 6] 57 f2 A H O F) 5 40 BE & R A
for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital & WHFREERNEBREER
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain A o B RRABEERER K&
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the B e AR NTRREORESTE @
amount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital to REBREBEER  FTHRILEEE
shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. LR A B o
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(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had a gearing
ratio of 59% and 41%, respectively. This ratio is calculated
as net debts (represented by bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratios
were as follows:

(c)

e RBRRME

BREREREm

EXEBREE®

AEBEREEABHEXERESR
A o R20184 & 201743A31H -
AEEEERBLED R /59% Kk
4% ° %L FRIZFERS (AVRTT UK
R RASEEY)RESAENE -
BEABHEROT

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT

Total borrowings (Note 23) a5 (MI5E23) 2,150,354 1,483,693
Less: AR

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) Re RBLEEW(HIEE20) (450,125) (412,280)

Net debt SEET 1,700,229 1,071,413

Total equity 4B 2,869,582 2,620,092

Gearing ratio EEAELE 59% 41%

The increase in gearing ratio from 41% as at 31 March
2017 to 59% as at 31 March 2018 was primarily due to the
increase in net debt as a result of capital expenditure for
production facilities in Vietnam.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

FEERE2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

BEBEBEHLXRMH2017F3A31THY
A1% 1B INE201843 A31 HAI59% -
HEZHREEEERENE AR
SEBFEBIGN o

FEETHEET R A

AEBRBEBELRMEMAZ (R
AREHERELTVBZERERLR
AT RBRENRREMHTER) - K&
AHE AR R R P R A (T S AT

AEBERREHGET REBR - B
B®E - FMELASEFEOEAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

156

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less cost to sell.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. Write-downs of inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
and other debtors and the current market condition, and
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Provisions
are applied to receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of receivables and the provision for impairment losses
in the year in which such estimate has been changed.
Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Vietnam. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

4

(a)

(b)

(c)

FESTHEEF R HE o)

FEAERFE
FEABEFESATSEHTMATE
BRHERAN - ZRE[ETRBAITHNR
NEBUMEEEMROBEREREE
RERIEH - FEMORN EHHIBENE
BEURN SR IORBE R IR ARR - 25
R, ZEE A HI T B AT o TR EAE B
RREMGF  ZEREFEFRERA
BERZEHESHENFEHRE
e BEERNSEERENTERS
ftiat o

B 5 P W AR R e HL At BB WK IR R
=]
REBEEEERESRRAFREREE
R BEESEUER AR
WHKIRRBE R o LR D ERE
EPREMEFANBEEECENAR
B - /R8I R b At - B
HRBERABBRGEHRICRERE -
Ale MR BFRE L B S - HTEHA
MRREME  REB BT EREK
BREERZEHEEFE R ER
BRESH EEERSHEREN
AP -

FriS®t

REBARER - P EKEE AT
B EETEEHEGE  F2F
HEARHAE - ERFEEBHBIET - &
DR METHITS R RRTHIRERE
VEFEIEERR - AEBEREMG
EBBBNBEIINHK - LB HIARE
REE - WEZEFTENRERBER
BRRBENARESHE  ZEZHSTE
1 i E A P 0 B AT 18 BUR RE R R
Y
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(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the "“Executive
Directors”) are the Group's chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Executive Directors review the performance of
the Group mainly from the product perspective. The
Group is organised into three segments engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of:

(i) Bras and intimate wear;
(i) Bra pads and other molded products; and
(i) Functional sports products.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit of
each segment, which is consistent with that of the financial
statements. Other information, as noted below, is also
provided to the Executive Directors. The revenue reported to
the Executive Directors is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated income statement.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
as follows:

Bras and
intimate
wear

WER
BERAK
HK$°000

D ERE R ()

BZE2018F3A31 AL FEM D BPEAE
LB

Bra pads
and other Functional
molded sports
products products Total
HaM R H s TheetE
EREm EHEEm st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T

BT BE¥TR  B¥Tr

Total segment revenue o EBUTA 4,728,567 524,670 614,811 5,868,048
Gross profit/segment results EF, DEpELE 1,019,464 111,483 116,102 1,247,049
Other income and

other gains, net H A R E A o F 5 21,760
Distribution and selling

expenses DERIHERE (158,977)
General and administrative

expenses —MRRITHF X (578,594)
Research and development

costs TRERA (195,920)
Finance income BIUA 625
Finance costs B TSR AR (49,839)
Profit before income tax B ETE R AR 286,104
Income tax expense FTERAY (45,916)
Profit for the year F 75 7 240,188

Other segment item included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:

Depreciation included in HABERANITE
cost of sales 144,375

HAEZE2018F3A31HILFELZAEI
mRMNEMSIEHMOT ¢

40,035 15,413 199,823
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
as follows:

Bras and
intimate
wear

ek
R 5 AKX
HK$'000

e RBRRME

DEBER ()

HZE2017F3A3NHILFEND I ELE
NN

Bra pads
and other  Functional
molded sports
products products Total
MR R B At Theelt
KEER EDFED et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR

BETRL  BETT  BETR

Total segment revenue D EC AN A 3,729,811 512,746 434,380 4,676,937
Gross profit/segment results ER,/ DELEE 726,396 106,956 82,473 915,825
Other income and E A R B A 55 55

other gains, net 25,070
Distribution and selling DR HEERS

expenses (121,742)
General and administrative —RRATERY

expenses (467,298)
Research and development PN

costs (160,297)
Finance income TN 1,447
Finance costs BRI R AR (32,822)
Profit before income tax KR PSR AT F 160,183
Income tax expense FTEfAY (62,548)
Profit for the year F A5 A 97,635

Other segment item included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Depreciation included in SFASBERANITE
cost of sales 93,358

A E2017E3A31BILFELHZA N
HEROEMHIBFEMOT

35,427 6,792 135,677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2#ER®

Revenue from external customers based on the destination BEZFEMMEI S HINIEEE A

of the customers are as follows: R

160

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T T IT

United States EJE| 3,163,539 2,813,989
The PRC A 612,704 468,650
Europe BOM 530,904 403,474
Hong Kong ) 362,673 310,674
Japan B 488,643 172,324
South-east Asia (Note a) HrE I (M5Ta) 195,858 128,457
South Asia (Note b) EEEE)) 69,215 48,451
Others countries/regions (Note c) EMmBER, R (Mic) 444,512 330,918
5,868,048 4,676,937

Note a:  Includes Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines, Vietnam
and Thailand.

Note b:  Includes Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and India.

Note ¢:  Include Taiwan, Turkey, Australia, Colombia and others.

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the Executive
Directors.

Non-current assets, other than available-for-sale financial
assets, of the Group are located in the following
geographical areas:

ffsta: BIESKES  DEREDS - M
¥ FFRE - BEREE -

fistb :  BE&MNE - HEFRREE -

Miztc: BEAE  LFHE BN St
EREM -

BRI EEHANTEFREDHLE
ESNBRENER  BALE2ID
BEEXDEEENIN -

AEEMIETRBEE(BRAHELESH
BEINAAA T IR R

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT TEEEF T

The PRC e 1,008,112 936,509
Hong Kong BA 55,220 52,888
Vietnam A=) 2,715,019 1,974,772
3,778,351 2,964,169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2H&ER@®

An analysis of the Group’s major customers, each of which ZBEMHAEE10% A EIMEBUR AR
accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue, is AEEBFEZELOMWT ¢

as follows:

Customer Location Segments 2018 2017
BF wE 2% 2018% 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTR ARTT

Customer A ZFEA United States ~ %H Bras and intimate wear B % 85 & A&k 1,791,182 1,407,382
Customer B EFB Japan S Bras and intimate wear,

molded products ME KRB ERK - HE

and functional sports EmRIEitESE

products B 915,185 N/A TiE
CustomerC  FFC United States ~ %H Bras and intimate wear B %85 & A&k 463,894 512,285

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET 6 HWARHAWKWSFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEET T ST IT
Other income Hig A
Scrap sales income EERESEE I A 4,632 651
Government grants (Note) BB (M) 16,135 24,519
Others Hith 721 343
21,488 25,513
Other gains/(losses), net Hutzs (558)F8
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale  HERHESRIEE
financial assets 30 -
Gains on disposal of land use rights H & + b (s A RELR RS 242 -
Losses on derivative financial TSR T ABE
instruments, net - (443)
272 (443)
21,760 25,070
Note: BE -
There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to BEAEZSHMNRBITIEFREMmRES
these grants. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

162

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Amortisation of leasehold land and land

THE 4 R b i PR A 8

BHEEINMAX

2018
20184

HK$'000
BT T

2017
20174
HK$'000
BT T

use rights (Note 14) (FizE14) 6,071 3,871
Amortisation of intangible assets MR A EE S (MY:E15)

(Note 15) 7,759 7,503
Auditor's remuneration ZEENEN S

— Audit services — = ER 2,700 2,500

— Non-audit services — L ERTS 735 1,439
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMRETE

equipment (Note 13) (F5E13) 260,643 164,563
Bank charges RITE A 3,250 3,245
Consumables R 150,526 111,730
Cost of inventories sold (Note 17) BEEFEXRAMHE17) 2,165,994 1,777,511
Provision for impairment of inventories 77 & (& & & (FizE17)

(Note 17) - 2,648
Donations B 1,108 949
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BB Y (Hs) 2,383,902 1,969,041
Freight and transportation expenses BiENERRAYT 53,266 51,386
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HE&EWZE - BE &&EETE

equipment 13,357 1,724
Operating lease rental of land and T REFREEHERS

buildings 96,514 81,781
Utilities NARS 136,327 110,336
Others EHih 272,338 220,222
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKA ~ DIHRHERS -

selling expenses, general and — R RATHF 2 A

administrative expenses and research 2 AR 44 %8

and development costs 5,554,490 4,510,449

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EFX (BIEESH

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T7& - %% - {EAT &O£EL 2,098,895 1,738,467
Retirement benefit costs — defined RIRREFIRAR — E B

contribution schemes (Note (a)) =TEI(M3E@)) 212,787 177,409

Staff welfare and benefits BITEM &R 72,220 53,165

2,383,902 1,969,041
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution
schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group's
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC and Vietnam are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local governments. The Group contributes
a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions. The state-managed retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include five (2017: five) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 32.

FINANCE COSTS, NET

(a)

(b)

e RBRRME

EERABEZ(BREEEMH
&)

RAKABERIAR A — E AR E

AEELZHEFTERESMBHIER
BEFtE([eEEtE])  BESA
IRBBIX AT RN ERMAE
|- RIFEBEDFTE  AREREE
i EBEAREBEARCEE RRHIE
RIS EG])b%AGT B K - K
SENEESENTGARALRRA
#1,6007T - BBHZFEBEHOHKASR
TEBRAMEHR -

Bl

‘D B |

N

ARRRAHE RSN ERESE
B BT 2 EMNBRE IR RKENE
EWKE - AEBEZMBAREEH
EHMETEDLER  RFEEHK
S - BB E BRSO R KR SOR KR
BNEBERE—ZFEE BEREEENK
ArEIRRARKEE X NZERAKSE

EEEEHALT
FRNAEEREBREHFATBERS
(2017 : AB)EF - EFHBRMF
28D AT R BR o

/B 9D RANE

2018
20184

2017
20174
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Finance income B A

— interest income on bank deposits — IRITIFECR B A 625 1,447

Finance costs B AR

— interest expense on borrowings — & B (66,218) (48,322)

Less: interest expenses capitalised B AR BRI 16,379 15,500
(49,839) (32,822)

Finance costs, net B TSP AN F 5 (49,214) (31,375)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

10 SUBSIDIARIES

10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2018:

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital
BRETRBE
BREZMER

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
AL R R
EEERER

B B 2 7]

TR A#201
a

Effective
interest
held (%)

FifE

ERER

SFE3IA3IANEBWER

Principal activities and
place of operation
FEXBR

EEBR

Directly held by the Company

RAREERESE

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

B P BR (R BERAF

Indirectly held by the Company

AAREERS

Regina Miracle International
(Group) Limited

HERER (SE)BRAF

Regina Miracle International
Limited
BY BB ARAT

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited
BRAVEARORYN) AR AR

Honour First (Hong Kong)
Limited
ER(EE)BRAR

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen)
Limited
BORANR(RINBERRA

164

British Virgin Islands, US$100
limited liability 100%7T
company

EBRUES -

BREARH

Hong Kong, limited HK$5,000,000
liability company 75 #£5,000,0007C

S AREAAF

Hong Kong, limited HK$100
liability company BE1007T

&% BREERT

The People’s Republic HK$300,000,000
of China (the "PRC"), /##300,000,0007C
limited liability
company

g AR LME
([HE]) -

BREART

Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000
liability company 7 #£10,0007C

BH  BREAAF

The PRC, limited liability ~ HK$20,000,000
company 720,000,0007C

hE - BRAERAE

(Batt)

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # iR (IZR)ERA A

Investment holding in British
Virgin Islands
REBRELRSET
REZK

Trading of brassieres and
panties, and functional
sports products in Hong
Kong

REREENE R AEN KL
et ESEER

Trading of bra pads and
other molded products in
Hong Kong

REBE R X
EAEEE R

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties, and
functional sports products
in the PRC

PB4 I B % AR DA K
e EHEER

Provision of sales agency
and information
technology services in
Hong Kong

REBREHEERER
B R AR S

Manufacturing of bra
pads and other molded
products in the PRC

PR B A EE AR
HiEEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

10 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
AL R R
EEERER

10

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital
BRTRBE
RE ZMRER

Effective
interest
held (%)

Fri

EREs

(Batt)

Bt B A B (1)

Principal activities and
place of operation
FEEBR

EEBH

Regina Miracle International British Virgin Islands, US$2 100%  Investment holding in British
(Vietnam) Limited limited liability 2% 100% Virgin Islands
B IREIR () BIR AR company NEBRE LS ETREER
KBRS
BREARQT
Regina Miracle International Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100%  Investment holding in Hong
(Vietnam) Limited liability company 75#10,0007C 100% Kong
HLIREIR () BIR AR B BREFAT REBETREER
Regina Miracle International Vietnam, limited liability ~ US$389,453,263 100%  Manufacturing of brassieres
(Vietnam) Limited Co., Ltd company 389,453,263% T 100% and panties in Vietnam
Regina Miracle International M BREELH R EENE R AE
(Vietnam) Limited Co., Ltd
Regina Miracle International Hai  Vietnam, limited liability Nil 100%  Manufacturing of sports
Duong Co., Ltd (Note) company z 100% footwear in Vietnam
Regina Miracle International Hai HE - BREELH REREEEDE
Duong Co., Ltd (FifzE)
Regina Miracle International Vietnam, limited liability US$7,516,252 100%  Manufacturing of brassieres
(Vinh Phuc) Co., Ltd company 7,516,2525% T 100% and panties in Vietnam
Regina Miracle International HE - AREEAR AR E W E RN E
(Vinh Phuc) Co., Ltd
Regina Miracle International British Virgin Islands, US$2 100%  Investment holding in British
Group (Suzhou) Limited limited liability 2%ETT 100% Virgin Islands
BY R EREE (BMN)BERAF company NEBRRBEETIREER
RBRUES
BREART
Regina Miracle International Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100% Investment holding in Hong
Group (Suzhou) Limited liability company BT 100% Kong
BY R EREE (BMN)BERAF B%  BREEAR REBETREER
Regina Miracle International The PRC, limited liability ~ HK$53,080,000 100%  Manufacturing of brassieres
Group (Suzhou) Limited company 7153,080,0007T 100% and panties in the PRC
HEIREIREE (BN BRAR HE - BREEAF R BEEERE R AE
Regina Miracle Management Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100%  Investment holding in Hong
Limited liability company BT 100% Kong
B RERAR AR "S- ABREAAT REBEITIREER
Note: S

The Company is deregistered on 12 October 2017. ZARR2017F10 812 BBUH M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

11

166

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 25% (2017: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises
engaged in research and development activities are entitled
to claim 150% of the research and development expenses
so incurred in a period as tax deductible expenses in
determining its tax assessable profits for that period (“Super
Deduction”). Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, has applied such
Super Deduction during the year (2017: Nil).

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2017:
20%). In accordance with the applicable tax regulations, a
subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen
consecutive years, commencing from the first year of
making revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first four years
from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated for
the first time or (i) the fourth year of making revenue; and
a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next nine
years. The Vietnam subsidiaries of the Group do not have
any taxable profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 after
offsetting losses in prior year (2017: Nil).

11 FISHRAX

HE2018FE3A31BILEE - [hEtER
BRE A B 1%16.5% (20174F : 16.5%)
R REHRE B FIEFEE -

HZE2018F3A31HILFEE  K&EE
FR BB A BB E R 2R &225% (2017
F 1 25%) o

AR 15 A B B 2R 7 75 42 B B AR 46 B 2008
FRARN—HBUR - REWHEEE
WE¥EEREETEPMERFE R
B e HA R E AE T3 B L A9 150 % HR
WMAEMMBASZ([@BEERN]) - &2
AMBATEBREZRAKRCEINDE
FRA BB RF A AZEEE (2017
Fm) o

A R AR A 38 W B B R Bl 7B 12 20%
(20174 : 20% ) BIFE R SR 1 2 P15
e BEERBIEESR  —HEEA
AEANEFREE T AFERER
EI10% B o o - BOEERNE
FHELEBRANENF (BRREER
EVREITENERN - ZMBAREES
HERRBMEEMBH  TRERN
FRNZEONTEMSHEAR - BE
2018F3A31HIEFE « AEEMME
MR R R E— FEMEIBER
AT FERRBE A (201746 : &) ©

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #2iREIRR(ZR)ERLE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FISEBAXZwe
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income EREERERTINGRNFHIBESEN
statement represents: T
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current income tax BUERFR1S B
— Hong Kong profits tax —BEFER 19,857 33,352
- PRC enterprise income tax — B EMEH 37,676 24,907
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RBEEE (BERE),
BETR (11,456) 8,661
Deferred income tax (Note 24) IRIEFTISBL(FI3E24) (161) (4,372)
Income tax expense FRiSH1 5 2 45,916 62,548
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs N2 BIBR AT S B AT s A A9 B 18 B R A
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the AR B A DR T A hniE I =
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group SHNERSEHEE0T

companies as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before income tax K BT 1S F5 Al vaa A 286,104 160,183
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate E AR AR
applicable to profits in respective i B0 B A B R S OB IE
jurisdictions 48,876 38,426
Tax effects of: M E
Income not subject to tax BERB AU A (1,073) (3,042)
Expenses not deductible for taxation B AR X
purpose 10,169 6,166
Utilisation of previously unrecognised &) SR AR MERH
tax losses FiiEEsiE (2,462) -
Tax losses for which no deferred W AERERIELE TS
income tax asset was recognised MEAEMNTIEERE 1,862 12,337
(Over)/under-provision in prior years PBEFE (BREkiE)
BIET 2 (11,456) 8,661
Income tax expense PTSHiF 45,916 62,548
The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended HZE2018F3A31THILFE @ NiE
31 March 2018 was 17.1% (2017: 24.0%). The decrease FHEARER/17.1% (2017 F ¢
is primarily due to changes in the profitability of the 24.0%) ° ZMEREEHRANFERH
subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions of tax in current U B ERE R 9P B A R B T B
year. g@ﬂaﬁﬁ =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

12
(a)

(b)

168

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
Basic (a) &R
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FRERBIIGANATES AFER G
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted MR AFERE T E B INGE T8
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. =tTE o
2018 2017
20184 20174
Profit attributable to owners of the /NI Z SNyl
Company (HK$'000) (B¥EFIT) 240,188 97,635

Weighted average number of ordinary B 317 % @A INEFHE
shares in issue ('000) (FH) 1,224,250 1,224,250

Basic earnings per share (expressed in B EARZEF

HK cents per share) (LABREWLZES)) 19.6 8.0
Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March HE2018F M2017F3 831 B ItHF
2018 and 2017 are the same as the basic earnings per share - BRI EBETETEE TR
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued. WEREE RN SR GREARRZR]

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% MERRE

Motor  Construction in
vehicles progress Total

Office furniture
and fixtures
HOBAR
BERE

Plant and
machinery

Leasehold
Buildings - improvements

Computer
equipment

BE HENREE  HERER

U

ARIE it

HKS000

i

HKS000

HKS000
AT

HK$000 HKS000

HKS000 HKS000
i it BT

BmT BmTI

HKS000

As at 1 April 2016 H201654A1A
Cost s 164,994 839,281 975312 90,261 81,303 24303 759,869 293,373
Accumulated depreciation giflig (9.954) (314,355 (492,088) (69.211) (o4, 444) (15.221) - (955,273
Net book amount BHZE 165,040 524,926 483284 21,040 26859 9,082 759,869 1,980,100
Yearended 31 March 2017 BZ2017E3R31A L EE
Qpening net book amount EEmEE 195,040 524926 183,084 21,000 26,859 9082 759869 1,980,100
Additions e 6,93 112915 243424 78155 40,680 7913 331,669 821,691
Disposals HE - (202 (2609 (68) (1) 8) - (2,888)
Transfer-nflout £1/(th) 173,133 169,720 10 6,137 5313 - (354313) -
Depreciation i (7.975) (65,729) (71,581) (11,829 (14,202 (3,287) - (164,563)
Currency tranlation differences  £EAEEE (1617 (10,903 (13,766 (288) (134 (203) (17,186 (44,697)
Closing net book amount EXEmEE 325,516 40,721 638,802 LANLY) 57915 13497 720,039 2,589,643
As at 31 March 2017 H0153A31A
Cost i 342,893 1,102,014 1,186,409 172919 123937 31,083 720,039 367929
Accumulated depreciation iflig [17.377) (361,287) (647,607) (19772) (66,022) (17,586) - (1,089,651
Net book amount FHZE 325,516 40,721 638,802 R4 57915 13497 720,039 2,589,643
Yearended 31 March 2018 BZ201853A31ALEE
Opening net ook amount EfEmEE 325516 140,721 638,802 93,147 57915 13497 120,039 2,589,643
Additions HE 100413 102,652 435,043 18,587 15,951 6,589 317410 1,056,705
Disposals it - (12,868) (191) - () (136) - (14.962)
Transfern/out] £)\/(1) 402585 168,960 2526 36,923 10,768 - (621,762) -
Depreciation i (27,660) (80,995) (95,134) (33,008) (18.293) (4,340) (1.213) 260,643)
Currency translation differences  E¥AEZS 284 22884 26,559 1588 1200 209 (8,59) 413
Closing net hook amount EXEAIE 801,138 941,360 1,005,885 mai 67,501 15,819 405,938 3414878
As at 31 March 2018 H2018%3A31A
Cost it 847,450 1392573 1,650,111 292,136 154,997 34,829 407,151 4119241
Accumulated depreciation 23k (46,312) (451.213) (644,226) (114,899) (87.49) (19,010 (1213)  (1,364,369)
Net book amount FEZE 801,138 941,360 1,005,885 mai 67,501 15,819 405,938 3414878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 W% BMERRE®
(Continued)
Depreciation expense charged in consolidated income RERARERINGOITERSZIOT

statement is as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
ik e TEEETF T
Cost of sales FHER A 199,823 135,577
General and administrative expenses —MERITH R 57,502 26,693
Research and development costs RS AR 3,318 2,293
260,643 164,563
14 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14 HET R T HFERARE
RIGHTS
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights NEENHEE + i K 4 AR
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net w(NAMEEEERER AR
book values are analysed as follows: BT :
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT IT
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 244,683 170,019
Additions NE 77,109 81,202
Disposals HE (13,013) -
Amortisation (Note 7) BeE(FIRE7) (6,071) (3,871)
Currency translation differences B E = (1,154) (2,667)
Closing net book amount FARIEEFE 301,554 244,683
As at 31 March MA3A31H
Cost B%N 317,639 253,844
Accumulated amortisation Sty (16,085) (9,161)
301,554 244,683
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is included HE TR+ AEEEA ALE
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. W R S E R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

e RBRRME

15 EREE

Computer
software

LA S
HK$°000
BT T

As at 1 April 2016 7A20165F481H
Cost D& 64,031
Accumulated amortisation ESE:£icl (17,946)
46,085
Year ended 31 March 2017 BZE2017F3A31BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 46,085
Additions INE 7,156
Amortisation b (7,503)
Currency translation differences B 2 (656)
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 45,082
As at 31 March 2017 R201763H31H
Cost PR AR 70,275
Accumulated amortisation S ic (25,193
45,082
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE£2018F3A31HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 45,082
Additions NE 6,276
Amortisation R (7,759)
Currency translation differences BRI E R 1,153
Closing net book amount FAREmIFE 44,752
As at 31 March 2018 720183 H31H
Cost B AR 78,304
Accumulated amortisation e it (33,552)
44,752

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income

statement.

BVEAE#HEF AGERARN R
RATHFAX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

Unlisted: FELT
— Insurance policy investments —RERE

16 AItHEESHEE

AT ESREERRNATEE

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

66,631 56,796

Movement of the available-for-sale financial assets is as
follows:

AHHESREEZSHNT -

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year REH] 56,796 48,626
Additions NE 9,434 7,679
Disposals k=3 (350) -
Reclassification adjustment upon HEREHDIEAR
disposal (16) -
Fair value gain recognised to other REA 2 E AR
comprehensive income N ERE 767 491
End of the year RER 66,631 56,796
Less: non-current portion o IERENEE D (66,631) (56,796)

Current portion mENEL 7

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of
the unlisted insurance policy investments represented the
account value of the insurance policy which approximates
their fair values.

MR2018F K&20179F3A31H » 3kt
REFZEMNEMEEEAEQAFERE
MREFOEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 AIMtHESRMEE @)

(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the AR ESREEN T EEDE
following currencies:

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Uss$ E7T 31,761 26,147
HK$ B 34,870 30,649
66,631 56,796

17 INVENTORIES 17 &

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Raw materials FEM R 365,713 275,774
Work-in-progress TR 363,675 464,206
Finished goods BIPK B 100,221 73,008
829,609 812,988

Less: provision for impairment B RBE RS (2,648) (2,648)
Inventories, net FE % 826,961 810,340
The cost of raw materials recognised as expense and HZE2018F3A31HIFE @ #RAH
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately SWEF ABEER AR EM BN A
HK$2,165,994,000 (2017: HK$1,777,511,000) for the year 75 2,165,994,000 7T (2017 6F « B #

ended 31 March 2018. 1,777,511,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18 EFZEWRITKREREE
2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
ik e TEEETF T
Trade and bills receivables Z ZEWERSR R ER R 848,787 672,760
The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables B 5) FEWAR 50 % FE SR 45 o AR T {5 B
approximate their fair values. HRAFEERE -

(a)  Trade and bills receivables, based on due date, were aged as (a) EZEWER N EWEEREE S H

follows: HERRE B AREINT
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current BN &R 741,910 575,496
1-30 days 12304 86,890 84,065
31-60 days 31260H 7,698 4,934
61-90 days 61290H 1,509 2,294
Over 90 days HiE90H 10,780 5,971
_Amounts past due but notimpaired ~ B@SiE&HEMNSHE 0 106877 ¢ 97,264
848,787 672,760
The credit period granted by the Group is generally 30 to AEERENERB—MKA30E120
120 days. =
Amounts past due but not impaired relate to a number of EaiEmRREN S EEN AR
independent customers for whom there is no recent history HRFEESMBYREER -
of default.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RBEEBHARZHR AN EERRE R
was the carrying value of each receivables mentioned ENREMEHEEWFIENREE -
above, the Group does not hold any collateral as security. AREEWEFFEE TR RERER -
(b)  Asat 31 March 2018 and 2017, no trade and bills receivables (b)  HA2018F K%201743A31H » HEE
were considered impaired and had been provided for. 5 FEUBR R 2 FE I R IR 4 AR R (B 3k
EERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18 EFEWRAREREE

(#)
(c)  The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables are ) BIEBEERZEREEMNREEBENA
denominated in the following currencies: THEHE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

US$ ESS 680,533 495,908
HK$ e 9,885 10,430
RMB AR 158,329 166,422
EUR BT 40 -
848,787 672,760

(d) As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group's trade and (d) M2018F3A31H ' Est AREER

bills receivables were amounts due from a related party of BHRVEFMNERRERER %
approximately HK$4,799,000 (2017: HK$2,354,000) (Note R 38 75 BRI 49785 % 4,799,000 7T, (2017
30(c)). F : #¥#2,354,0007T) (FIFE30(c)) °
19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 e - BRAREREME
RECEIVABLES WKIE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current portion FERBNEL
Rental, utilities and other deposits e AAREREMIZE 6,224 4,628
Prepayments for purchase of BEWE  BEK
property, plant and equipment REMEREEERN
and intangible asset FERFUOE 10,422 17,449
Prepayments for purchase of BEAELT R
leasehold land and land use rights T b (s AR TR TR IE - 62,684
Other prepayments HibFENFRIE 521 -
17,167 84,761
Current portion mENEN Y
Rental, utilities and other deposits e AAREBREMES 4,268 5,261
Value-added tax recoverable EEELEY 12,992 6,338
Other prepayments HAb B FRIE 18,001 16,814
Other receivables Hfh FEUGIE 12,038 3,105
47,299 31,518
Total deposits, prepayments and B« BARER
other receivables Hitb e R IE A5 64,466 116,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 & FANHREREME
=
RECEIVABLES (continued) W SR IE (1)
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables e REMERSZENEREREAN
approximate their fair values. FEBE °
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain e - AR FRIE K E e YR IE I
impaired assets. PRERBEEE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RN EHREEASHNSZAEERE A
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned EXRENSEERFIENREE ©
above. The Group does not hold collateral as security. AREENWEFF AR RERER -
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables are e REMEWRGIERREEIL T
denominated in the following currencies: EHEHE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HKS s 4,233 5,613
RMB AR # 3,719 3,869
VND W& 14,578 3,612
22,530 12,994
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERRESEEY
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT IT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRERFHERS 447,090 409,250
Bank deposits RITIFR 3,035 3,030
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEESEHEY 450,125 412,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

21

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

e RBRRME

20 RERBEEEY )

RBe RS EEYARERRITFR
AT EHEHE -

2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT TEEETF T
RMB (Note) AREE(BFFE) 120,304 108,127
HK$ ot 185,295 111,540
Uss$ ETT 118,372 189,719
VND (Note) M jE (BEE) 25,613 2,444
EUR BT 473 420
Others Hitb 68 30
450,125 412,280

Note: R

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$119,714,000 (2017:HK$108,086,000)
are held in the PRC as at 31 March 2018. Cash and cash equivalents
of HK$44,851,000 (2017: HK$19,390,000) are held in Vietnam as at 31
March 2018. They are subject to local exchange control regulations. Those
local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country concerned, other than through normal dividends.

SHARE CAPITAL

21

Re LIRS SEYHER119,714,0007L (2017
£ : #15108,086,0007T) 420183 A31 AR
FEEE - Be KRS EEYE44,851,000
JC(20174F © 7%%19,390,0007T ) 12201843 A
JINARBREREE - ZEREHX EHINEEE
EAIRE o ZFE M INEEIRIEHIR T A A
REARLOWMRE] - MIEBEBIEE DALIRS)

[N

Number of
shares Share capital

L 4E] A&7
(thousands) HK$'000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :

Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each FIEEO0.01 = TR L AL
As at 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and  #R201654A18 - 20174 &

2018 201843 H31H

(Fh) BT T

1,224,250 95,247
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REMBRRMEE

22 RESERVES 22 %%

Available-
Statutory for-sale
surplus financial
Share reserve assets Exchange  Retained

premium  (Note(i) reserve reserve  earnings Total
EEBinRE  THHE
RivEE (W) SMEERE HERE  REER At

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BRI BETT ‘ BT BETT
As at 1 April 2016 1201654 A1A 1,705,969 37,651 1,749 39,191 787,145 2,571,705
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 97,635 97,635
Currency translation differences EHREEE - - - (76,428) - (76,428)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AEMESHAE
financial assets AFERE - - 491 - - 491
Transfer to statutory reserve BRESATRE - 6,210 - - (6,210) -
Dividends KE - - - - (68,558) (68,558)
As at 31 March 2017 ®2017F3A318 1,705,969 43,861 2,240 (37,237) 810,012 2,524,845
As at 1 April 2017 1201754 A1A 1,705,969 43,861 2,240 (37,237) 810,012 2,524,845
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 240,188 240,188
Currency translation differences ERBEES - - - 69,763 - 69,763
Reclassification adjustment upon disposal HE R HES B
of available-for-sale financial assets BERERNEAE - - (16) - - (16)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale IEHMESHAE
financial assets AFERE - - 767 - - 767
Transfer to statutory reserve BESATRE - 11,288 - - (11,288) -
Dividends (Note 27) Re(zk27) - > - - (61212 (61,212)
As at 31 March 2018 R2018E3A31H 1,705,969 55,149 2,991 32,526 977,700 2,774,335
Note: B EE -
(i) Statutory surplus reserve (i) EERBBEE
The balance mainly represents statutory surplus reserve. In ERTBRETRHBEE - BIERFE
accordance with articles of association of certain subsidiaries MRS I B 2 B R E 1R 4R
incorporated in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to transfer Al - B AR EGRESEEEAR
10% of the profit after taxation prepared in accordance with PRC B 7 BRI EFN0% BB AT HEE -
accounting standards to the statutory reserve until the balance BEEHETMRAN50%A1E o ZiH#
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. Such reserve can be &R BRI ATE A R 5B s A A
used to reduce any losses incurred and to increase share capital. AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

23 BORROWINGS 23 B

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETTE

Bank borrowings RITIER
Non-current IERH 985,854 606,404
Current mE 1,164,500 877,289
2,150,354 1,483,693
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRI

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current FERE)
Portion of term loans due for P E2FERHEERN
repayment between 1 and 2 years THAERE D 521,848 352,983
Portion of term loans due for R2EFERHEERN
repayment between 2 and 5 years THAERE D 464,006 253,421
985,854 606,404
Current E
Portion of term loans due for MIFERIDEEERN
repayment within 1 year TFEHIE IS 361,264 105,338
Short-term bank loans RERIRITE R 803,236 771,951
1,164,500 877,289
Total bank borrowings IRITIEFRARR 2,150,354 1,483,693

As at 31 March 2017 and 2018, bank borrowings are
secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2018, total undrawn bank facilities
amounted to approximately HK$2,406,528,000 (2017:
HK$2,853,109,000).

MR2017F KX2018F3A31H » R1TE
FAARARAAT R THERQRIR
HE D EERIERA o

M201843A31H » RIEERITEE
18 FB 4 B 2,406,528,000 7T (2017
£ #152,853,109,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

23 BORROWINGS (continued) 23 {g—a’%k(%%i)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated RITERARAERU TEERE ¢
in the following currencies:

2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
ik e TEEETF T
HK$ B 1,545,670 834,775
US$ ETT 573,530 635,635
Japanese Yen ("JPY") HE(THE]) 31,154 13,283
2,150,354 1,483,693
As at 31 March 2018, the Group's borrowings bore floating 201843 A31H » REBMME R
rates and the effective interest rate per annum was 3.1% FEREAE - MEBEERENER31%
(2017: 2.6%). (20174 : 2.6%) °
24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 24 EIEFTEH
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities is as BRI AEEHNT
follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

At beginning of the year REH]) (5,851) (10,223)
Credited to the consolidated income FPAGRE Wk

statement (Note 11) (FF&ET1) 161 4,372

At end of the year RERXR (5,690) (5,851)
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the consolidated balance sheet:

e RBRRME

24 EIEFBH @)

EXMBHREERABREFEEAEA
SR TTIE A A BN EITR 1B & A 4R 3 AD
HRBEREREREREHY RF—
B BB o U TR EE HiHR
BENSBENFAEERBRRER

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E = -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (5,690) (5,851)
(5,690) (5,851)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be settled
after more than 12 months.

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year without taking into consideration
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction
are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities:

BELEFMGHEERABRER12(EA
RIEETT -

FRBEEMEHEERABAEDN

2 8) (1 2 R A — B A P
BT T -

EEFMEHEE !

Accelerated tax
depreciation

MEBIBITE

HK$'000

BEET T

As at 1 April 2016 201654 H1H 12,953
Credited to the consolidated income statement FAZEWER (2,994)
As at 31 March 2017 201793 A31H 9,959
As at 1 April 2017 H2017F481H 9,959
Credited to the consolidated income statement FAGZEWEREK (3,759)
As at 31 March 2018 R2018F3H31H 6,200
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REMBRRMEE

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 24 EIEMBB e

Deferred income tax assets: BLEFEHEE -
Net fair value
losses on
derivative
financial
instruments
TSR
IENATE
EBERE
HK$'000
BT

Tax losses

BIEREE st

HK$'000
BT

HK$'000
BT

182

As at 1 April 2016 7201654518 699 2,031 2,730
(Charged)/credited to the (e lzERIR),
consolidated income ARG KR

statement 2,077 1,378
As at 31 March 2017 M20179F3A31H 4,108 4,108
As at 1 April 2017 R2017F4H1H 4,108 4,108
Charged to the consolidated 4RA Uz R

income statement (3,598) (3,598)
As at 31 March 2018 201843 A31H 510 510

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$7,919,000 in respect of losses amounting to
HK$47,993,000 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income.

As at 31 March 2018, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$22,365,000 (2017: HK$16,493,000)
have not been established for the withholding taxation that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$447,307,000 (2017:
HK$329,843,000), as the directors considered that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and the related temporary difference will
not be reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable
future.

FRATREE B AR ERTE N ERE M
BEMNETE - AR EEHIAEE
BREEFASHERE - ARBEILER
] 4588 LA 3 R SR AR TR M 2 IS 18
7B ¥ 47,993,000 T HERELE ST E
EEE157,919,0007T ©

HREFRABEABERIEEZEN
BEATESREEYREEZRS
FTERABBRERT TSR
R 20184FE3 A31H » EIEFEH
B {5 %978 % 22,365,000 7T (2017 4F ¢
78 %5 16,493,000 7T ) A & Ht A B BT
BARIAELBFEMEMNHEELD
78 ¥ 447,307,000 7T (2017 F : B
329,843,0007T) M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables, based on invoice date, were aged as

follows:

25 EZEMNERMN

B 50 B SRS B R E AR
T

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0-30 days 0%E30H 242,922 144,237
31-60 days 31E60H 68,278 126,565
61-90 days 61Z=90H 92,083 78,038
Over 90 days HRiE90H 5,601 7,258
408,884 356,098

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in
the following currencies:

H 5 RMERMREEA T E®E

&

2018 2017
201845 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEET T BT

HK$ ot 142,003 156,111
US$ e 135,335 150,809
RMB AR 52,014 38,311
VND MEE 78,531 8,948
EUR BT 991 1,904
Others Hith 10 15
408,884 356,098

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their

fair values.

off IR
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REMBRRMEE

26 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 FEtERARHEMEMNRIE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Accruals for wages, salaries, staff T& %4 BIRMK
welfare and other related costs Hib B AN EE R 180,878 144,404
Payable for factory rent THHEEENRIA 12,283 13,605
Payable for utilities AR FEAS /IR 14,830 12,135
Payable for purchase of property, BEYE BEX
plant and equipment RABRER TR 95,470 49,175
Payable for purchase of intangible assets &5 & 124 & & Z08 198 795
Payable for construction in progress frETIREMRIA 159,396 128,037
Payable for purchase of leasehold land B EHEE R
and land use right b fF AR R FE ST IR 21,546 19,730
Other payables Hth - FRIE 71,319 68,973
555,920 436,854
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are FERT B R E b e FIBR R EE R
denominated in the following currencies: LATNEEHE -
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TEEEF T
HK$ Nt 86,151 36,779
RMB AR 174,539 160,284
US$ ETT 75,795 46,079
VND WEE 219,435 193,712
555,920 436,854
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables FE T B PR I E fth A< 3R IE B9 AR T (A Bl
approximate their fair values. HATEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

27 DIVIDENDS 27 RE

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Interim dividend, paid of HK2.5 cents BT R EER
per ordinary share L imAk2. 5781l 30,606 -

Final dividend, proposed, of HK3.8 cents & REIR S8R L AR
(2017: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share  3.8781{L1(20174 : 2.551l)

(Note (i) (PBEEG) 46,522 30,606
77,128 30,606

Note: sk -

(i) At a board meeting held on 28 June 2018, a final dividend of HK3.8 (i) MN201866 A28 BN ESTE SR
cents (2017: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share of the Company, F o EHRRNEZE2018F3A31B IE
totalling approximately HK$46,522,000 (2017: HK$30,606,000) FEMRAREARAGRE @R
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is to be proposed. These 3.8/l (20174 : 2.5%l) + & &4
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend 778 ¥ 46,522,000 7T (2017 F : B ¥
payable. 30,606,0007T) ° ZEHAMIERENA

WA R R %S, o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 28 REEKMBRE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) BRFAEMHANGEMELLEKRFERS
generated from operations FEEREER -
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T T IT
Profit before income tax BT ER B A 286,104 160,183
Adjustments for: LEFEE
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHE 4 N+ {F R
land use rights e 6,071 3,871
Amortisation of intangible assets B ER 7,759 7,503
Depreciation of property, W - WE &
plant and equipment BT E 260,643 164,563
Loss on disposal of property, HETE  BEK
plant and equipment BEEE 13,357 1,724
Provision for impairment of inventories 73 &R{E &S - 2,648
Gain on disposal of land use right & £ 3 {5 FRRE U 2% (242) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEESE
financial assets AEWE (30) -
Losses on derivative financial TSR T AEEFE
instruments, net - 443
Finance income BFASU A (625) (1,447)
Finance costs BTSN 49,839 32,822
622,876 372,310
Changes in working capital: EEESHE)
Inventories 8 (9,074) (132,249)
Trade and bills receivables E ZREWERS R ER R (173,628) (102,369)
Deposits, prepayments and other £ ARk
receivables H b eI RIE (6,802) 6,685
Trade payables Z S ENFIE 53,574 95,264
Accruals and other payables FERTE B R E A 508 42,838 21,342
Cash generated from operations KB IRFTEIN S 529,784 260,983
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FEMBRRMEE

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 28 REEKFBEES @)
(Continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEWE - BEREENEIE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RéraBReRER  LEVE  KBE
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: N EEABHES B R T HIAERK
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Net book amount BRMEFE 14,962 2,888
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE&
plant and equipment HiEEE (13,357) (1,724)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BE X

plant and equipment RAEPTISRIE 1,605 1,164
(c) Net debt reconciliation (¢) BEKYLEE

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash and cash equivalents HEREEEEY 450,125 412,280
Bank borrowings — repayable within RITER— BN FRER

one year (1,164,500) (877,289)

Borrowings - repayable after one year &3 — WM FEEEE (985,854) (606,404)

Net debt FETS (1,700,229) (1,071,413)

Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY 450,125 412,280

Gross debt — variable interest rates (ERSHAEE — n] &R K (2,150,354) (1,483,693)

Net debt RS (1,700,229) (1,071,413)
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e R BRRME

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(c)

(Continued)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

Other assets-
Cash and cash

equivalents
Hit -

HK$'000
BB

28 REEBFBREW

(c) FEBHRE

Liabilities

from financing
activities - Bank
borrowings
due within

1 year
HERIMES
BE-1ER
SHERTER
HK$'000
BETT

Liabilities

from financing

activities — Bank

borrowings

due after

1 year

RHERBMES

BE- 151k

FHRRITIER
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Net debt as at 1 April 2017 201754 A1 AR SER 412,280 (877,289) (606,404) (1,071,413)
Cash flows Reng 25,649 (287,211) (379,450) (641,012)
Foreign exchange adjustment INEFZE 12,196 - - 12,196
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 1201853 A31 BV FER 450,125 (1,164,500) (985,854) (1,700,229)
29 COMMITMENTS 29 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE

2018
20184

2017
20174
HK$'000
BT I

HK$'000
BT T

Contracted but not provided for EATAVMEN R VERE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 302,856 229,329
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE 140 N T i 49,989 89,388
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERE

REEREE - PE BRI NE
FOTARGHEEEHER RRKER
BN T

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of land and buildings
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam as follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Not later than one year THA—F 92,854 62,528
Later than one year and not later than ~ ER—4F

five years BT@BBRT 170,723 85,628

263,577 148,156
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control.

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands) owns 57.8% of the Company's
shares as at 31 March 2018 and is wholly owned and
controlled by Mr. Hung Yau Lit. In addition, Mr. Hung Yau
Lit directly holds 15.0% of the Company's shares as at 31
March 2018. The remaining shares are widely held. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Hung Yau Lit.

Name of related parties

RES AH

e RBRRME

BRELTRS

W—TT BRE N ERKMEEEN = —7
RS —IHEM B R EERRAR
EAFEN  ABTHREREH
& o BT RAARES - RIS R
BRBRE -

7201843 A31 H * Regent Marvel
Investment Holdings Limited (A 2L &
B RS ) B AR RF57.8%
B - WEENELEE2EHmE RIE
#il o kAN - B2018F3A318 - HITE
REEEFBARRI5.0% K G5 - &
TROBZHFALER - AEBEZK
AR Ty AR RS AE o

Relationship with the Company
il N 2L

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

BB 5 (EB)ERARA

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory
(Shenzhen) Limited

Common controlling shareholder
HEERRR

Common controlling shareholder

MEEEBBHCEY)ERAR SRR AR R
(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a) BEFBBRREMEHABEESLI

statements, the Group has the following transactions with
related parties:

Sales of goods to a related party HEBY T —R@ES

REBBERETTHEIT RS

2018
20184

2017
20174
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
BT T

— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited —#4Z&% 5 (&% )GRAF 19,866 18,663
(Note) (H¥E)

Rovyalty income from a related party RE—ZRERNEFREIA

- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited —#&% 5 (&% )ERAF 359 367
(Note) (Bf¥5E)

Rental expense paid to a related party [A—ZEEF S NHESFX

- Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad —4T 2= EFEHCRIDBR 17,809 -

Factory (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) NS

Note:

The pricing of these transactions was determined based on mutual
negotiation and agreement between the Group and the related parties.
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REMBRRMEE

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 BEARF @)

(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEREEHMH

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T& - %% - fE4T &)ERL 31,018 32,517
Retirement benefits costs RIRR R
— defined contribution scheme — ERRHITEE 388 376
31,406 32,893
(c) Year-end balances with a related party (c) EH—BBREFNFEREE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Name of a related party s AR
Trade receivables: B SRR -
— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited —%24ZE 5 (FE)GRAF]
(Note) (BFF5E) 4,799 2,354
Note: BeE
The trade receivables due from a related party are unsecured, interest- R —ERIEHT N E SRR REER -
free and with credit terms of 60 days. BRAEEHR60AE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 KAFEEEERRHEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =)

Balance sheet of the Company ARRlEEBER

As at 31 March

MA3H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—EK B AR M ER 510,724 510,724
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e TERRIEREAM
receivables FEW FRTE 342 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU M B A R R IE 1,312,550 1,327,317
Cash and cash equivalents BEhBELEEY 217 1,188
1,313,109 1,328,505
Total assets BEHAE 1,823,833 1,839,229
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners &2 B#H A E{L
of the Company
Share capital f& s 95,247 95,247
Reserves e (a) 1,726,055 1,740,007
Total equity RERBE 1,821,302 1,835,254
LIABILITIES =1
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables FEE B R N b B 2,525 3,675
Current income tax liabilities BIEIFTS R B E 6 300
2,531 3,975
Total liabilities BEAE 2,531 3,975
Total equity and liabilities EEREESE 1,823,833 1,839,229
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REMBRRMEE

31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 APREEEBRRHE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) =k IE)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) ZAATREEEE
Share premium Retained
(Note) earnings Total
R 125 {8 (B EE) BB et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 31 March 2016 74201653 H31H 1,705,969 71,165 1,777,134
Profit for the year F X% | - 31,431 31,431
Dividends A& - (68,558) (68,558)
As at 31 March 2017 1201763 A31H 1,705,969 34,038 1,740,007
Profit for the year FERNm - 47,260 47,260
Dividends (Note 27) fig 2 (P 5E27) - (61,212) (61,212)
As at 31 March 2018 742018563 H31H 1,705,969 20,086 1,726,055
Note: BA5E
The share premium of the Company is available for distribution to the RRABRG R B GERERREL IR - AT
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the AREBEREEZDRKREBHE  AQBAEE
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed the Company BEEBiBIRH 2 BRI & -

will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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FEMBRRMEE

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 32 EZER@ZmK#ER

The remuneration of every director and the chief executives HE2018F3A3N B I FEEBRESE M
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE S 0T ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REBALEEES(FRATAAZENBAREE EARENNMNS
Employer's
contribution

Discretionary Housing to retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
ESEN
BEfZ ik £ BfERA EERE HE e ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Executive directors HiTES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY 3t (R &)

Hung) (Chief Executive Officer)  (E/E2i77E) - 9,100 - - 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony sk - 2,867 260 - 36 3,163
Sze Shui Ling g% - 2,184 234 - 36 2,454
Liu Zhengiang 2En - 2,923 262 - 35 3,220
Chen Zhiping BT - 2,280 238 - 35 2,553
Independent Bl

non-executive directors FHTES
Or Ching Fai fEiE 380 - 120 - - 500
Tam Lai Man EBX 320 - 80 - - 400
To Wong Wing Yue Annie R 320 - 80 - - 400

1,020 19,354 1,274 - 196 21,844

FEHE2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 193
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REMBRRMEE

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 32 EEFERER®

(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executives HE2017F3A3NBILFEBRESE N
for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE ST

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REBATELES( ENGES RIS ol
Employer's
contribution
to
Discretionary Housing  retirement
Name of Director Salaries bonuses allowances schemes

fx

EE3iE &8 BETEAL FE2A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BRI BETT

Executive directors BiTES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY i (R &)

Hung) (Chief Executive Officer) (B /E#177E) - 9,100 420 - 54 9,574
Yiu Kar Chun Antony e - 2,867 452 - 36 3,355
Sze Shui Ling BER - 2,184 401 - 36 2,621
Liu Zhengiang ZEn - 2,870 470 - 34 3374
Chen Zhiping BET - 2,231 438 - % 2,703

Independent non-executive B

directors FHTES
Or Ching Fai fEiE 380 - 200 - - 580
Tam Lai Man EBX 320 - 150 - - 470
To Wong Wing Yue Annie BEKE 320 - 150 - - 470

1,020 19,252 2,681 - 194 23,147
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

No remunerations were paid or receivable in respect of
accepting office as directors during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: Nil).

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of
directors’ other services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking during
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2017: Nil).

Except disclosed above, no director of the Company had
a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was or is a
party that subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2017: Nil).

e RBRRME

32 EEFEZRER @)

REZE2018FE3A3MHILEE @ HE
PLIE AR IR (T 5 O A o U 1T {e) 5 B
(20174 « &) -

REFE2018F3A31BIHFEE - {fEE
ERREE MBS (20176  £) ©

REZE2018F3 A3 A ILFE © HER
EERHERNQAKEMNBRARES
EHREEREBMHEMREE S ER
MBI (20174F « £8) - BEFEIR
HEERBMETE=AXBE=F5
REE RS MUBERARE (20176 ¢
) o

BENES  RENTEFEAEE
FBAEERBARH ANER BUE
REEMEE(20175F : £E) -

BRI BEEIN NARERHE
RARBEEEBEI S MR FRK
FREMEERDATENERNEXR
R RHRERTEESEEES
BAMEE (201745 : ) -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
ABENBE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the REEZEARE TS EERR BT AEM
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set HWEENEHEES  EERBGEHZHT
out herein, is set out below: e

Year ended 31 March
BE3AMHLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

20185 20174 201645 20154 20144
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT BETT  BETx  BETr  BET

Results £
Revenue WA 5,868,048 4,676,937 5,081,774 4,192,009 3,802,971
Gross profit S 1,247,049 915,825 1,254,147 979,384 790,350
Profit attributable to owner of ~ ZARAFHEHE A
the Company FE{G A 240,188 97,635 442,054 337,806 166,911
Adjusted net profit for the FAERHREF| R
year&2 240,188 98,005 475,477 341,343 208,257
Gross profit margin (%) FEFIZE(%) 21.3% 19.6% 24.7% 23.4% 20.8%
Net profit margin (%) T2 (%) 4.1% 2.1% 8.7% 8.1% 4.4%
Adjusted net profit A ER AT | R (9 ) 22
margin (%)1&@ 4.1% 2.1% 9.4% 8.1% 5.5%
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets EEBE 6,024,210 4,949,937 4,589,525 3,129,637 2,921,121
Total liabilities BESE (3,154,628) (2,329,845) (1,922,573) (1,998,353) (1,893,743)
Total equity b g 2,869,582 2,620,092 2,666,952 1,131,284 1,027,378

Notes: Bfd5E

(1) Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding listing expenses (1) FREFHELFTEBRIMA R Z RIS
and deducting (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments, net and EEMIA(BIE) WS FHEAEFL - B
excluding the related tax impact from the net profit for the year. TEEFRAFNELENBERETE -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that is 2) UFEARESFTRUNMBBIERERMGEE
not required by, or presented in accordance with HKFRSs and is therefore 1515 - EAVBMELERWEEX - NHAER
referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a measurement REBYBHMEEAZ7] - Bt - BLEREB
of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and should not [IEARGFRA MM SE 21T - IR
be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any other BEBVERELEGEAEEVBERIRANT
performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an % TRERIERBEBU B RS LENEENE
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the En B EEMAMRRNEREER S
Group's liquidity. BEDReRENBEREZTIEEAEERD

AEMiER -
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